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----------------------------------..... ------------------------------~ 
Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 
Moderator · · · · .. . ....... . .. . . . ..... . . Carl Cheshier 
Assistant Moderator .. . . ......... . .. . .. . .... Tim York 
Cle.rk · · · ....... .. .. . ...... .... . .. . . Waldo Young 
Ass1stant Clerk ................. . . . . . ... Keith Burden 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer . .... . .... Melvin Worthington 

General Board 

1999 
Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: David Taylor 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atlantic Canada: Dwayne Brood 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Millard Sasser 
Georgia: William Smith 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: Ernie lewis 
Indiana: Robert Hefms 
Kansas: lorry Collins 
Kentucky: James Patton 
First louisiana: Ron Porker 
Maryland: Lester Horton 
Mexico: James Munsey 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mississippi: J. L Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 
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2000 
New Jersey: Verge! Moness 
New Mexico: Len Blanchard 
North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast Association: Jim Nason 
Northwest Association: Brent Nix 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma: Jock Richey 
South Carolina: Joe Cagle 
Tennessee: Charles Thigpen 
Texas: Thurmon Murphy 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 

Executive CommiHee 

Chairman: Carl Cheshier, P. 0. Box 7208, Moore, OK 73153 
Clerk: Waldo Young, 1938 Haynie Lone, N BU 7 41 0, Prague, OK 7 4864 

1999 2000 Officers 
David Joslin (Ark.) Delmar Sparks (Ohio) Carl Cheshier (Oklo.) 
Gene Norris (Mich.) Jock Richey (Oklo.) Tim York (Ky.) 
Nothon Ruble (Mo.) Charles Thigpen (Tenn.) Waldo Young (Oklo.) 

Bible College Trustees 
Chairman: Gory Fry, P. 0. Box 464, Mountain Grove, MO 65711 
President: Tom Malone, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

2000 2002 
Richard Barnes (Vo.) Archie Ratliff {N.C.) 
Gory Fry {Mo.) lorry Montgomery (Tenn.) 
Howard Price (Go.) Gene Outland (Ill.) 

2004 
Richard Bowers (Ala.) 
Lorry Powell (Go.) 
Steve Ashby (Ind.) 

Foreign Missions Board 
Chairman: Bill Jones, 2601 Southwest 99, Oklahoma City, OK 73159 
Diredor: James Forlines, P. 0. Box 5002, An~och, TN 37011 -5002 

2000 2002 
William Reagan (Canada) Bill Jones (Oklo.) 
Doug Uttle (Ark.) David Williford (Flo.) 
Milton Worthington (Mich.) Bill Von Winkle (Miss.) 

Home Missions Board 
Chairman: Earl Hendrix, 88 Blackstock Rood, Inmon, SC 29349 
Director: Trymon Messer, P. 0. Box 5002, An~och, TN 37011-5002 

1999 2001 
Lynn Wood (Oklo.) Richard Atwood (Md.) 
Ken Dodson (Mo.) Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 
Wendell Walley (N.C.) J. D. Norris (Vo.) 

Board of Retirement 
Chairman: Woymon Fields, P. 0. Box 17 4, Millport, AL 3557 6 
Director: William Evans, P. 0. Box 5002, An~och, TN 37011-5002 

1999 2001 
Robert Morgan (Tenn.) Bobby Bowers (S.C.) 
lincoln Varney (Ky.) Jock Daniel (Go.) 
Henry Von Kluyve (N.C.) Woymon Fields (Ala.) 
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2004 
David Shores (Ill.) 
Terry Eagleton (Tenn.) 
Sherwood Lee (S.C.) 

2003 
Ronnie Adkins (Tenn.) 
loyd Locklear {Mich.) 
Jim Puckett (Oklo.) 

2003 
William Ferguson (Mich.) 
Roger Harwell (Mo.) 
James lowe (Ohio) 



-·--------------------------------------------------~~--------------~ 

Free Will Baptist Foundation Board 
Chairman: Henry Von Kluyve, P. 0. Box 568, Beaufort, NC 28516 
Diredor: William Evans, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

1999 2001 
Robert Morgan (Tenn.) Bobby Bowers (S.C.) 
Uncoln Varney (Ky.) Jock Daniel {Go.) 
Henry Von Kluyve {N.C.) Woymon Fields (Ala.) 

Plus these diredors of national agencies: 
James Forlines, Foreign Missions Deportment 
Trymon Messer, Home Missions Deportment 
Tom Dooley, Moster's Men Deportment 
Tom Malone, Free Will Baptist Bible College 

2003 
James Lowe {Ohio) 
Roger Harwell (Mo.) 
William Ferguson {Mich.) 

Alton Loveless, Sunday School and Church Training Deportment 
Marjorie Workman, Women Notionally Active for Christ 
Melvin Worthington, Executive Office 

Sunday School and Church Training Board 
Chairman: David Sutton, 1412 East Main, Moore, OK 73160 
Diredor: Alton Loveless, P. 0. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217 

2000 2002 
Billy Hanna (Go.) David Sutton (Oklo.) 
Dennis Wiggs (N.C.) David Reece (Md.) 
Jeff Crabtree {Canada) Nuel Brown (Calif.) 

2004 
Will Harmon {Ark.) 
Brion Hampton {Tenn.) 
Michael Waddell (Flo.) 

Master's Men Board 

Chairman: Wayman Roy, 3705 South 65th West Avenue, Tulsa, OK 74107 
Diredor: Tom Dooley, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

1999 2001 
Eornie Taylor {Ill.) Jerry Atwell {Miss.) 
Don Neal {Ind.) Johnny Fowlkes {Ark.) 
Gory Wilson {Ala.) Wayman Roy (Oklo.) 

2003 
Cliff Donoho {Iowa) 
Clarence Lewis {Tenn.) 
Thurmon Pate, Jr. {Tenn.) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 

Chairman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
1999 Jeff Manning {N.C.) 
2000 Daryl Ell is {Ill.) 
2001 Paul Harrison {Tenn.) 
2002 Leroy Forlines {Tenn.) 
2003 Matt Pinson (Go.) 
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Historical Commission 

Secretary: Jock Williams, P. 0. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 
1999 Robert Picirilli {Tenn.) 
2000 Dorrell Holley {Tenn.) 
2001 Thomas Marberry (Oklo.) 
2002 Jock Williams {Tenn.) 
2003 Paul Kennedy (Calif.) 

Media Commission 

Chairman: Steve Faison, P. 0. Box 295, Cedar Springs, GA 31732 
1999 James Vollonce {Tenn.) 
2000 Doug Kite {N.C.) 
2001 Ron Hunter (Flo.) 
2002 Bill Gordner {Tenn.) 
2003 Steve Faison (Go.) 

Music Commission 

Chairman: Randy Sawyer, 124 Pemberton Street, Stanley, NC 28164 
1999 Randy Sawyer {N.C.) 
2000 Vernon Wholey {Ohio) 
2001 David Bates {Mo.) 
2002 Douglas Uttle (Ark.) 
2003 Bill Gordner {Tenn.) 
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Proceedings 
The 62nd annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met July 12-16, 1998, at the Tulsa Convention Center in 
Tulsa, Oklahoma. The theme was "Belief Behaves." Randy Sawyer 
served as music coordinator, Carol Reid as organist, Jerry Carraway 
as pianist and Matt Schinske as keyboardist. Chris Truett conducted 
the orchestra. Cathy Mitchell signed for the hearing impaired. 

Sunday School-July 12, 1998 
Millard Sasser (FL) presided for the Sunday School and morning 

worship services at the convention center. Lange Patrick led the con­
gregation in singing, "When We All Get to Heaven," "When the Roll 
is Called Up Yonder" and "What a Day That Will Be." Presider 
Millard Sasser led in prayer. 

Special music was provided by the Calvaryman Quartet from 
Hartville, Missouri. 

The Adult Sunday School lesson was taught by Garry Richey, 
deacon at the Southern Oaks FWB Church in Oklahoma City. After 
announcements the Adult Sunday School was dismissed. 

Sunday Morning-July 12, 1998 
The worship service was called to order at 11 :00 a.m. Lange 

Patrick led the congregation in singing, "0 Worship the King," "To 
God Be the Glory" and "My Tribute." Millard Sasser welcomed 
those present and led in prayer. 

The convention offering was received, after which the congre­
gation sang, "It Is Well With My Soul," "He Is Here" and "Surely the 
Presence." 

Loyd Locklear, pastor of Woodhaven FWB Church in Woodhaven, 
Michigan, was introduced to bring the message. After announce­
ments the benediction was given. 

Sunday Evening-July 12, 1998 
David Shores (IL) presided for the evening service and called it 

to order at 7:00 p.m. Scott Bullman and Doug Little led the con­
gregation in singing, "Blessed Be the Name," ''l\11 Hail the Power," 
All Hail King Jesus" and "He is Lord." David Shores led in prayer. 

The Mass Choir sang, "Hallelujah, What a Savior." The con­
gregation sang, "Praise the Name of Jesus," "There's Something 
About That Name," "Blessed is He Who Comes in the Name of the 
Lord" and '~esus is the Sweetest Name I Know." 
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Pittsburg, Illinois, pastor Danny Gray led in the offertory prayer. 
The instrumentalists provided offertory music as the convention 
offering was received. 

Randy Wilson, pastor of Bethany FWB Church in Broken Arrow, 
Oklahoma, was introduced as the speaker. Lisa McGee (OK) sang, 
"One Word is Love." 

Pastor Wilson read James 1 :22 and brought the message on 
"How a Believer Behaves." 

After the message announcements were made and Mark Shores 
prayed the benediction. 

Monday Evening-July 13, 1998 
Nuel Brown (CA) presided for the Monday evening service with 

Doug Little and Scott Bullman jointly leading the music. The con­
gregation sang, "Blessed Be the Name," ''l\11 Hail the Power" and a 
praise medley. Presider Brown quoted Psalm 31 : 1 0, welcomed 
those present and led in prayer. 

Clerk Waldo Young (OK) called the session to order and intro­
duced Moderator Carl Cheshier, president of Hillsdale FWB Col­
lege. Moderator Cheshier announced the appointment of commit­
tees who will serve during the session. 

Those appointed to the Resolutions Committee were Ernie Lewis 
(IL), Tom Ballard (OK), William Smith (GA), Don Walker (MO) and 
Robert Prichard (OH). 

Those appointed to the Credentials Committee were Millard 
Sasser (FL), chairman, Thurmon Murphy (TX), Doice McAlister (CA), 
Gene Norris (MI) and Mark Thomas (CO). 

Those appointed to the Obituary Committee were Len Blan­
chard (NM), chairman, Lester Horton {MD), Herbert Waid (GA), 
Henry Van Kluyve (NC) and J. L. Gore (MS). 

The Nominating Committee consisted of those General Board 
members representing states beginning with the letters A through M. 

Oklahoma executive secretary Jack Richey gave a welcome to 
Oklahoma and to Tulsa. 

Jimmy Aldridge, overseas secretary for the Foreign Missions De­
partment, introduced Russian pastor Nickolay Sobolev who brought 
greetings. Ramon Sanchez from Cuba also brought greetings. 

The Mass Choir and the congregation blended music and sang 
a medley of praise. The Moss Choir sang, "I Will Praise Thee" and 
provided offertory music by singing, "Soon and Very Soon" as the 
convention offering was received. 

Presider Nuel Brown (CA) introduced David Taylor, pastor from 
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Tucson, Arizona, to bring the message. Before the message the 
praise team sang, "Unto the King Eternal," "Let's Just Praise the 
Lord" and "Have Thine Own Way." 

Pastor Taylor read First Samuel 15:22-23 and brought the mes­
sage on "Behave Obey," or "To Obey is Better." 

After announcements Wade Jernigan prayed the benediction. 

Tuesday Evening-July 14, 1998 
Jim Marcum (NC) presided for the Tuesday evening service. 

Doug Little and Scott Bullman directed the music, both congrega­
tional and choir. It was blended music with choir and congregation 
participating. 

A medley about the blood of Jesus was sung including, "0 the 
Blood of Jesus," "Nothing But the Blood," "Are You Washed in the 
Blood?" and "There is Power in the Blood." Jim Marcum gave the 
welcome and led in prayer. 

The choir sang, "The Lamb Upon the Throne." 
The choir and congregation sang, "Thank You, Lord," ''Victory 

in Jesus," ''A New Name in Glory," "Since Jesus Came Into My 
Heart" and "I've Been Changed." 

Reuben Cason (NC) led in the offertory prayer. The Stanley 
Jones Singers from Missouri presented special music while the offer­
ing was received. 

The congregation sang, "Because He Lives." Edwin Hayes, execu­
tive secretary of the Ohio State Association, was introduced as the 
speaker. The Stanley Jones Singers again presented special music. 

Speaker Hayes read Matthew 15:22-28 and brought the mes­
sage on "Great is Thy Faith." 

Henry Home (NC) prayed the benediction. 

Wednesday Evening-July 15, 1998 
Doug Little led the congregation in singing, ''Amazing Grace," 

a capella, then led in prayer to open the Wednesday evening wor­
ship service. The choir then sang, "Carry the Glorious Gospel." 

The congregation sang, "I Love to Tell the Story" and "Rescue 
the Perishing." Ron Moore (SC), presider, called on Robert Rose (SC) 
to lead in prayer. 

David Crowe from the Home Missions Department introduced 
all home missionaries present for the service. Joe Grizzle introduced 
all foreign missionaries present for the service. Doug Little led the 
congregation in singing, "Send the Light." 

Special recognition was given to Eugene and Genevieve 
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Waddell for 39 years of service to the Foreign Missions Department. 
Brother Waddell is retiring as general director at the end of 1998. 

The missions offering was received, an offering that exceeded 
$32,000. The youth of Oklahoma, represented by Joey Wilson, 
presented a check for $37,000 for missions projects. Mark Barber 
led in the offertory prayer. 

The choir sang, "Lead Me Lord: I Will Follow" and "I'll Go 
Where You Want Me to Go." 

Eugene Waddell was introduced as the speaker. Before he came 
to bring the message, John Gibbs from Tennessee presented spe-

cial music. 
Eugene Waddell's son, Michael, pastor in Pensacola, Florida, 

read the scripture for his father. He read James 1 :22-25. Director 
Waddell brought the message on "Be Ye Doers of the Word." 

"I Surrender All" was sung as an invitational hymn to which sev­
eral people responded. After announcements, Theron Scott (SC) led 
in the closing prayer. 

Business Sessions 
Wednesday Morning-July 15, 1998 

Moderator Carl Cheshier called the business session to order at 
9:00a.m. He read James 5:7-12 and brought the moderator's mes­
sage from that text. Mark Elliott from Louisiana who had been seri­
ously burned 18 months before, brought greetings and led in prayer. 

The clerk read the Credentials Committee Report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report and seat the delegates. 

The clerk read a partial report of the General Board. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt Item # 1 . 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Executive Office. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budgets within 
the report. 

The report of the Nominating Committee was distributed in 
printed form. A motion carried to receive the report and consider 
each nomination at the appropriate time as needed. 

Director William Evans gave the report of the Board of Retire­
ment. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

William Evans also gave the report of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the 

budget. 
Board chairman Waymon Ray gave the report of the Master's 

Men Department. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt 
the budget. Earnie Taylor (IL) was elected to serve the unexpired 
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term of Dwight Fletcher who resigned from the Master's Men Board. 
Director Trymon Messer gave the report of the Home Missions 

~epartment . . Assi.stant board chairman Wendell Walley made a spe­
oal presentat1on 1n memory of Don Guthrie, board member who died 
duri~g the year, to his wife Elwen Guthrie. Plaques of appreciation for 
serv1ce were also presented to William Reagan, Mike Criswell, Tim 
Coats and Jim Fairchild. A motion carried to receive the Home 
Missio~s report an? adopt the budget. Ken Dodson (MO) was elect­
ed to fdl the unexp1red 1999 term of Don Guthrie on the board. 

Director Alton Loveless gave the Sunday School and Church 
Training Department report. A motion carried to receive the report 
a~d adopt the budget. Will Harmon (AR), Brian Hampton (TN) and 
M1chael Waddell (FL) were elected to six-year terms on the Sunday 
School and Church Training Board. 

~irector ~oveless made presentations to Irvin Hyman, James 
Forl~nes, Edw~n Hayes and Larry Clyatt for service to this department. 

President Tom Malone gave the report of Free Will Baptist Bible 
College. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the 
budget. Richard Bowers (AL), Larry Powell (GA) and Steve Ashby (IN) 
were elected to six-year terms on the Board of Trustees of Free Will 
Baptist Bible College. 

President Malone made a presentation to Doug Little for his 
years of service on the Board of Trustees. 

David Winfrey prayed the closing prayer for the morning session. 

Wednesday Afternoon-July 15, 1998 
Assistant Moderator Tim York read Ephesians 4 : 1-3 and led in 

prayer to open the afternoon session. 
. ~irector Eugene Waddell gave the report of the Foreign 

M1ss1ons Department. A motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. Doug Little (AR) was elected to fill the unexpired 
term of James Forlines who resigned from the board to become the 
new department director. This term expires in the year 2000. 

David Shore~ (IL), Terry Eagleton (TN) and Sherwood Lee (SC) 
were elected to s1x-year terms on the Foreign Missions Board. 
. Fo_llowing a few moments of silence in memory of veteran mis­

Sionanes who died during the past year, Joe Grizzle led in a prayer 
of thanksgiving . 

. ~hree individuals paid tribute to retiring director of Foreign 
M1ss1ons, Eugene Waddell: Janice Banks, Don Robirds and Robert 
Picirilli. Joe Grizzle presented a plaque of appreciation to Director 
Waddell. He also presented to the body the incoming director and 
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his wife, Rev. and Mrs. James Forlines. . . 
Chairman Leroy Forlines gave the report of the Comm1ss1on for 

Theological Integrity. A motion carried to receive th~ report and 
adopt the budget. Matt Pinson (GA) was elected to a ftve-year term 
on this commission. 

Chairman Steve Faison gave the report of the Media Commis-
sion. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Steve Faison (GA) was elected to a five-year term on this commission. 

Chairman Randy Sawyer gave the report of the Music Com­
mission. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budg­
et. Bill Gardner (TN) was elected to a five-year term on the Music 
Commission. 

Chairman Mary Wisehart gave the report of the Historical Com-
mission. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Paul Kennedy {CA) was elected to a five-year term on this commission. 

The clerk read the rest of the report of the General Board. A 
motion carried to adopt Item #2, pertaining to the convention 
meeting in Charleston, West Virginia, in 2008. 

A motion carried to adopt Item #3 of this report. This recom­
mended reimbursing the Commission for Theological Integrity for 
funds spent on a study assignment. 

A motion carried to adopt Item #4, which recommended that 
the Executive Office be the agency to handle disaster relief funds 
when that need arises. 

A motion was made and seconded to adopt Item #5, which 
recommended the return to the By-Laws regarding the Nominating 
Committee. 

A motion was made and seconded to amend by substitution. 
The substitute is to amend Section 11 to read . 

The nominating committee shall be selected one year in advonce. The committee shall 
meet at least three months prior to the annual session and present at least one nome 
for each vacant office, exception the General Boord. The funding of the committee 
shall be done proportionately by the boards and commissions where vocondes ore 
being filled. 

A motion was made and seconded to amend the proposed 
amendment by adding the words, "and a short resume be submit­
ted with the nomination." This amendment was adopted. 

A motion carried to place the motion to substitute on the table 
until Thursday morning. 

The clerk read the nominations for General Board members. 
Rick Cash (AL) and William Smith (GA) were elected to one-year 
terms replacing members who have resigned. 
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Those elected to the General Board for two-year terms were 
Vergel Maness (NJ), Len Blanchard (NM), Jim Marcum (NC), Jim 
Nason (NE Assoc.), Brent Nix (NW Assoc.), Delmar Sparks (OH), 
Jack Richey (OK), Joe Cagle (SC), Charles Thigpen (TN), Thurmon 
Murphy (TX), Glen Johnson 0/A) and Carl Vallance fVVV). 

The clerk read the nominations for the Executive Committee. 
Delmar Sparks (OH), Jack Richey (OK) and Charles Thigpen (TN) 
were elected to two-year terms on the Executive Committee. 

Thursday Morning- July 16, 1998 
Assistant clerk Keith Burden read Lamentations 3:22-23 and led 

in prayer to open the final session of the convention at 9:00 a.m. 
National Youth Conference director Dean Jones gave the report 

of that organization. A motion carried to receive the report. 
Executive secretary Mary Wisehart gave the report of the Women 

Nationally Active for Christ. A motion carried to receive the report and 
give Mary Wisehart a rising vote of appreciation for her work. 

A motion carried to take Item #5 of the General Board report 
from the table. 

A motion carried to amend the substitute motion by changing 
the word "selected" with the words, "appointed by the moderator." 

A motion carried to amend the substitute motion by deleting the 
words, "be done proportionately by the boards and commissions 
whose vacancies are being filled," and inserting the words, "come 
from the convention fund ." The substitute motion was adopted with the 
amendments. The motion as adopted with the amendments reads: 

Section 11, under "Election of Officers" of the By-Laws to read: 
The nominating committee shall be appointed by the moderator one year in advance. 
The committee shall consist of seven members, shall meet at least three months prior 
to the annual session and present at least one nome for each vacant office, excepting 
the General Boord. The funding of the committee shall come from the convention 
fund. A brief resume shall be submitted with each nomination. 

The clerk read the registration report. A motion carried to 
receive the report as information. 

The moderator announced the appointment of the Nominating 
Committee for the 1999 session: Chairman Jack Richey (OK), 
William Smith (GA), Jim Marcum (NC), Bobby Shepherd (AR), Matt 
Upton (CA), Ernie Lewis (IL) and David Taylor (AZ). 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Budget Committee. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the recommendations. 

Melvin Worthington also gave the report of the Ministerial 
Family Life Committee. A motion carried to receive the report and 
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d t. on that this committee continue their work 
adopt the recommen a ' 

for another year. d h ort of the Obituary Committee. A motion 
The clerk r~a t e rep rt C ·e Cariker (OK) led in prayer. 

carried to recetve ~e ~epo . rt on~t the Resolutions Committee. A 
The clerk rea t ~ repo o nd consider it item by item. 

motion ca:ried to ~ecdetve thde r~pl~ertma # 1 pertaining to our stand 
A motton carne to a op ' 

against ho~osexu~lityd. d t Item #2 expressing thanks to 
A motton carne to a op . ' 

Oklahoma fo.r hostfingfft.his con~~n;ho: ·final item of business. Carl 
The electton o 0 tcers w . k (KY) was elected 

Cheshier (OK) was eWiecteldd ~oderat('6K)T':a~o~lected clerk. Keith 
assistant moderator. a o oung 
Burden (OK) was elected assistant clerk. h. d the 

A motion carried to adjourn. Melvin Wort tngton praye 

benediction. 
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The Executive Secretary's Report 

1997 
The Executive Office continues to operate smoothly with an efficient staff. 

We appreciate the quality of work of Steve Pate, Melody Hood, Dari Goodfellow, 
Anne Worthington, Marilyn Pritchard, Deanna Hollifield and Jack Williams. 

Contact subscriptions totaled 5, 195 in the December 1997 mailing. Contact 
provides current information regarding denominational life. Subscriptions are 
$12 per year. Lifetime subscriptions cost $500. Each lifetime subscnber, whether 
church or individual, receives a leather-bound copy of the Free Will Baptist 
Hymn Book: Rejoice (1988). We now have 10 lifetime subscriptions (plus fiVe 
more pledged). Complimentary copies of Contact are provided for students at 
Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, California 
Christian College and Southeastern Free Will Baptist College during the nine­
month academic year. 

The Executive Office represented the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., at the Religious Conference Management Association, Christian 
Stewardship Association, Evangelical Baptist Union Congress (Russia) and at 25 
Free Will Baptist state/district meetings. 

A companion for the two hymnals, Rejoice, The Free Will Baptist Hymn 
Book and The Rejoice Hymnal for the Church at Worship, is being compiled. The 
Executive Office and Randall House are working together on this project We do 
not have an official release date because of delays in the editorial process. 

The 1997 convention in Cincinnati, Ohio, went well. We commend the 
Ohio State Association of Free Will Baptists for their excellent job in hosting the 
convention. Registration totaled 6, 77 4. The music, meetings and messages 
were a special blessing. Preparation for the 1998 convention in Tulsa, 
Oklahoma, went according to schedule. Site inspection visits for the 2008 con­
vention will be made in the spring of 1998. 

Speakers and a theme for the 1998 national convention were selected by 
the Executive Committee during its December 1997 meeting in Nashville, 
Tennessee. The theme chosen was Belief Behaves. The speakers include Garry 
Richey (OK), Loyd Locklear (MI), Randy Wilson (OK), David Taylor (AZ), Edwin 
Hayes (OH), Eugene Vvaddell (TN), George Lynn (AR), J. L. Gore (MS), 
Thurmon Murphy (TX). 

The Capital StewardshipMctory Campaign closed on December 31, 1997. 
Gifts for this campaign totaled $307,620.33 (including gifts and pledges). Anum­
ber of state/district associations reached their campaign goal. The indebtedness 
on the building as of December 31, 1997, was $282,168.92. 

The 1997 Free Will Baptist Leadership Conference addressed the issue of 
Stewardship. The speakers did an outstanding job. The 1998 Free Will Baptist 
Leadership Conference will meet December 7-8, 1998, at the Regal Maxwell 
House Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. We encourage state/district leaders and 
interested pastors to attend. 

The General Assembly of the International Fellowship of Free Will Baptist 
Churches, Inc., will meet October 12-16, 1998, in Uruguay. The theme of the 
meeting will be The Church, Culture, Customs. 

The Treatise of the Faith and Pradices of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc., and the Free Will Baptist Hymn Book: Rejoice may be 
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ordered from Randall House Publications. The hymn book is in three colors in 
round or shaped note editions. The Rejoice Hymnal for the Church at Worship, 
available in both shaped and round note editions in two colors, is distributed by 
Tempo Music Publications, Inc., 3773 West 95th Street, Leawood, Kansas 66206. 

The Together Way Plan gifts for the Executive Office ministry in 1997 totaled 
$322,152.32. Of this amount, $221,226.99 was cooperative and $100,925.33 desig­
nated. The 1997 Executive Office budget totaled $366,000. The office had a 1997 
budget shortfall of $43,847.68. Thank you for your systematic and sacrificial sup­
port of the Executive Office ministry. 

The Rest of the Family Offering totaled $9,047.76. After expenses, the bal­
ance was disbursed to participating national agencies. September 27, 1998, has 
been designated as Rest of the Family Sunday. We encourage you to give gen­
erously in this offering. 

Gifts for national ministries in 1997 totaled $10,020,229.65. Together Way 
Plan gifts totaled $3,217,745.48. Of this amount, $442,453.17 was cooperative 
and $2,775,292.31 designated. Per capita giving was $49. 72; our goal was $45 
per member. We appreciate the support you gave to national ministries in 1997. 
The Together Way Plan stewardship notebook and brochure, Stewards on 
Task, may be ordered at no charge from the Executive Office. 

The Together Way Totals 

1988 $6,428,621.22 
1989 $6,489,728.33 
1990 $6,933,944.49 
1991 $7,848,694.01 
1992 $7,832,441.46 

1993 $7,864,572.01 
1994 $8,750,648.37 
1995 $8,777,067.71 
1996 $9,687,919.1 I 
1997 $10,020,229.65 

Tracking The Together Way Totals 
(Through the Executive omce) 

Designated Co-op Total 
1988 

$944,949.06 (+7.82%) $323,295.09 ( + 11.66%) Sl ,268,244.15 (+8.78%) 75% 25% 
1989 

1,009,68856 (+6.85%} 319,483.14 (-1.18%) 1,329,171.70 ( +4.SOOAI} 76% 24% 
1990 

1,035,463.36 (+255%) 330,567.40 (+3.47%) 1,366,030.76 (+2.no/o) 76% 24% 
1991 

1,129,064.33 (+9.04%) 329,050.08 {-0.46%) 1,458,114.41 ( +6.74%) n% 23% 
1992 

1,480,847 51 (+31.16%} 243,195.98 (-26.09%) 1,n4,043.49 ( + 18.24%) 86% 14% 
1993 

1,786,527.81 ( + 20.64%) 278,925.67 ( + 14.69%) 2,065,453.48 ( + 19.80%} 86% 14% 
1994 

2,071,80859 ( + 15.97%) 313,198.40 (+ 12.29%) 2,385,006.99 ( + 15.47%) 87% 13% 
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1995 
(+2.73%} 362,69452 ( + 15.80%} 2,128,315.33 

85% 15% 
1996 

2,110,1 82.97 (-0.85%) 375,760.11 (+3.60%) 
85% 15% 

1997 
2;T/5,29231 (+3152o/o) 442,453.17 (+ 17.75%) 

86% 14% 

The Together Way Totals increase/decrease from 1988-1997: 
Designated 193.69% CO-OP 36.85% 

Executive Office 

Designated Co-op 
1988 $ 24,646.15 $193,102.83 
1989 25,129.16 200,319.16 
1990 75,721.44 166,278.57 
1991 68,011 .64 191 ,443.70 
1992 123,182.46 180,694.62 
1993 128,789.88 175,087.19 
1994 111 ,598.53 214,822 .00 
1995 117,223.58 217,616.55 
1996 113,665.59 206,667.60 
1997 1 00,925.33 221,226.99 

Foreign Missions 

Designated Co-op 
1988 $ 661,447.78 $ 29,944.15 $ 
1989 701,975.57 27,407.66 
1990 691 ,133.71 37,786.32 
1991 712,661 .39 31,649.40 
1992 850,776.88 14,375.28 
1993 1,053,812.57 23,882 .82 
1994 1,179,663.50 22,626.46 
1995 1,219,696.08 33,367.82 
1996 1,164,284.76 38,891.12 
1997 1,652,641 .05 50,882.05 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 

Designated Co-op 
1988 $ 57,775.58 $ 29,944.15 
1989 61,876.60 27,407.66 
1990 48,084.25 37,786.32 
1991 61,558.53 31,649.40 
1992 81,669.82 14,375.28 
1993 105,536.09 23,882.82 
1994 119,264.56 22,626.46 
1995 157,993.66 33,367.82 
1996 150,132.44 38,891.12 
1997 157,522.68 50,882.05 
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2,491,009.85 ( +4.44%) 

2,485,943.08 (-0.20%) 

3,217,745.48 ( + 29.44%) 

Total 
$217,748.98 

225,448.32 
242,000.01 
259,455.34 
303,877.08 
303,877.07 
326,420.53 
334,840.13 
320,332.19 
322,152.32 

Total 
691,391 .93 
729,383.23 
728,920.03 
744,310.79 
865,152 .16 

1,077,695.39 
1,202,289.96 
1,253,063.90 
1,203,175.88 
1 ,703,523.1 0 

Total 
$ 87,719.73 

89,284.26 
85,870.57 
93,207.93 
96,045.10 

129,418.91 
141,891.02 
191,361 .48 
189,023.56 
208,404.73 



Home Missions Historical Commission 

Designated Co-op Tat a I Designated Co-op Total 
1988 $160,944.26 $23,434.61 $184,378.87 1988 $ 676.30 $1 ,301 .90 $1 ,978.20 

1989 176,544.28 21 ,449.50 197,993.78 1989 757.28 .00 757.28 

1990 179,583.94 29,571.90 209,155.84 1990 413.59 821.42 1,235.01 
1991 216,177.42 24,769.01 240,946.43 1991 493 .53 688.09 1,181.62 

1992 293,769.40 11 ,250.25 305,019.65 1992 1,137.01 312.52 1,449.53 

1993 368,660.04 18,690.90 387,350.94 1993 1,118.66 519.14 1,637.80 
1994 442,380.26 17,707.66 460,087.92 1994 966.21 491 .97 1,458.18 

1995 539,687.11 26,114.04 565,801.15 1995 1,161.46 725.41 1,886.87 
1996 590,400.81 30,436.66 620,837.47 1996 1,060.83 845.55 1,906.38 

1997 723,293.97 39,820.70 763,114.67 1997 867.70 1,106.14 1,973.84 

Retirement & Insurance Commission for Theological Integrity 

Designated Co-op Total Designated Co-op Total 
1988 $ 2,322.02 $ 18,226.89 $ 20,548.91 1988 $ 719.71 $1 ,301.90 $2,021 .61 

1989 2,186.00 16,682 .98 18,868.98 1989 786.88 1,191.60 1,978.48 
1990 5,368.00 23,000.39 28,368.39 1990 446.56 821.42 1,267.98 

1991 6,458.01 19,264.88 25,722.89 1991 542.41 688.09 1,230.50 

1992 16,509.81 8,750.10 25,259.91 1992 1,193.44 312.52 1,505.96 
1993 12,344.65 14,537.48 26,882 .13 1993 1,267.94 519.14 1,787.08 

1994 9,579.30 13,772.71 23,352 .01 1994 1,140.95 491 .97 1,632 .92 
1995 10,066.31 20,310.94 30,377.25 1995 1,296.68 725.41 2,022.09 

1996 10,481.55 23,672.89 34,154.44 1996 1,276.01 845.55 2,121.56 
1997 13,634.99 30,971.63 44,606.62 1997 1,077.90 1,106.14 2,184.04 

Master's Men Media Commission 
Designated Co-op Total Designated Co-op Total 

1988 $ 4,859.96 $ 16,924.93 $ 21 ,784.89 $2,350.25 
1988 $1,188.13 $1,162.12 

1989 4 ,414.04 16,682.98 21 ,097.02 1989 901 .78 1,191.60 2,093.38 
1990 5,424.23 23,000.39 28,424.62 1990 488.94 821.42 1,310.36 
1991 7,316.70 19,264.88 26,581 .58 1991 640.71 688.09 1,328.80 
1992 17,388.70 8,750.10 26,138.80 1992 1,042.42 312.52 1,354.94 
1993 20,807.95 14,537.48 35,345.43 1993 1,136.55 519.14 1,655.69 
1994 20,928.93 13,772.71 34,701 .64 491.97 1,531.01 1994 1,039.04 
1995 22,607.06 20,310.94 42,918.00 1995 1,113.75 725.41 1,839.16 
1996 19,034.94 23,672.89 42,707.83 1996 1,322.22 845.55 2,167.77 
1997 20,526.60 30,971.63 51,498.23 1997 885.05 1,106.14 1,991.19 

Free Will Baptist Foundation Music Commission 
Designated Co-op Total 

Designated Co-op Total 
1988 $ 3,878.10 $ 7,811 .61 $ 11 ,689.71 $ 821.42 $1,019.05 
1989 5,754.97 7,149.83 12,904.80 1990 $ 197.63 

688.09 909.80 
1990 9,592 .75 9,857.36 19,450.11 1991 221.71 

1991 9,256.60 8 ,256.35 17,512.95 1992 920.26 312.52 1,232.78 
519.14 1,536.73 

1992 11,036.40 3,750.10 14,786.50 1993 1,017.59 
491.97 1,391.03 

1993 11,281 .73 6,230.32 17,512.05* 1994 899.06 
725.41 1,703.63 

1994 9,482 .16 5,902 .52 15,384.68** 1995 978.22 
845.55 1,831 .29 

1995 9,927.89 8,704.77 18,632.66** 1996 985.74 
1,106.14 1,914.16 

1996 9,513.75 10,145.63 19,659.38** 1997 808.02 

1997 13,162.31 13,273.56 26,435.87** 

• This lxJionce represents National Ministries Offering gi~ of S 1, 906.99 and gifts of $3,600.00 to The Together Way Endowment Fund. 
• • This bola nee represents Endowment gi~ mode through The Together Way Plan that do nor benefit the Foondotion. 
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We encourage local church, district and state association clerks to take the 
time necessary to fill out the National Association's reporting forms-
501,502,503 and 504. These forms are carefully designed to report denomina­
tional data which enables us to compile an accurate statistical table. The 
reporting forms are supplied at no cost and may be ordered from the Executive 
Office. 

Statistical Summary 

19U 1919 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 Total 

Beginning Membership Totals 104,382 210,364 215,579 221,533 227.224 232,124 238.359 243.244 249)13 255,883 

Baptisms 7,910 1.678 7,946 8,103 9,283 8,828 7,804 8,089 8,436 8,971 84,648 

Memben Added 12,436 12)26 12..537 12,931 12,123 12.246 12,393 12)01 12,155 11,946 124,194 

Memben LDst 6,454 7,511 6,583 7.240 7.223 6,011 7,508 6.232 S,98S 6,61/J 67,407 

Net lnaease 5,982 5.215 5,954 5,691 4,900 6,23S 4,885 6,469 6,1711 5,286 56,187 

Encfmg Membership Totuls 210,364 215,579 221,533 227.224 232,124 238.359 243.244 249)13 255,813 261,169 

We need to address the need of funding the national convention. ln order to 
have the necessary equipment for sight and sound, we need more resources. 
Convention sites are increasingly asking for large advance deposits when we 
sign contracts. This means that we need a larger reserve in the convention fund. 
Sound for the 1998 national convention costs approximately $20,000. If w e 
added image magnification (video screens) and special lighting, the cost would 
be an additional $27,000 ($7,000 for lights and $20,000 for image magnification). 
At the present time, we do not have the income to do all that could be done. 
There are at least four possibilities when addressing convention funding. 

(1) Convention Offerings. 
1996 Offerings needed $23,325.00 Offerings received $7,917.40 
1997 Offerings needed $39,816.84 Offerings received $7,257.29 
1998 Offerings needed $44,758.15 

(2) lnaease Representation Fee. Each state/district association holding member­
ship in the National Association pays a representation fee equaling $25 per 
church who hold membership in the association. The representation fee could 
be designed to increase a percentage at periodic intervals, thus taking care of 
escalating convention costs. 

(3) Charge Registration Fee. This registration fee would be required of all who 
attend the convention, including visitors and delegates. This source of income 
would fluctuate based on the number who attend and are willing to register. 

(4) Continue As We Are. This means that we would do nothing until a crisis aris­
es. The cost of hosting and attending national conventions in the foreseeable 
future show no indication of decreasing in cost. Convention facility rental, insur­
ance, deposits, sound systems, lighting, computer registration and image mag­
nification will continue to escalate in cost. We need to address these conven­
tion costs now, before there is a crisis. 

On May 8, 1998, during the commencement ceremonies at Vanderbilt 
University, I received the Doctor of Education (Ed.D.) Degree. This was the cul­
mination of the doctoral program which began in the fall of 1986. My disserta­
tion topic was The Pastor as Educator: A Free Will Baptist Perspective. 

Thank you for the privilege of serving as Executive Secretary for the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnc. 
Rejoicing and Resting in the Redeemer, Your Servant, 
Melvin Worthington, Th.D., Ed.D., CMP 
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T~rry A H ill 
Ernest R. Harper 

Hill, Harper & Associates, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free WiU Baptists, Inc. 

Brentwood Executiv~ C~ 
761 Old Htckory Boule'llard 
Suitt> J03 
Brmtwood. TN 31027 
TEL: 615/Jn-3485 

We have audited the statements of financial position of the Executive Office 

of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 
1997 and 1996 and the related statements of activities, functional costs and 
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. 

These financial statements are the n:sponsibility of the Executive Office's 

management. Our respoosibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Executive Office of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1997 and 

1996, and the results of its operations for the years then ended in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles. 

May 12, 1998 
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EXECUfiVE OffiCE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATIION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Assets 

current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents . 
Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Receivables: 
Hymnal sales 
Master's Men 
International Fellowship 
Other 

Total receivables 

1997 

$239,334 
5,500 

75,906 
3,634 
2,300 
1.683 

83,523 

Allowance for Master's Men accounts 
Net receivables 

Inventory, at lower of cost (first-in, frrst-out method) 

83,523 

251,967 
38,832 

619,156 
110,764 
81,471 

or market 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 
Office equipment and fumi~ 

Less accumulated depreoation 

1 Jabillttes and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Notes payable 
Deferred subscription revenues 

Total current liabilities 
Net assets: 

Executive office 
Net investment in equipment 
Contact magazine 
Special projects 
Convention fund 

Total net assets 

29,293 
$648,449 

$ 62,353 
144,107 

20,662 
227,122 

199,438 
29,293 

(863) 
118,878 
74,581 

421,327 
$648,449 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1996 

195,858 
4,500 

37,467 
4,454 

4.258 
46,179 

3,634 
42,545 

279,191 
30,203 

552,291 
104,732 
70,444 
34,288 

586,585 

44,104 
151,254 
20,708 

216.066 

169,943 
34,288 

(11,558) 
120,829 
57,011 

370,519 
586,585 



EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Revenues: 
The Together Way Plan receipts 
Disbursed to departments and agencies 

Subscriptions to Contact Magazine 
Sales of hymnals 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Convention fees 
Leadership Conference 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
Other income 

Total revenues 

Cost of sales and expenses: 
Cost of hymnal sales 

Expenses of operations: 
Executive Office 
Contact Magazine 
Special Projects 
Convention Fund 

Total expenses of operations 

Total costs and expenses 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

1997 
$ 3,217,745 

(2,895,593) 
322,152 
57,624 
75,236 
15,590 
9,591 

139,425 

3,634 
30, I 70 

653,422 

51,126 

324,404 
59,684 
36,563 

130,837 

551,488 

602,614 

50,808 

370,519 

$ 421,327 

See accompanying notes to finandal statements. 
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1996 
2,485,942 

(2, 165,609) 
320,333 
55,637 
94,782 
10,333 
8,299 

122,726 
4,776 

10,768 
627,654 

73,131 

326,609 
60,707 
34,099 

107,023 

528,438 

601,569 

26,085 

344,434 

370,519 

EXECUfiVE OffiCE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Costs and Expenses 

For the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Cost of hymnal sales: 
Beginning inventory 
Costs of production 

Total cost of inventory 
Less ending inventory 

Cost of hymnal soles 

Expenses of operations: 
Solories 
Housing ollowonce 
Employee fringe benefits 

ond general insurance 
Poyrolltoxes 
Trove! 
Executive committee 
Occupancy costs 
Depreciation 
Legal ond audit 
Equipment mointenoncelrenewols 
Supplies, office expense 
Printing ond promotion 
Postage I moil services 
Dues, subscrip1ions, books 
Telephone 
Writers' fees 
lntetest expense 
Auditorium 
Meol functions 
Music 
leadership Conference 
lntemotionol Fellowship 
Rest of the Family 
Ministerial Family Ufe 
Ministly to Ethnic Groups 
Doctrinal Survey 
The Together Woy Pion 
Auto ond copiet leases 
Other 
Total expenses 
Total costs ond expenses 

Executive Conhlct Special Convention 1997 
Office Magazjne Proiects &rut Totals 

s 

131,459 
35,000 

33,684 
19,554 
19,204 

1,437 
29,892 
11,028 
2,594 
2,204 

ll ,809 
3,899 

998 

2,027 

1,028 

1,170 
15,464 
1,953 

324,404 
s 324,404 

856 

646 

1,213 
34,800 
17,890 

63 
3,125 

1,091 
59,684 
59,684 

279,191 
23,902 

303,093 
251.967 

51,126 

6,569 

113 
724 

499 

7l 

42 

4 

15,620 

9,778 
990 

1,138 

1,015 
36,563 
87,689 

1,075 

52 
25,096 

1,880 

1,010 

5,781 
26,293 

680 

440 

49,700 
4,829 

911 

13,090 
130,837 
130,837 

279,191 
23,902 

303,093 
251.967 

511126 

139,103 
35,000 

33,797 
20,330 
45,156 
3,317 

29,892 
11,028 
4,749 
2,204 

18,874 
64,992 
19,610 

2,534 
3,125 

15,620 
49,700 
4,829 

911 

1,028 
9,778 

990 

l, 138 
l, 170 

15,464 
17,149 

551,488 
602,614 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1996 
Jotqls 

271 ,026 
81,296 

352,322 
279.191 

73.131 

133,267 
35,000 

36,090 
19,460 
45,457 
2,532 

30,988 
10,903 
7,115 
1,268 

26,765 
58,627 
16,953 
4,140 

.1,B61 
3,740 

13,426 
31,596 

485 
698 

6,172 

5,941 
376 
874 
828 

14,158 
18,718 

528,438 
601,569 



EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31' 1997 and 1996 

1997 
Cash Flows (rom Operatfna Actiyttles 

Increase in net assets 

AdjU;Stments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cas~ 
proVIded by operating activities. 

Depreciation and amortization 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
(Increase) decrease in: 

50,808 

Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred subscription revenue 

Net operating activities 

Ca$h flows from Investlfll ActiyitJes 
Funds held by Free WiU Baptist Foundation 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 

Cash Flows from Finandna ActMties 
Proceeds from notes payable 
Prepayments of notes payable 

Net financing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See accompanying notes to finandal statements. 
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11 ,028 
(3,634) 

(37,344) 
27,224 
(8,629) 

18,249 
(46) 

57,656 

(1 ,000) 
(6,033) 

(7,033) 

41,090 
(48,237) 

(7,147) 

43,476 

195,858 

$ 239,334 

$ 14,329 

1996 

26,085 

10,903 

(18,949) 
(8, 165) 
(2,853) 

109 
3,060 

10,190 

(500) 
(2,873) 

(3,373) 

76,973 
(65,719) 

11,254 

18,071 

177,787 

195,858 

13,426 

EXECUI1VE OFF1CE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to flnandal Statements 
December 31, 1997 and 1996 

The Exeortive Office operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt and is governed by 
the Exewtive CommiHee of the General Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Basjs of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Executive Office have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Executive Office adopted Statement of financial Atcounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, •Financial Statements of 
Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No 117, the Exerutive Office is required to report information regarding 
its financial position and activities oaording to three dosses of net assets unrestricted net assets, temporarily restrict­
ed net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Executive Office is required to present a state­
ment of cash flows. As permitted by this new statement, the Executive Office has discontinued its use of fund account­
ing and has, accordingly,reclassified its financial statements to present the classes of net assets required. Further, the 
Executive Offke adopted SFAS No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made,• as is 
required. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received ore recorded as unrestricted,tempororily restrict­
ed, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and I or nature of any donor restrictions. 

Office Equipment and Furniture 
Office equipment and furniture ore stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the useful life of the asset using the 
straight-line method. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and betterments that do not significantly 
extend the useful lives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 
The Exerutive Office is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes is 
mode in the accounts. 

Cgsh and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cosh flows, the Executive Office considers all cosh funds, cosh bonk accounts and 
highly liquid debt instruments purd10sed with on original maturity of three months or less to be cosh and msh equiv­
alents. 

Re<ognition of Subscription Revenue from Contad Magazine 
The amount of subscriptions collected ore recorded as a liability in the account deferred subscription revenues. 
Revenues ore recognized ratably over the life of the subscription. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prindples requires man­
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dote of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Compensated Absences 
Employees of the Fund ore entitled to paid vorotion, paid sick days and personal days off, depending on job dossi­
ficotion, length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the amount of compensation for future 
absences, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The Fund's pol­
icy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 
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EXECUTIVE OffiCE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIU BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Hnancfal Statements, continued 

(2) The Toaefber Way Plqn 
The Executive Office is responsible for receiving and disb . fu d . 
program. Designated contributions ore disbursed to the nou;;~gDe;o~ece;ved from ThedTogether Way Plan 
ore disbursed based on the proportionot h . en °~ agency, on cooperative funds 
tions for the year ended December 31, 19~~ :~~~:~~~g~m1e;;(, ~:~:~llowmg summarizes these tronsoc-

Receipts: 
Alobomo 
Arizona 
Arkonsos 
California 
Aorido 
Georgia 
Illinois 
Indio no 
Iowa 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Conada 
Contributions totaling S 1,000 or Jess 

Total receipts 
Disbursements: 

Exerutive Office 
Foreign Missions 
free Will Baptist Bible College 
Home Missions 
Retirement & Insurance 
Moster's Men 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Foundation 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission 
Radio & Television Commission 
Hillsdale free Will Baptist College 
Other, induding the Capitol 

Stewardship Campaign 
Total disbursements 

Designated 
s 5,809 

4,649 
159,233 

205 
433 

227,145 
125,927 
11,640 

310 
14,216 

186,509 
5,075 

538,372 
11,683 
14,439 

174,249 
640,595 
382,124 
128,688 
76;m 
9,072 

56,099 
1,588 
1,000 s 2,n5,m 

s 100,925 
1,652,641 

157,523 
723,294 
13,635 
20,527 
1,078 

13,162 
868 
808 
885 

15,066 

74,880 s 2,n5,292 
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1997 
Cooperative Total 

498 
154,954 

11,845 
24,242 
33,261 
28,089 
1,572 
2,439 
5,541 
3,244 

34,288 
4,079 

598 
12,555 
40,2n 
56,030 

1,342 
20,919 
5,1 30 

275 
920 
67 

288 
442,453 

221,227 
50,882 
50,882 
39,821 
30,972 
30,972 
1,106 

13,273 
1,106 
1,106 
1,106 

442,453 

5,809 
5,147 

314,187 
12,050 
24,675 

260,406 
154,016 
13,212 
2,749 

19,757 
3,244 

220,797 
9,154 

538,372 
12,281 
26,994 

214,526 
696,625 
383,466 
149,607 
81,362 
9,347 

57,019 
1,655 
1,288 

3,217,745 

322,152 
1,703,523 

208,405 
763,115 
44,607 
51,499 
2,184 

26,435 
1,974 
1,914 
1,991 

15,066 

74,880 
3,217,745 

1996 
12!!! 
6,342 
6,339 

344,014 
12,326 
35,188 

210,415 
133,487 
10,870 

11,119 
2,759 

207,501 
6,130 

136,290 
7,687 

22,035 
128,810 
645,714 
266,990 
127,604 
76,880 
16,691 
69,148 

1,603 
2,485,942 

320,333 
1.203,1n 

189,023 
620,837 
34,155 
42,708 
2,121 

19,660 
1,906 
1,831 
2,167 

15,543 

32,481 
2,485,942 

EXECUfiVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIU. BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(3) g. piing Legses 
The Executive Office has entered into non-cancellable lease arrangements relating to a copy machine ond 
two automobiles. Total expenses amounted to $15,464 for 1997 and $14,158 for 1995. The following sdled­
ules the required payments under these lease arrangements. 

1998 
1999 
2000 

15,464 
9,181 
2,898 

(4) lmntop of Hvmnqls 
The Exe<utive Office has on agreement with Sunday School and Church Training ond Randall House 
Publications (.,Randall House"), whereby Rando II House warehouses ond distributes Free Will Baptist ond 
"generic" hymnals. Further, Randall House invoices the customer, collects funds ond remits to the Executive 
Office $6.32 for eoch Free Will Baptist Hymnal sold. A third party distributor soles the "generic* hymnal ond 
remits to the Executive Office $5.00 for eoch "generic"' hynmal sold. 

Randall House, os of December 31, 1997, warehoused hymnals valued ot o cost of $162,000. Further, the 
printer is warehousing inventory in process valued ot o cost of approximately $90,000. 

The leather hymnals remaining from the first printing (approximately 520) valued at $24,923 hove been 
transferred to the Contact Magazine Fund and recorded as prepaid expenses. These leather hymnals will be 
given as incentives to subscribers who purchase a life time subscription to Contact Magazine. 

(5) Pensjon 
The Executive Office participates in the master pension pion of the Board of Retirement ond Insurance of the 
National Association of Free Will Boptists, lnt The plan is contributory and is matched up too maximum of 
5% of compensation. Employees may participate ot date of employment. Pension expenses amounted to 
$6,045 in 1997 ond $5,637 in 1996. The pension pion is o defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an 
account is maintained for eoch participant ond upon retirement the portidpont con either re<eive o 
lump-sum distribution or purchase one of several fypes of annuity contracts. 

(6) Notes Pamble 
10.75% demand note poyoble to The Boord of Retirement ond Insurance of the Notional Association of Free 
Will Baptists in the amount $144,107 for the purpose of production of the hymnals os discussed in note 4. 
The debt is se<ured by the inventory of hymnals ond general income ond assets of the Executive Office. 

(7) Cqpbqlized Lease Puments 
The Exe<utive Office entered into on agreement to lease space in the Notional Office Fodlity ond further 
agreed to contribute to the debt service costs during the construction period ond to continue until the debt 
hos been retired. Through the construction period, costs amounting to $10,960 were capitalized. These costs 
were amortized against operations over a five year period. During 1996,$1,095 was charged against oper­
ations which completes the amortization period. 
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1999 Salary Breakdown 
Executive Office Budget 

1997 1998 1999 
Executive Secretary 1997 1998 1999 529,954.86 (4%) 526,913.05 (4%) 527,949.57 (4%) 

Soklry 
19,(XX).00 (4%) 24,000.00 (4%) 25,(XX).00 (4%) 

Administrative $366,000.00 $370,000.00 $379,000.00 
HoosiiYJ ard U111i1ies 

7,490.09 (15.m) 7,789.70 (15.:ID¥o) 8,10118 (15.3fWo) 
Convention 115,050.00* 139,466.84** 138,358.15*** 

SOOol $ooJri1y 
1,497.74 (5%) 1,345.65 (5%) 1,397.48 (5%) 

Retirement Contact 84.000.00 88,000.00 87.000.00 4,30515 3,585.68 3,585.68 
lnsurnnce Totals $565,050.00 $597,466.84 $604,358.15 T rowVUfp/Disalili1y 754.56 815.56 815.56 

Hospital 3,319.86 2,547.50 2,547.50 
*1996 **1997 ***1998 Oen1ol 230.83 222.62 222.62 

562,247.94 s.Q3,884.08 $66,034.01 
Note: Office cor fumishOO. 

1999 
Administrative Assistant/Contad Editor Administrative Budget 524,678.70 (4%) 526,305.85 (4%) So~ry 523,114.13 (4%) 

Proieded Expenses Housirg ord Utilities 16,(XX).00 (4%) 16,(XX).OO ( 4%) 16,000.00 (4%) 
1997 1998 1999 6,223.84 (15.3(1Jio) 6,472.80 (15.3(1Jio) So<iol Serurity 5, 984.46 (15.3~/o) Salaries $147,081.73 5152,499.96 $153,999.95 1 ,233. 94 (5%) 1,31519 (5%) Retirement 1,155.71 (5%) Housing 35,000.00 35,000.00 41,000.00 6,303.60 lnsuronce 6,816.00 6,303.60 

Social Security 20,666.52 21,350.53 22,204.54 762.48 762.48 T mveV\iWDisobili1y 11!1.60 Retirement 7,099.24 7,288.88 7,350.42 5,132.88 5,132.88 
Employees Insurance 30,338.68 26,684.91 26,684.91 Hospital 5,724.58 

408.24 40814 Oen1ol 481 .82 (Dental, Hospital, Ufe, Trove!) 
Note: Office mr funishOO. 553,070.30 S54,440.08 S56.397.54 

Auditin!VL.egol 4,000.00 4,000.00 5,000.00 
Automobile Lease (2 Co~) 9,000.00 10,178.76 11,536.15 Bookkeeper 

$25,311.22 (4%) $26,323.67 (4%) Computer Supplies 7,000.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 Solory $24,337.71 (4%) 
Copier Lease 4,000.00 3,864.00 3, 928.40 Social Seruri1y 1,861.83 (7 .65%) 1,936.31 (7.65%) 2,013.7 6 (7 .65%) 
Double In A Docode 500.00 500.00 0.00 Retirement 1,216.89 (5%) 1,265.56 (5%) 1,316.18 (5%) 
Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Insurance 6,538.75 5,633.64 5,633.64 
Equipment PurchoSP/Computer 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,000.00 UWDisobili1y 33135 381.12 381.12 
Executive Comminee 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Hospital 5,724.58 4,844.28 4,84418 
Generollnsuronce 3,500.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Dental 481.82 408.24 408.24 
International Fellowship of 533,955.18 534,146.73 535,287.25 

Free Will Baptist Churches 600.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 
Leode~hip Conference 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Editorial Assistant/Secretary 

$23,793.56 (4%) $24,745.30 (4%) 525,735.11 (4%) 
Office Rento I 29,892.00 29,892.00 29,892.00 SoiOI'f 1, 968.74 (7.65%) 

($1 .00 per sq. ft. x 2,491) Social Serurity 1,82011 (7.65%) 1,893.02 (7.65%) 
1,286.76 (S%) 

Office Suppliw'Expense 6,000.00 7,500.00 7,000.00 Retirement 1,189.68 (S%) 1,23717 (S%) 
3,563.23 3,283.92 3,283.92 

Other 821.83 2,040.96 1,703.63 Insurance 
362.04 

Postage 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 UWDisobttrty 319.78 362.04 
2,69918 2,699.28 Printing 5,000.00 4,000.00 3,000.00 Hospi1ul 3,012.62 

230.83 222.60 222./J) 
Promotion 3,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 Denio I 

530,366.68 $31,152.51 S32.2Z4.53 
Subsaiption10ue!/Registrotions 2,500.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 
Telephone 3,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Yearbook Coordinator/Secretary 
Together Woy Plorv'Stewordship Education 2,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Soklry $23,348.38 (4%) 524,282 .. 32 (4%) 525,2.53.61 (4%) 
Travel 22,000.00 22(000.00 2t000.00 1,786.15 (7.65%) 1,857.60 (7 .65%) 1,931.90 (7.65%) 

SOOol Seruri1y To1als $366,000.00 $370,000.00 $379,000.00 1,167.42 (5%) 1,214.12 (5%) 1,262.68 (5%) 
Retirement 

Proiected Income Insurance 3,.560.71 3,084.96 3,084.96 

The Together Way Pion litP/Oisnbt1ity 317.26 314.88 314.88 

Cooperative Gifts $226,000.00 $228,000.00 $239,000.00 Hospi1ul 3,012.62 2,547.48 2,547.48 

230.83 222.60 222./J) 
Designated Gifts 140,000.00 1421000.00 Dental 140,000.00 

$29,862.66 ~439.00 531.533.1.5 
Totals $366,000.00 5370,000.00 5379,000.00 
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Salary Breakdown (Cont.) 1997 1998 1999 

Contoct Circulation Manager/ Receptionist ?S% 60% 
$14,846.81 {4%) 

1,135.78 (7.65%) 
742.34 {5%) 

4,793.11 

60% 
$15,440.68 {4%) 

1,181.21 (7.65%) 
n2.03 (5%) 

4,793.11 

~i Seru. $17,435.97 (4%) 
• ri1y 1,333.85 (7 .65%) 

Retirement 871 _80 (5%) 
lrmonce {60%) 5 554.74 

life/Disob11ily I 244.60 226.73 226.73 

Den
Hosptoitoll 4,488236.2868 4,214.59 4,214.59 

. 351.79 ~~--~-w--~---~~~--~3~51~.79~--------

Part-Time Help 
Solory (1 04 d~¥) 
Sotiol Security 

$2~196 36 $21,518 04 S22,18Z 03 

82 days l 04 days 1 04 days 
$5,097.12 (S7.n hr.) $6,722.56 (SB.OS hr.) $6,991.46 (S8.40 hr.) 

389.93 (7.65%) 514.28 (7.65%) 534.85 (7.65%} 
$5,487.05 $7,236.84 $7,526.31 

Convention Budget 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Proleded Expenditures 

AOOitolium 
Printing ooo Promotion 
ConYention Office 
Convermon Personnel 

Meals 
Trove! 
~ng 

Convenffon Offidols 
HooororiOOJS 
Dlmot01 SeMces 
Meol Fuomons 
Exerutive Comrnitfee 

Meal 000 Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

Total 

Proiected Receipts 

July 12-16, 1998 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 

1996 
Fort Worth 
s 34,500.00 

27,945.00 
13,895.00 
12,493.80 

1997 
Cincinnati 

s 47,580.00 
28,075.00 
16,570.00 
12,698.34 

2,280.00 
3,421.50 

1998 
Tulsa 

s 471550.00 
28,139.70 
181074.00 
10,789.89 

21052.00 
4,004.00 
61437.80 

21079.00 
21372.88 
81246.46 

9• :~ ~ 11,1105.81 l,llll8.l9 7,619.81 

5 9ss·oo um.oo 1,350.00 
i109.68 61364.00 61176.00 
1 I 800•00 2,073.68 1,858.75 

I • 11800.00 1,800.00 

--~6 474.32 11 500.00 S115,050~.00nn ___ 7.S1~39~.4~66~84~----SJ~~~3~~~·~ 

Booth Fees s 121950.00 s 
Slo!e ~ Represenlofion Fees ($25 per dlmh) 62,275.00 14,925.00 S 171650.00 
l.ocol On.rrd1 Del~ole Fees ($25.00) 2 500 00 

62~225.00 6~350.00 
~stare (Oklohoolo) 12:000:00 21500.00 1,600.00 
Ullt:llfl]S 25 325 00 201000.00 121000.00 

Total sm' o50·oon----csii3~9,87716.~84 ___ =-~44,!J;758~. 1~5 
==~~·~·~====~13~9,4~~·~84====~S~13~a3~58~.15~ 
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Convention Budget 
National Association of free Will Baptists, Inc. 

July 12-16, 1998 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 

Projected Receipts 1996 1997 1998 

Booth Fees $12,950.00 $14,925.00 $17,650.00 

State Assoc. Representoffon Fees (S2Ychurch) 62,275.00 62,225.00 62,350.00 

local Church Del~ote fees ($25.00) 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,600.00 

Host Stote (Oklohomo) 12,000.00 20,000.00 12,000.00 

Offerings 25,325.00 39,816.84 44,758.15 

Total S115,QSO.OO 5139,466.84 5138,358.15 

Proieded Expenditures 
Auditorium 
Rentol s 12,000.00 s 19,000.00 s 5,400.00 

Meeffng Rooms .00 .00 4,600.00 

Conven~on Bonner 300.00 300.00 300.00 

Flowers 150.00 150.00 150.00 

Police Se<urity 6,000.00 4,260.00 3,500.00 

Conven~an Topes 200.00 250.00 250.00 

Othet 15,850.00 23,620.00 23,350.00 

Music Stond Rentoi(Decorotor) 500.00 270.00 350.00 

Sound Systerr/AV Equipment 12,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 

Ushet Badges 200.00 200.00 200.00 

Uob.,ASCAP,BMl,lns. 800.00 800.00 800.00 

First Aid Stoft 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Courtesy Cor 150.00 150.00 150.00 

Offering Buckels 300.00 300.00 100.00 

Signs 400.00 400.00 250.00 

Total ~4.500.00 $47,580.00 $47,550.00 

Printing and Promotion 
Pubtlcity ond Art Wor\ $12,000.00 $13,000.00 ~1j,OOO.OO 

Pbltos 500.00 700.00 700.00 

Conven~an Materials 12,445.00 10,375.00 11,439.70 

Progrom~ng Sheets 3,345.00 3,156.25 3,625.00 

Song SheeWCCU Ucense 1,224.00 .00 502.20 

Digest of Repom 7,876.00 7,218.75 7,312.50 

Pre-Canven~on Plinting 3,000.00 4,000.00 3,000.00 

(Sunday CHews pre-printed, copiet reimb.) 
Total S2Z.2~5.00 S2B.OZ5.00 528.132.10 

Convention Office 
R9Jistroliolv'Pre-R~. (SupJi~es, Salaries, Pstg.) $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $3,000.00 

Registmffan Computw'Printers 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 

Poper ond Prinfing Supplies 2,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 

Equipment Rentols 2,845.00 4,210.00 3,524.00 

Copiers (2)/Poper 2,240.00 3,500.00 2,000.00 

TypewTiters (2) 105.00 100.00 100.00 

Computers,~ 350.00 250.00 1,000.00 

ToblwChoirs (Office) 150.00 360.00 424.00 

Telephone 800.00 460.00 600.00 

!Ming Convention (Office) 400.00 160.00 300.00 

Pr~ Convootion 400.00 300.00 300.00 

Office ~pplies .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 
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1996 1997 1998 
1996 1997 1998 

868.68 789.96 
~stont Moderotor -Tim York .00 Postage 800.00 800.00 800.00 

162.00 180.00 MusicoiiiiSfnRneols Renflll ooo Savice 1,950.00 2,100.00 2,650.00 Mools (lBm @ s1o.oo ml .00 
706.68 609.96 .00 P'KJilltTunifYJ 1,050.00 750.00 1,600.00 LOOgiiYJ (6 riJhls @ s 10 1.66) 

750.90 641.04 Ftdlift 150.00 150.00 150.00 
As.sistont Oerk -Keith Burden 839.25 

180.00 Organ ShippirYJ 600.00 900.00 600.00 
Mools (18 meols@ $10.00 8Kh) 216.00 162.00 

461.04 588.90 
Music 150.00 300.00 300.00 

LOOgirYJ (6 Jigh1s@ $76.84) 623.25 
.00 

Total S13,895.00 S16.570.oo S18,074.00 
1,703.10 1,102.74 Moderator (Ex-Offitio) -Ralph Hampton .00 186.48 

Convention Personnel 
Travel 434.00 

162.00 .00 Meals 
Meals 189.00 .00 754.26 

!Xlri &lodfellow (27 ~Is@ $10.00 ooch) s 216.00 s 216.00 s 270.00 lOOging 680.10 .00 .00 
Mekxly Hood (30 moo~@ $10.00 oodt) 270.00 270.00 300.00 

Hooororium 400·00 
754.26 535.62 

Steve Pote (21 mools @ $10.00 eoch) 189.00 189.00 210.00 
Usher Coordinator- Raymond lee 751.45 Marilyn Pritchard (30 meo~@ $10.00 eoch) 270.00 270.00 300.00 

lOOging (6 nigh1s@ $89.27) 
593.25 

Doonno Hollifield (18 meals@ $10.00 ooch) 189.00 216.00 180.00 
840.48 440.70 

Jock Williams (36 mools @ $10.00 each) 324.00 324.00 360.00 Music Coordinator -Randy Sawyer Anoo Worthington (30 mools@ $10.00 eoch) 270.00 270.00 300.00 IOOging (7 nigh1s@ $84.75) 
588.90 609.96 Mel~n Worthington (36 meals@ $10.00 ooch) 324.00 324.00 360.00 

Pianist-Jerry Cnrroway 367.25 Total S2.052.oo S2,079.oo S2,280.00 
I.OOging (6 nigh1s@ $1 01 .66) 

508.30 588.90 
Travel 

Organist-Carol Reid 36715 !Xlri &xxlfellow s 434.00 s 186.48 s 396.50 
IOOgirYJ (5 nigh1s @ S1 01.66) 

624.89 
MeiOOy Hood 217.00 186.48 193.00 

706.68 Registration Coordinator -George Harvey 514.15 Marilyn Pritdx!rd 227.00 186.48 193.00 Doonno Hollifield 434.00 186.48 .00 lOOgirYJ 0 nights @ $8917) 
706.68 461.04 Slew Pote(Trons.Coool.,rentoQ 1,800.00 1,200.00 2,000.00 

Press Offimr -Thomas Marberry 440.70 MoteVMools oo rood (6 ~Is@ $10.00 ooch) 228.00 54.00 60.00 lOOgirYJ (6 n~h1s@ $76.84) 
588.90 423.75 

Jod: WiUioms 200.00 186.48 193.00 
367.25 Photographer -Eddie Puyne 

Anoo Worthington 227.00 .00 193.00 
lOOgirYJ (5 nigh1s@ $84.7~ 

.00 
MeMn Worthington 227.00 186.48 193.00 

.00 Total 54,004.00 S2,372.88 $3.421.50 Tape Coordinator . 793.45 
$11.805.82 S7,619.81 $9.124.20 Total (Includes opplicoble tox and perking) 

Lodging 
!Xlri &xx!fellow (9 nights @ $89.27) s 793.45 s 980.56 s 803.43 Honorariums 

Ron Barber $125.00 Bill~ $125.00 ~ny Richey $150.00 Melody Hood (9 nights@ $8917) 966.15 1,260.72 803.43 
Robert Prichard 125.00 lDyd Locklear 150.00 Gerold Fo-Mer 125.00 

Steve Pote (8 nights @ $89.27) 661.05 838.24 71 4.16 
Mot!OOw Upton 125.00 Rardy Wilsoo 150.00 lim Hall 125.00 

Marilyn PritdMJrd (9 nights@ $89.27) 966.15 1,260.72 803.43 
Ead Hendrix 125.00 David T~ 150.00 Tr,m>n Mes5IJ 125.00 

~n H!¥!S 150.00 
Doonno Holli6eld 440.70 824.46 .00 

Melvin Worthi(YJtoo .00 Jock Williams (11 niglrts @ $8917) 1,305.15 1,540.88 981.97 Will Honoon 125.00 
Jeny Noois 125.00 EtxJere Waddell 150.00 Bob SlW.ey 125.00 

MeMn WorthirYJioo (11 n~h1s@ $89.27) 1l305.15 1l540.88 981.97 
Ridnrd AlwOIXl 125.00 George l'f110 1 50.00 Total Ondudes applicoble lox arxl porkir¥J) $6,437.80 58.246.46 $5,088.39 
Romie Adkins 125.00 J. L fm 150.00 

Thurmoo Murphy 150.00 
Convention Officials 

CocrieCorlker 125.00 
SJ.350.00 

Moderator -Corl Cheshier $1,115.55 $1,915.06 $1,216.00 
$750.00 $1.000.00 Travel (From OOIIooo Gly, OK 1o Tul5o, OK-lXl 11ik!s 

$2,059.00 
@ $.325 per 11111e) .00 409.50 97.50 

Decorator Services 
$2,580.00 $2,100.00 Mook (21 nms@ $10.00 m<h) 243.00 216.00 210.00 Boom 01} lnstollo1ioo & Drope Tables 

2,994.00 2,056.00 1,342.00 
Uxfgir¥J (6 righls @ $84.75) 872.55 889.56 508.50 

Stoge 1,490.00 974.00 Honorarium .00 400.00 400.00 Ski11i!Yjllropir¢toge Set-Up 210.00 
114.00 94.00 Oerk -Waldo Young $1,424.10 52,393.64 $1,216.00 Ski/100 Tobles'Oloirs 190.00 

1,390.00 667.00 Travel (ft001 Slm.flee, OK 10 T!Aso, OK-300 n~~1es 
Carpet 832.00 

.00 .00 @ $.325 per mile) 155.00 630.00 97.50 
Hongir¥J Bonner 100.00 

.00 321.00 Mools(21 meo~@ SIO.OOm<h) 189.00 243.00 210.00 
Usher Room Rentol 0.00 

300.00 300.00 275.00 
lOOging (6 nighiS @ $84.75) 680.10 1,120.64 508.50 

~ibitor Badges .00 .00 Honorarium 400.00 400.00 400.00 Conventioo Office ~~ mdio} .00 
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R~islrotioo 1,761.00 970.00 1,761.00 1999 
Contact Budget 

Desks 500.00 .00 175.00 Ski~ Tables 251.00 280.00 390.00 

1998 1999 

COOirs 490.00 190.00 600.00 
1997 Proieded Expenses 

$42,000.00 $42,000.00 

Eledrial"fMosking Dmpe 300.00 300.00 300.00 
$36,000.00 

EoseMrosh CollVGnpet 220.00 200.00 296.00 Printing 
17,000.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 

Total S5,958.00 ~364.00 ~176.00 Postage 
2,000.00 2,000.00 1,500.00 Art 

4,500.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 

Meal Fundions 

Writers' Fees and Photos 
3,500.00 6,000.00 4,000.00 

Exerutive Cornmitlee s 687.58 s 649.08 s 580.00 
Promotion 

3,500.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 

Coffoo Breaks (2) 250.00 250.00 250.00 
Computer/Services 

6,000.00 3,000.00 5,700.00 

luncfHm (22 ~@ SIS.OO) 437.58 399.08 330.00 
Moil Services 

200.00 200.00 300.00 

General Boord Breakfast (55 prople @ $9.75) 675.95 627.55 536.25 
Telephone 

3,000.00 3,600.00 3,000.00 

Slote l.eoders Breakfusr (45 ~@ S9.75) 482.90 447.75 438.75 
Office Supplies 

2,500.00 2,700.00 2,500.00 

Slote ExocSoc/Promo.~redo(s Breokfusr 263.25 248.75 243.75 
Travel 

600.00 .00 

(25 ~@ $9.75) 

Bound Copies 600.00 
1,500.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 

Presidenls' Breakfast (S ~@ St2.00) .00 100.55 60.00 
Other 

1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 

Total ~2,109.68 52,073.68 SU58.75 
Boolc.s, Dues, Registrations 

1,000.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 Audit 
.00 .00 

Executive Committee 

1,200.00 
Meal 000 fktel ~ 

Debt Retirement 
(To reimb. Executive Office) 

$87 000 00 

(fur the boortive Committee Meeting prior to the 1998 Notional Convention) 

$84 000.00 588.000 00 ... Total Expenses • ' 

GeooNorris $300.00 GnHmis $300.00 &nlNorris $300.00 No!OOn Ruble 300.00 Nalhon Ruble 300.00 No!OOn Ruble 300.00 
Proieded Income 

$12,000.00 $12,000.00. 
Jhurroon Mu!phy 300.00 JodRidlty 300.00 Jod:Ri<re{ 30000 

Convention coverage $12,000.00 
75,000.oo·· 72.000.00 76,000.00 

bnlly 300.00 981Johnsoo 300.00 QeoJohnsoo 300.00 
Subscriptions 

SBB.QOO.QQ $87.000.00 SB4.0QQ.OQ • 

~dJoslin 300.00 ~dJoslin 300.00 Dorid Joslin 300.00 
Total Income • 

Charles. 300.00 ChotlesTiiJpen 300.00 ChorlesTJigpen 300.00 Total SJ.Ql.OO SJ.Ql.OO SJ.Ql.OO 
•Three issues 

"*Based on 6,250 subscriptions @ $12.00 per year 
Pre-convention Expenses $6,474.32 $11,500.00 $15,000.00 
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Terry A H11l 
Ernest R Harper 

Hill, Harper & Associates, P.C 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free WiD Baptists, Inc. 

Bl'ft'ltwood E>cecutive Cmtn 
761 Old Hickory Boule-vard 
Suitr303 
Bl'ft'ltwood, TN 37(127 
TEL: 615/377·34&5 

We have audited the statements of financial position of Building Services 

Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 
31, 1997 and 1996, and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to expr~ 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements ~ free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentatioo. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Building Services Fund of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1997 and 
1996, and the results of its operatiom for the years then ended in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles. 

May 12,1998 
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BUILDING SERVICFS FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Assets 
Cash and interest bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable: 

Master's Men (rent, interest and other ch01ges) 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Other departments and unbilled items 

Total accounts receivable 
Allowance for Master's Men outstanding balance 

Net accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Note receivable: 

Sale of property 
Less deferred profits from sale of property 

Net note receivable 
Property and equipment and capitalized leases: 

Land and land improvements 
Building 
Building services equipment 
Departmental workstations 
Departmental van 

1997 
$ 28,367$ 

97,552 
1,942 

26,632 

126,126 
97,500 

28,626 
1,623 

209,671 
1,300,928 

47,520 
64,135 
13,769 

1,636,023 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 456,043 

Net property and equipment and capitalized leases 1 ,179,980 
Loan costs, net of amortization 

Uabillties and Net Assets 

Notes payable, long-term debt and 
capitalized lease obligations 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Rents collected in advance 
Accrued realtor fee 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Operations 
Net investment in property, plant and equipment 

Total net assets 

3.214 
$1,241,810 

$282,169 
2,661 
6,114 

290,944 

49,841 
901,025 

950,866 

1996 
29,736 

110,827 

19,807 

130,634 
110,000 

20,634 
1,623 

446,510 
319,421 

127,089 

209,671 
1,299,334 

47,193 
64,135 
8,769 

1,629,102 

388,106 

1,240,996 

3.539 
$1,423,617 

$798,304 
6,230 

27,718 

832,252 

145,134 
446,231 

591,365 
$1,241,810 $1,423,617 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
2 
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BUilDING SERVICFS FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Activities and Changes In Net Assets 
For the years ended December 31' 1997 and 1996 

Unrestrided Funds Capital 

···-= Building rental and other revenues 
Sole of property: (note 3) 

Interest income 
Gain recognized 

Contributions, net of campaign expenses 
Reimbursement from departments 
Other 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
Net assets released from restrictions 

and departmental reimbursements 
Net revenues 

Expenses: 
Expenses incurred for departments: 

Employee benefits 
The Together Way Plan 
leadership Conference 
General insurance 
Telephone 
Mailroom and other 
Interest expense - telephone 

Building operating expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll foxes 
fmptoyee benefits 
Janitorial services 
Depreciation 
Amortization of loon costs 
Audit and legal 
General insurance 
Interest expense 
Supplies and office expense 
Utilities I telephone 
Repairs and maintenance 
Mailroom and other 

Total expenses 
Increase (deaease) in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year 

Services for Stewardship 1997 
Operations Qepqrtmenfs Campajgn Totals 

$240,566 $240,566 

15,450 
319,421 

619 
12,500 

341,109 
929,665 

171,363 
25,614 
22,199 
12l25 
19,791 
63,253 

314,945 

30,818 
2,122 

11),489 
19,819 
67,938 

325 
4,876 

12,512 
48,679 
12,294 
26,836 
11,865 
6,~ 

255,219 
570,164 
359,501 
591,365 

$950,866 

326,584 

(326,584) 

14,525 

(14,525) 

15,450 
319,421 
14,525 

326,584 
619 

12,500 

929,665 

171,363 
25,614 
22,199 
12,725 
19,791 
63,253 

314,945 

30,818 
2,122 

11),489 
19,819 
67,938 

325 
4,876 

12,512 
48,679 
12,294 
26,836 
11,865 
6,646 

255,219 
570,164 
359,501 
591,365 

$950,866 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
3 
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1996 
Totals 

$246,626 

31,200 
50,549 
5,049 

348,433 
2,040 

683,897 

184,446 
28,201 
23,746 
26,999 
21,569 
60,085 

106 
345,152 

28,889 
2,1 00 

1!;811 
12,509 
68,628 

325 
4,149 
9,105 

74,083 
8,610 

23,258 
28,872 
~8,393 

282.732 
627,884 
56,013 

591,365 
$647,378 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL~ 

Statement of Cash flows STS, INC. 
Years ended December 31' 1997 and 1996 

Cas~ flows from OoeraUna ActiyUies J 997 
Net ~crease (decrease) in net assets 

AdJustments to reconcile net increase (d ) . $ 359,501 
assets to net cash provided (used) b ec~e ~~ ~~~ 

Y operating actiVJties · 
Depreciation and amortization · 
~ortization of loan costs 67,938 
Gam recognized on property sale 325 
Recovery of doubtful accounts (319,421) 
(Increase) decrease in: 02,500) 

Receivables 

Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable and accruals 
Rents collected in advance 
Deferred rentals 
Accrued realtor fee 

Net operating activities 
Cash ~ows from Jnvestin' ActMtles 
Collections from notes receivable 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 
Cash flows from FinancJna ActMtie 
Repayments of debt --§ 

Net financing activities 
Net decrease in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 
Supplem ental disclosures: 

Interest paid 

See accompan}'J·ng t . no es to fmancJal statements. 
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4,508 

(3,569) 
6,114 

(27,71 8) 

75,178 

446,510 
(6,922) 

439,588 

(516,135) 

(516,135) 

(I ,369) 
29,736 

$ 28,367 

$ 52,335 

199fi 

$ 56,013 

68,628 
325 

(50,549) 
-

21 ,453 

(1 ,047) 

(2,678) 
(6,048) 

86,097 

69,600 
(6,425) 

63, 175 

(149,911) 

(149,911) 

(639) 
30,375 

$ 29,736 

~ 74,189 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to financial Statements 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

The fund operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt and is governed by a 
management committee which is chaired by the Executive Secretory of the National Assocation of Free Will Baptists, 
IlK. The management committee is composed of the directors of the Departments which occupy the Notional Offices 
Fodlity. 

(1) $ummqrv of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basjs of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Fund adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, •Financial Statements of Not-f 
or-Profit Organizations·. Under SFAS No. 117, the Fund is required to report information regarding its finan­
cial position and activities according to three dasses of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restrict­
ed net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Fund is required to present a statement 
of msh flows. As permitted by this new statement, the Fund has discontinued its use of fund accounting and 
has, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to present the dasses of net assets required. Further, the 
Fund adopted SFAS No. 116, •Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made,• as is required. 
In accordance with SFAS No. 116, mntributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or 
permanently restricted support depending on the existence and I or nature of any donor restrictions. 

Prooertv qnd Equjpment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and better­
ments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets ore expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Income Tqxes 
The Fund is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income to xes is mode in 
the accounts. 

Cash qnd Cash Eguivalents 
For purposes of the statement of msh flows, the Fund considers all cosh funds, cosh bonk accounts and highly 
liquid debt instruments purchased with on original maturity of three months or less to be msh and msh equiv­
alents. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disdosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

5 
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I 

BUILDING SERVICES FlJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL 

Notes to FlnandaJ Statem ts BAPTISTS, INC. 
en , continued 

(l) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Compensqted Absence~ 
~mployees of the Fund ore entitled to id vocotio . . 
JOb do~sificotion, length of service ond~her facto~' ~~~i~ :lck do~ and perso?al days off, depending on 
~efsotion for future absences, and accordingly, no li~bTry hmp~octicoble to e~mate the amount of com­
oo statements. The Fund's policy is to recognize the c~~ f as een recorded m the accompanying finon­
employees. 0 compensated absences when actually paid to 

(2) Notes Ppygble. 1ong·term Debt qnd Cqpitqlized lease . . 
A summary of notes poyoble ond long-term debt ond mpnolized leo2!!::::~s os follows, 

Notes payable and long-term debt consist of the followin . 
85% mortgage note to the ~ w·u B . g. l22l 1m 
Extension Loon Fund Inc secu::: b 1 fi apfists Home Missions Church 
Office Facility, and by fhe furniture h~doby ~e mo~gag~ on the Notional 
in the Notional Office Facility Th. vonous epartments with-
ly payments of Sll 970 . d ·d. IS m~~age req~ires minimun I month-
ment scheduled for febr~:ryu2~~ P~~"r' ;nd 1,~erest,. ~ith final pay-
payments as cosh flow e . . e un ma~~.es additional principal 
the interest rote onnua~/mlts. Further, the note provides for revision of 

Less scheduled current moturites of notes payable 
long-term debt and capitol lease obligations ' 

Long-term portion 

$282,169 

124,429 

$157,740 
The following is a schedule b f .. 

' Y years, o motuntles of long term debt as of December 31, 1997. 

Total maturities of long-term debt 

6 

1,998 
1,999 
2,000 

A- 64 

long-Term 
Qat 

$124,429 
135,427 
22,313 

$282,169 

$798,304 

78,807 

$719,497 

BUilDING SERVICES flJND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Will BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to FlnandaJ Statements, continued 

(3) flote Receivable • Sale of Property 
This note was collected in full during 1997 in accordance with the terms of the agreement. On May 
21,1992, a contract to sell the property which had previously housed the departments of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt was executed by the Management CommiHee and a 6.3% deed of 
trust note was re<eived in the amount $725,000. The note required monthly payments of $8,400, includ­
ing principal and interest, for sixty months through August 15, 1997, at which time the unpaid balance of 
$403,160 was paid in full. The note was secured by a first mortgage on the property sold. 

As required by generally accepted accounting prindples, the excess of the sole price over the Fund's basis 
in the property and costs relating to the sole (gross gain) was recognized in the financial statements rat­
ably over the collection of the related note receivable. Further, realtor fee payable of 6% relating to this 
transaction was payable as the note is collected. 

The following table summarizes the transactions for the year ended December 31, 1997: 

Balance December 31, 1996 

Collections on note receivable 
Interest portion of collections 

Gain recognized based on collections 
Realtor fee paid based on collections 

Balance December 31, 1997 

{4) Pension 

$461,960 
15,450 

Note 
Receivable 

$446,510 

446,510 

s 

Deferred Reahors 
Profits b! 

$319,421 $27,718 

319,421 
27,718 

s s -

The Fund participates in the master defined contribution pension plan of the Boord of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt The pion is contributory and is matched up 
to o maximum of 5% of earned compensation. Employees may participate at date of employment. 
Pension expenses amounted to Sl ,372 in 1997 and $1,319 in 1996. Under the plan, an account is main­
tained for each participant and upon retirement the participant mn either receive a lump-sum distribu­
tion or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

7 
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1999 
Building Services Budget 

Proieded Income 1997 1998 1999 Murfreesboro Rood ~ 1\rymenls (7 mo. @ $8,400 mo.) s 58,800.00 s .00 s .00 Roo I Po• (August '97) 403,160.00 .00 .00 Souore ~20,329 @ SJ.OO = $20,329.00 mo.} 243,948.00 243,948.00 243,948.00 Total Income $705,908.00 $243,948.00 $243,948.00 
Projected Expenses 
Audit & legal s 9,000.00 s 7,000.00 s 6,000.00 General Supplies 3,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 Insurance (Plant) 9,000.00 11,000.00 13,000.00 Janitorial SeMces 21,000.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 Jonitoriol Sup~ies 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Moil Room 7,000.00 7,000.00 6,500.00 MoiiTnd 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 Mointeoonce (GeooroQ 25,000.00 25,000.00 15,000.00 ftr,roll Toxes (Employ!J' s S5.) 2,489.07 2,948.82 3,066.55 Posloge Me!eVUPS 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,000.00 Retirtment 1,371.99 1,59l.J9 1,654.85 Salaries 32,536.88 38,546.51 40,085.70 Tel&pOOne 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,500.00 Ufflities 30,000.00 28,739.06 25,000.00 Home Missions' Note Po;11ble (1 99,04 7.19) 
Principal & lntm Po~ 491,358.86 72,955.27 86,473.75 Principal 434,242.40 60,745.05 70,549.97 Interest (8.0%) 57,116.46 12,210.22 15,923.78 lnsurooce (Employee) 12,316.69 11,167.15 11,167.15 Rooltor' s Fee 27,717.60 .00 .00 Emergency~ food 20,116.91 .00 .00 Other 1,000.00 .00 .00 Total Expenses $705,908.00 $243,948.00 $243,948.00 

A- 66 

•lntenance Superintendent 
Sokuy 
Sodol SooJri1y 
lrmooce 

Denio I 

Building Services 
Salary Breakdown 

1997 1998 

$21,082.77 (4%) $21,926.08 (4%) 
1,612.83 (7.65%) 1,677.35 (7.65%) 
8,987.08 7,971.74 

714.10 586.22 
Hoolth 7,839.50 7,024.32 
UWOisobility 433.48 361.20 

11054.14 (5%) 1,096.30 (5%) Rldirement 
$32,671 .47 $32,736.82 

'NGI Tn.d: (Drives bock ond forth to v.urk) 

40% Receptionist 
Solory $6,356.99 (4%) $9,897.87 (4%) 
SOOol Socurity 486.31 (7 .65%) 757.19 (7.65%) 

3,195.41 lrmooce 3,329.61 
23453 Den1ol 230.83 23453 

Hoolth 3,012.62 2,809.73 2,809.73 
151.15 151.15 ~bili1y 86.16 

Retirement 317.85 (5%) 494.89 (5%) 
$10,490.76 $14,345.36 

Part-time Worker 
82 days 104 days (4% inaease) 

$5,097.12 ( 4%'7 .77hr.) $6,722.56 (4M.08hr.) 104d~¥ 
389.93 (7.65%) 5\4.28 (7.65%) Social Security 

$7,236.84 $5,487.05 
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1999 

$22,803.12 (4%) 
1,744.44 (7.65%) 
7,971.74 

586.22 
7,024.32 

361.20 
1,140.16 (5%) 

$33,659.46 

40% 
$10,293.78 (4%) 

787.47 (7.65%) 
3,195.41 

514.69 (5%) 
$14,791.35 

104 days 
$6,988.80 4W8.40hr.) 

534.64 (7.65%) 
$7,523.44 



Board of Retirement Report 
We entered the year with a great deal of uncertainty in the market Advise._ 

of all sorts were predicting "an adjustment" or at least a stagnant econolllJ 
They were wrong. 1997 was a record year for our department. Total assets 
reached an all time high, increasing $2.9 million dollars. 

New deposits were the highest ever, exceeding $1.1 million. 
The following chart will help picture those records. 

Total 
Assets 

Managed 

lnaease 
over Pre¥. Settlements 

Pgjd Out 
Deposits 
Addecl 

Cost of Cost of 
Iw Operation Qperqtjon 

{as figure) (as %) 
1993 s 9,896,389 • s 714,739 s 493,555 s 675,881 s 335,917 3.3943% 
1994 10,089,373. 192,984 532,060 693,924 304,272 3.0157% 
1995 12,579,377 2,490,004 421,526 773,7 61 305,699 2. 4301% 
1996 14,350,073 1,770,696 709,813 995,330 324,314 2.2600% 
1997 17,258,246 2,908,173 428,468 1,140,250 330,421 1.9145% 

• In addition to these figures, during 1993 and 1994 the Boord of Retirement also managed 
$906,888 and $1,370,732 respectively of funds for the Free Will Baptist Foundation. 

The dollar cost of operation remained level, but as a percentage of assets 
under management was the lowest in our history--only 1.9 I 45%. This shows a 
steady move toward our goal of less than one percent. 

A census of the participants of our plan reveals some additional encourag­
ing facts. The total number of enrollees continues to increase. 

In 1996 there were 246 participants 60 years of age or older. There were 264 
in the same group in 1997. Although 22 from this group took settlements, there 
was still a net gain of I 8 participants. 

Year 60-62 
1996 100 
1997 104 

Number of Participants Per Age Group 

63-65 66-68 69-71 72-74 75+ 
64 43 28 8 3 
74 45 26 11 4 

Total 
246 
264 

In our plan retirement settlements may be taken any time after age 62. 
There are at least three major reason for participants to remain active after 
reaching 62. 

• there is a desire to continue sharing our good earnings 
• there is a commitment to remain active in the ministry 
• there are inadequate financial means to retire 

It is our goal to provide each participant the best retirement income possible. 
For most participants, beginning this process is what determines the end 

results. 
There are three factors involved in funding retirement: money contributed, 

earnings rate and time. The more you have of any one of these, the less you 
need of the others. Since Christian workers seldom receive large salaries and 
earnings rates are very difficult to predict, the time factor is generally easiest to 
control. Starting early, therefore, is very important 
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. . ants· 37 were 40 or younger. B?th 
. 1997 we enrolled 66 ne~ ~articip the importance of early reure-

[)UrinS d employees are begummg to see 
emPloYers ~ . 1 accounts were credited 
rnent pl~~ntinued to be very good m 199~-:J:n The following is the history 

Returns d 13 5o/o earnings for the two pen · 
with 16.5% an . 
of our retufOS: 1 year returns - 15.557% 

3 year returns- 16.575o/o 
5 year returnS - 11.970o/o 

10 year returnS- 9.494% 
Life of Plan - 8.940% 
(July 1 1969-Dec. 31, 1997) rtain retirement is d earnings may be unce , . ' 

While the future of investmen an d are sure. Preparation for each one IS 
disability or the retum of th~ ~?r 

death, ·vilege and our responstbdtty. 
oothourpn 

Gratefully, 
William Evans, Director 

Board of Retirement. 
Summary of Board Meetings 

Apri129..30, 1997 - Annual meet~ allmembe~ we=Jr:!ts and churches e~ective 
New policies concerrung lo~h ~loans to offer an option of etther a 

January 1' 1998 was adopted; for urc 
fixed rate or an adjustable rate. 

• · f ation provided opportunity. 
July 21, 1997- No business conducted, aust an an orm 

.,.__ be 1 1997- Semi-annual meeting, all members pr.esent. 
lle{.em r , hi d new auditor 

Reviewed operations and re a · 
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P. 0. Box 22359, NashvilJe, TN 37202-2359 

615-320.5500 • Fax 615·329-9465 

Ind~ndent Auditors• Rwort 

The Board ofDirectors 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Board of Retirement 
and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (the "Board .. ) as of 
December 31. 1997. and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash 
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board•s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. The financial statements of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists as of December 31. 1996. were audited by other auditors 
whose report. dated April 2. 1997. expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the 1997 financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material 
respects. the financial position of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National 
Association ofFree Will Baptists as of December 31, 1997. and the changes in its net assets and 
cash flows for the year then ended in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

February 20. 1998 

M~mh.:r Thl· Mcul:lllrcy Nctwurk 
Woc-klwiJc Scrvocn Thwu~ooh RSM lnrl'rnark>na l 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TiiE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSmON 

OPERATING ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

ASSETS 

Funds invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
TotaJ operating assets 

RETIREMENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment in marketable securities and instruments, 
at fair market value (Note C) 

Accrued investment income receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
accounts of$30,000 and $60,000 in 1997 and 
1996, respectively (Note B) 

T otaJ retirement assets 

OFFICE FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT AND 
AUTOMOBU..ES, at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation (Note D) 

TotaJ assets 
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A -72 

December 31, 
1997 1996 

s 32,260 s 21,470 
--.L.lla..,.2:~t:=5~9 23.893 

43.519 45.36l 

466,201 640,327 

13,825,670 10,672,303 
79,486 118,935 

2.800.482 2.842.393 
17.l71.8l2 14,273,958 

42,888 30.752 

$17,258 246 $14 350.073 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES F) 
Annuities payable ~o~ 

ed I origmatton fees . .
1 
.. unearn oan ed nses and other habt tttes 

AccoUDts payabl~. ~ecru expe 
Total Liabthttes 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted: 

Operations: 
Opei-ating funds 
Designated f~r fu~e asset purchases 
Net invested an equtpment 

Operating net assets 

Retirement accounts: .. 
Net assets available for parttctpants 
Designated as reserve funds 
Designated as annuity reserve funds 

Retirement net assets 

T ota1 net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

s 

December 31. 
1997 1996 

566,401 
35,254 
22.046 

623.701 

19,981 
11,259 
42.888 
74.128 

16,498,506 
55,911 
6000 

16.560.417 

16.634.545 

SJ7 258 246 

s 404,451 
43,757 
20.125 

468.333 

9,241 
21,592 
30 752 
61 585 

13,700,904 
115,251 

4000 
13.820.155 

13.881.740 

$}4 350 073 

See accompany notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WU.L BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
YEARs ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

1227 
Retirement 

Accounts Operations TotaJ 
SUPPORT, REVENUE AND OTHER 
ADDffiONS 
Contributions from participants $ 1,140,250 $ $ 1,140,250 
Investment income: 
Gains of investment portfolio: 
Net realized gains 1,499,083 1,499,083 Net unrealized gains {losses) ( 82.2~5) ( 82,285) . 

1,416,098 1,416,098 Interest and dividends from 
investments (net of investment fees): 618,691 618,691 Total investment income 2,034,789 2,034,789 

Income earned from interest bearing notes: 
Interest income - notes receivable 336,964 336,964 Loans origination fees earned 8,503 8.503 Total income earned from 

interest bearing notes 345.461 345 461 

Forfeitures and late charges 
Gifts 1,282 1,282 

49,936 49,936 Gain on disposal of assets 
3,855 3,855 Reimbursement from Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 
18,000 18,000 Miscellaneous income 
4 808 4 808 Total Additions 3,521,788 16,599 3,598,387 Allocation for operations ( 266.365) 266,365 Net additions after allocation 3,255.423 342,964 3.598,387 
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1996 

Rdifement 
Operations Total 

Arr.oonts 

$ 995,330 $ $ 995,330 

630,662 
630,662 
478 348 478,348 

1,109,010 1 109,010 • 
325.637 325.637 

1,434,647 1,434,647 

371,708 371,708 
9.920 9,920 

381.628 381.§28 

2,941 2,941 

36,876 36,876 

15,000 15,000 
5.132 5.132 

2,871,554 57,008 2,814,546 
255.771 ( 255,771) 

2,871.554 312,719 2,558.775 

See accompany notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - Continued 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

122Z 
Retirement -
Accounts Operations TotaJ 

EXPENSES AND OTIIER DEDUCTIONS 
Withdrawals by participants 428,468 428,468 Insurance deductions from participants accounts 41,683 41,683 Income allocated to liability obligations 45,010 45,010 Salaries 

97,659 97,659 Housing 
38,189 38,189 Fringe benefits 
52,145 52,145 Travel and promotional 18,592 18,592 Office supplies and expense 21,991 21,991 Occupancy 
49,363 49,363 Board members expense 12,080 12,080 Legal and auditing 14,015 14,015 Depreciation 
13,487 13,487 Miscellaneous 
12.900 12.900 Total deductions 515.161 330.421 845.582 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 2,740,262 12,543 2,752,805 

Net assets at beginning of year 13.820.155 61.585 13.881.740 

Net assets at end of year J1Ci ~CiQ ~11 s z~ 1~a $16 634.545 
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1996 
Retirement 

Operations Total Accounts 

s 709,813 $ 709,813 $ 
38,493 38,493 
33,027 33,027 

97,865 97,865 
37,440 37,440 
51,087 51,087 
19,981 19,981 
23,060 23,060 
55,243 55,243 

9,575 9,575 
12,866 12,866 
9,721 9,721 

10.743 3.267 7476 
324.314 1.108.914 784.600 

1,774,175 ( 11,535) 1,762,640 

12.045.980 73.120 12.119.100 

$13.820.155 s 61 585 $13 88L740 

See accompany notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
IHE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

1997 1996 
Retirement 

Retirement 
Operations Total Accounts Operations Total Accounts 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTMTIEs 
Cash received from: 

$ $ 995,330 
Contributions from participants and employer $ 1,140,250 $ $ 1,140,250 $ 995,330 

36,876 36,876 
G1fts 

49,936 49,936 
321,708 

Income earned from interest bearing notes 306,964 306,964 321,708 
277,324 

Investment income 
658,140 658,140 277,324 

2,941 
F orfeiturcs and late charges 1,282 1,282 2,941 Reimbursement from Free Will 

15,000 15,000 
Baptist Foundation 

18,000 18,000 
3,920 3,920 

Miscellaneous income 
3,942 3,942 Cash p&d for: 

40,504) {310,844) ( 351,348) 
Supplies and employees ( 37,511) {319, 185) ( 356,696) ( 

( 709,813) 
Withdrawal of funds by participants ( 428,468) ( 428,468) ( 709,813) 

( 33.027) 
Allocation of income to annuitants ( 45.010) ( 45.010) ( 33.027) Net cash provided (used) by 

u~.959 (255,048) 558.211 
operating activities 

1.~2~.647 a47,3o7) 1.348.340 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIEs 

( 5,093) ( 5,093) 
Purchases of office furniture and equipment ( 6,809) ( 6,809) Proceeds from the disposal of equipment 

4,541 4,541 Investments: 
Purchases of investment securities 
Funds invested with Free Will 

(13,135,667) {13,135,667) {8,005,619) (8,005,619) 

( 6,000) ( 6,000) 
Baptist Foundation 

( 6,000) ( 6,000) Proceeds from sale of investment 

6,758,365 
securities 

11,398,398 11,398,398 6,758,365 Notes receivable: 

( 224,031) 
New loans made ( 266,759) ( 266,759) ( 224,031) 

676,432 
Collection of notes receivable 338.670 338,670 676.432 

( 805,246) ( 1 1.093) 
Net cash used by investing activities ( 1,6§~.3~8) ( 8,268) ( 1,673,626) ( 794,853) 

See accompany notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
1HE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENTs OF CASH FLOWS- Continued 
YEARs ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIEs 
Allocation for operations 
Net additions to annuities payable 

Net cash provided (used) by 
financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

RECONCll..IATION OF INCREASE 
IN NET ASSETS TO CASH FLOWS 
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

1997 
Retirement 

Accounts Operations 

(266,365) 266,365 
161.950 

(104.415) 266.365 

(174,126) 10,790 

640,327 21.470 

~ ~~~.,~u ~ J''~ 

Totaj 

161.95Q 

161.950 

( 163,336) 

661.797 

s 498 461 

Increase in net assets S 2, 740,262 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net s 12,543 s 2,752,805 

assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Allocation for operations 
Gains on investment transactions 
Decrease in allowance for notes receivable 
Gain on disposal of equipment 
Earnings added to investment with 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment . 

mcome 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 
accrued expenses and other 

Decrease in loan origination fees 
Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 
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13,487 13,487 
266,365 (266,365) 

{1,416,098) (1,416,098} 
( 30,000) ( 30,000} 

( 3,855) ( 3,855) 

( 866) ( 866) 

39,449 39,449 

4,172 ( 2,251) 1,921 
( 8,~03) ( 8,503} 
(1,144,61~ (259,850) (1,404,465) 

S I 525,647 SC247,30Z) S I J48 340 

1226 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

( 255,771) 255,771 
14.549 14.549 

( 241.222) 255.771 14.549 

( 222,116) ( 10,370) ( 232,486) 

862,443 31.840 894.283 

s 640 327 s 21.470 s 66L797 

s 1,774,175 $( 11,535) s 1,762,640 

11,299 11,299 
255,771 (255,771) 

(1, 109,010) (1, 109,010) 
( 50,000) ( 50,000) 

( 1,212) ( 1,212) 

( 48,313) ( 48,313) 

1,046 2,171 3,217 
( 9,710) ( 2.710) 

(243,513) (1.203,722) ( 960,216) 

~ B1J.2~2 ~Cl~~~~B) s 558 911 

See accompany notes to financial statements. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TiiE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

SUMMARy OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organ.iz.atjon 

The Board of~ement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
(the ~oard") ts operated under the auspices of The National Association of Free WiiJ 
BaptJ~ Inc. The purpose of the Board is to maintain contributory retirement accounts 
for h~~ or or~ed ministers and lay employees of churches, schools and 
denonuna~to~ agenctes of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
Board mamtains this retirement pension plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, which is an exempt church plan under the provisions ofthe code. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

~ B~ard has p~esented its Financial Statements consistent with the provisions of 
:~~anct~l Accounting Standards Board Statement of Accounting Standards No. 117, 
Ft~etal Statements ofNot-for-Profit Organizations" (SFAS No. 117). This statement 

spectfies that financial statements provided by not-for-profit organizations include 
statements of financial position. activities, and cash flows. 

The provisions of SF AS No. 117 require classification of the Board's net assets and its 
revenue, expenses, gains, and losses into three classes of net assets based on the existence 
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets of the Foundation and changes 
therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

T~mpo~ly restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
Stlpulattons that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the 
passage of time. 

P~ently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
Stipulations that are maintained permanently by the Foundation. Generally, the 
donors of these assets permit the Foundation to use all or part of the income 
earned on the related investments for general or specific purposes. 

- 12-
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
11IE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WU...L BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER31, 1997 AND 1996 

s!JMMAR Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in .the. stateme~ts of 
financial position. and the amount of change in each class of net ~ts ts displ~yed m ~e 
statements of activities and changes in net assets. The Foundation had no temporanly 
restricted or permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 1997 and 1996. 

Further the Board follows the provisions of SFAS No. 116, "Accounting for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made". In accordance with SFAS No. 116, 
contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or .P~ently 
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restncttons. 

Certain reclassifications have been made in the financial statements for 1996 to conform 
to the presentation adopted for 1997. 

Retirement Pension Plan 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board main~ns, con~bu?ons 
may be made to the Plan through employer contributions, salary reductton contn~utt?ns, 
voluntary employee contributions and general contributions. The types of contn~~ttons 
made on behalf of each participant depends on the plan type elected by the _p~etpant. 
The participant may elect from 2 plan types. Plan 1 requires employer contnbu~ons for 
such employee to be at least 5% of the employee's compensation. Plan 2 r~~s the 
total of employer contributions, salary reduction and voluntary employee contnbuttons to 
be at least 3% of the employee's compensation. A third plan exists that members may 
participate in only when they lose eligibility to participate in Plan 1 or 2. T?~ em~loyer 
contributions and salary reduction contributions that may be made for a parttctpant m any 
year shall not exceed the limits imposed by IRS Code Sections 402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on behalf of the 
participant. Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances and the plan 
elections made by each participant, as defined in the Plan, on the last day of each 
adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can be 
provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement, death or disability, participants receive payment of their individual vested 
account balances based on options and provisions as defined in the Plan. Benefits are 

recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Board has the right under the Plan. 
with the approval of the Association. to terminate the Plan. In the event of Plan 
termination. participants will become 1 000/o vested in their accounts. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE Wll..L BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

A SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - O>ntinued 

Investments 

Investments are reported at fair market value with gains and losses included in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets. 

Office Furniture, Equipment and Automobiles 

Office furniture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets, generally 3 years for automobiles and 5 - 10 years for furniture and equipment 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Board considers all cash on band, 
deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an originaJ 
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Loan Origination Fees 

A one-time origination fee of 4% is charged to borrowers to cover service fees on each 
new church loan throughout the life of the loan. These loan origination fees are 
amortized to revenue over the life of the related Joan. 

Uses ofEstimates in tbe Prel)aration of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the preparation 
of financial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility of notes 
receivable, the determination of fair value of investments, and the recovery period for 
office furniture, equipment and automobiles. Management believes that such estimates 
have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such estimates are adequate. ActuaJ 
results could differ from those estimates. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WU.L BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

B. NQTES RECEIVABI.R FRQM PARTICIPANfS OF TilE REllREMENT FUNQ 
AND CHURCHES AND DENOMINATIONAL AGENCIRS OF 11iE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Following is a summary of notes receivable: 

1997 1996 

Participant notes sewred by retirement 
account balances 

Churches and agency notes secured by related 
real property 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

$ 233,403 

2.597.079 
2,830,482 

( 30.000) 

$ 150,767 

2.751.626 
2,902,393 

( 60.000) 

s 2.800,482 $ 2.842 393 

The notes receivable bear interest at various rates from 8.5% to 15% and mature at 
various dates from 1998 through 2012. 

C. INVESTMENTS IN MARKEIABIF SECURTTIF:S AND INSTRUMENTS 

A summary of investments at market value and cost, is as follows: 

1997 
Market 

Yalue Cost Al?preciation 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposits $ 829,000 $ 829,000 $ 
Mutual funds 1,255,031 1,162,836 92,195 
Common stocks 6,050,269 5,458,141 592,128 
U.S. Government issues 5.691.370 5.386.637 304.733 

Total Investments ~ll.B~~~~22 ~~~.Bl~.~~~ ~2&2 Q~~ 

Total investment income relating to marketable securities and instruments amounted to 
$2,034,789 for 1997 and consisted of investment gains of $1,416,098 and interest and 
dividends of $618,691. Investment income represents yields of 16.61% and 18.23% 
based on the average market value and average cost of such investments for 1997. 
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$ 

Market 
Value 

35,000 
1,422,970 
4,337,962 
4.876.371 

~12.~2~ l2l 

1996 

$ 35,000 
1,319,154 
3,344,758 
4.785,264 

~2 484,126 

Appreciation 

$ -
103,816 
993,204 

91.107 

~t.J88,t22 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

C. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABT.E SECURll I BS 
AND INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

For 1996, total investment income relating to marketable securities and instruments 
~unted to $1,434,647 and consisted of investment gains of$1,109,010 and interest and 
davtdends of $325,637. Investment income represented yields of 15.11% and 16.57'~ 
based on the average market value and average cost of such investments for 1996. 

lnvestn:tent and brokerage fees totaling $85,644 and $68,286 for 1997 and 1996, 
respecuvely, were netted against interest and dividends from investments. 

D . OFFICE FURNITIJRE. EOUIPMENT. AND AUTOMOBILES 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as follows: 

1997 1996 

Office furniture and fixtures 
Computer equipment 
Automobiles 

Accumulated depreciation 

E . LEASE AND OCCUPANCY EXPENSE 

$40,203 
30,976 
19.500 
90,679 

(47.791) 

s 42 888 

$39,3 19 
29,477 
15.594 
84,390 

(53.638) 

s 30 752 

Under the terms of a lease agreement with an affiliate, the Board leases 3,933 feet of 
offic~ and storage space for $1.00 per square foot per month. The lease can only be 
temunated after any and all mortgages are paid in full on the premises. In addition, the 
Board pays additional expenses related to their share of operating and maintenance costs 
of the building. Total lease payments and additional operating and maintenance costs 
related to the lease were $49,362 and $55,243 for the years ended December 31 1997 and 
1996. , 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
niE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

f ANNUl liES PAYABI .B . -

G. 

Upon attaining retirement age, ~e retiree. has t~e option, among other:s, to cc;>n~ert .his 
participant account into an annuaty to provtde ret.l.rement benefits over his re~atrung life. 
The periodic benefit is calculated based on mortality tables considering life expectancy. 
M of December 31, 1997 and 1996, the recorded liability amounted to $566,401 and 
$404,451, respectively, and is sufficient to provide benefits over the life expectancy of 

the annuitants. 

INFORMATION REGARDING fiNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cas~ equivalents, 
investments and notes receivable to the extent cash funds are not msured by a 
governmental agency, or notes receivable and investments are not secured by mortgages 
or guaranteed by the United States Government. 

The following table summarizes the Board's accounting risk of loss: 

Amount Amount of 

Account Insured! Accounting 

Balance Secured Riskofi..oss 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
$2,800,482 $ for doubtful collections $ 2,800,482 

Cash and cash equivalents 252,280 132,261 120,019 

Funds invested with the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 11,259 11,259 

Short term liquid investments 246,181 246,181 

Certificates of deposit 829,000 829,000 

Mutual funds 1,255,031 1,255,031 

Common stocks 6,050,269 6,050,269 

U .S. Treasury notes and bills 5.691.370 5.691.370 

~12 lJ~.BZ~ ~2.21Q.~~J n.~~~ Jl2 

H. RELATED PARTY IRANSACTIONS 

The Board provided office space and certain administrative services to the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation, Inc. The Foundation reimbursed the Board $18,000 an? $15,000 for 
these services during the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively. 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Proposed Budget for 1999 Salary and Benefits Breakdown 

1996 1996 1997 1997 1998 1999 
1997 1998 1999 Proposed 

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Bill Evans 
Salaries $91,833 
Employee Benefils 

97,865 94,547 97,659 96,465 97,105 Salary $23,953.68 $24,537.09 $25,518.57 

55,421 51,087 53,743 52,145 51,200 53,569 
Housing/Utilities 20,367.36 22,000.00 22,880.00 

Housing 37,440 37,440 38,189 38,189 46,000 47,840 
Social Security 8,006.04 8,406.35 8,742.60 

TroveVPrmoo 10,000 15,861 15,000 15,483 
Retirement 3,102.47 3,257.60 3,387.90 

Auto Mointenooce 3,000 
17,000 19,000 Insurance 6,939.37 5,630.80 5,888.04 

4,120 3,000 3,110 1,000 
Future Purdxlses 6,000 6,100 

1,000 Life 742.68 739.20 739.20 

Furniture Fund 
6,000 6,000 3,000 3,000 Hospitalization 5,533.68 4,277.40 4,534.08 

-0- -0- 1,000 -0- 1,000 -0- Dental 401.52 340.20 340.20 

Plant Fuoo 50,000 
Office Expense 

53,665 50,000 49,363 53,000 53,000 Disability 261.49 274.00 274.56 

21,000 23,060 22,500 21,991 26,000 26,000 
Total $62,368.93 $63,831.84 $66,417.11 

Equiproont 5,000 5,093 10,000 7,917 30,000 10,000 
Note: Office Cor Furnished 

Publications 5,000 2,100 
Dept's SOOre of Ins. Premium 

10,000 6,592 10,000 10,000 
-().. 34 -{).. 34 -().. -{).. lay Lewis 

Alert Minislries 1,000 -{).. 

Boord Expense 
-{).. -{).. -0- -{).. Salary $21,296.58 $17,073.92 $17,756.88 

10,000 9,575 12,000 12,080 12,500 14,000 Housing/Utilities 17,821.44 24,000.00 24,960.00 

Together Way 1,000 753 750 1,068 1,000 1,000 
Social Security 7,066.18 7,419.49 7,716.27 

la]oVAOOrling 15,000 12,866 15,00) 14,015 16,00) 18,001 
Retirement 2,738.26 2,875.17 2,990.18 

Misc~loneous 2,500 348 2,500 
Insurance 3,784.00 3,140.46 3,377.52 

1,898 1,500 2,500 
Erluartiorv'Tmining 3,00) 4,142 3,00) 3,084 4,000 5,000 

Life 448.68 451.20 565.20 

Total $317,194 324,106 
Hospitalization 2,912.16 2,249.40 2,384.40 

337,229 330,627 369,665 361,014 Dental 192.36 197.52 185.52 

Disability 230.80 242.34 242.40 

Total $52,706.46 $54,509.04 $56,800.85 

David Brown 
Salary $30,407.83 $31,928.22 $33,205.35 

Social Security 5,492.79 5,767.44 5,998.13 

Retirement 2,128.55 2,234.98 2,324.37 

Insurance 8,735.29 6,580.54 6,936.12 

Life 382.68 379.20 403.20 

Hospitalization 7,578.12 5,524.44 5,856.00 

Dental 595.08 488.52 488.52 

Disability 179.41 188.38 188.40 

Total $46,764.46 $46,511.18 $48,463.98 

Diana Harris 
Salary $18,886.40 $19,830.72 $20,623.95 

Social Security 1,445.08 1,573.19 1,708.43 

Retirement 944.32 1,388.15 1,443.68 

Insurance 3,516.53 2,925.12 3,055.80 

Life 314.28 361.20 361.20 

Hospitalization 2,912.16 2,249.40 2,384.40 

Dental 192.36 197.52 193.20 

Disability 97.73 117.00 117.00 

Total $241792.33 $25J17.18 $261831.86 

••Disability Insurance is .059 per $1 00 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation Report 
What value is one rain drop? Not much alone, but joined by others they 

water the earth, fill up the rivers and streams and sustain our lives. 
It is the same way with the Foundation. No one person can fund all our 

denominational needs, but many people, churches and ministries joined 
together can. Not all gifts will, or should be immediate. 

Revocable Trusts - The Foundation manages funds for churches and indi­
viduals as interest bearing deposits. Those agreements producing income for 
either present or future projects to the churches or individuals who deposit 
them. We now offer two types of Revocable trusts; the familiar safe and steady 
one and a new High Income Revocable Trust 

Unltrust, Gift Annuities - We also manage some deferred gifts made by 
individuals. These agreements provide a good return to the donors throughout 
life, a significant tax deduction now, management of assets and income 
throughout life, and a generous gift later to the ministry or ministries of choice. 

Endowments - Other funds providing a I 00% tax deduction to the donor 
now, direct that the principal is to be invested providing an income stream to 
some ministry. Endowments can be personalized to reflect individual wishes or 
additions in any amount may be added to our general endowment agreements. 

Together our generous members faithfully give to meet ministry needs. Thank 
you for your interest, participation and prayers for our "supplying'' ministry. 

Respectfully, 
William W. Evans 
Director 

Summary of Foundation Board Meetings 

April28, 1997 -The annual Board meeting was held with all members present or represented by 
proXJ. Operations were reviewed and approved. 
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if~ Williams, Crosslin, Sparks & Vaden, P.C. 
~nillof Public Accountants and Consultanrs 

Palmer Plaza • 1801 West End Avenue, Suuc 1625, Nashville. TN 37203·2513 
P. 0. Bux 22359, Nashvill<!, TN 37202-2359 

615-320-5500 • Fax 615-329-9465 

lndejH;ndent Auditora' Report 

Tbe Board of Directors 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") as of December 31, 1997, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. for the year ended December 3 1, 1996 were audited by other auditors whose 
report, dated April 2, 1997, on those financial statements included an explanatory paragraph 
regarding the Foundation giving retroactive effect to the change in accounting for investments 
u prescribed by Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 124, "Accounting 
for Certain Investments of Not for Profit Organizations," as disoussed in Note 7 of those 
financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan .and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the 1997 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., as of December 31, 
1997. and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

February 20, 1998 

Mcml-cr The Md)I....Jrcy Nccwprk 
WuriJwcJI.' Scrv•c~-, Thruuj!h RSM lnll'm.nutn.11 
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FREE Wll.L BAPTIS 
STATEMENTS OF ;J:OUNDATION, INC. 

ANCIAL POSmON 

ASSETS 

December31 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accrued earnings receivable 

Investments at faj Certificat~ of d';~~et value (Note B): 

U.S. Government •"nst 
C 

ruments 
ommon stocks 

Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Rental property 
Unimproved land 

Total Investments 

Notes receivable (Note C) 

TotaJ assets 

-2 -
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s 350,737 

40,450 

696,000 
2,685,478 

689,630 
406,091 
178,770 
22,145 
75,000 
2.000 

4.755.114 

37.959 

$5.184 26Q 

-
s 270,428 

51,721 

693,000 
2,893,872 

259,4SS 

173,923 
29,039 
75,000 

2.000 

4.126.289 

38.377 

$4 ~~ri.al~ 

LIABn.,n IES AND NET ASSETS 

UABD..JTIES 
Liabilities to beneficial owners: 
Interest bearing revocable and savings trust (Note D) 
Future gift intereStS payable (Note E) 
Funds held for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
AccrUed earnings payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted for operations 
Permanently restricted funds (endowment) (Note F) 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Pecember 31. 
1997 1996 

$3,339,639 
834,756 

7,441 
35.108 

4.216.944 

42,665 
924,651 
967,316 

~s 184 260 

$2,749,292 
795,844 

6,946 
20.886 

3.572.968 

49,461 
864.386 
913.847 

S4 48(i 815 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FREE Wll.L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC 
STATE~SOFA~ 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

REVENUE 
Investment income: 

Interest and dividends, net of investment fees 
Realized net gains on sale of investments 
Unrealized net gains from investments 
Earnings added to permanently 

restricted endowments 
T otaJ Investment Income 

Support through "The Together Way" 
Plan and Other Contributions 

Interest income - notes receivable 
Endowment income 
Miscellaneous 

TotaJ Revenue and Support 

Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 
savings trusts, beneficiaries and annuitants 

Revenue and Support 
after Allocations 

EXPENSES 

Reimbursement to the Board of Retirement of 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists 

Salaries 
Travel and promotion 
Office expense 
Publications 
Training and education 
Legal and auditing 
Miscellaneous 

T otaJ Expenses 

Increase (decrease) in Net assets 

Net Assets at Beginning ofYear 
(As Restated on January I, 1996) (Note A) 

Net Assets at End of Year 

A- 98 

-4 -

Unrestricted 

s 284,219 
107,122 
66,420 

( 10.~27) 
446 864 

20,903 
2,340 

616 
49 

470,772 

(321.696) 

12.07~ 

18,000 
41,788 
15,996 
2,249 
1,167 
1,039 
5,159 

474 
85.872 

( 6,796) 

49.461 

s 42 665 

1997 
Permanently 
Restricted 

s 

10,897 
10,897 

49,368 

60,265 

60,~65 

60,265 

864,386 

$924,651 

-
~ 

s 284,219 
107,122 
66,420 

• 

457,7§1 

70.271 
2,340 

616 
49 

531.037 

(391.696) 

132.311 

18,000 
41,788 
15,996 
2,219 
1,167 
1,039 
5,159 

474 
85 872 

53,469 

913.847 

s 967 316 

s 186,771 
15,340 
50,172 

( 7,513) 
~44,110 

17,047 
829 
295 
141 

263,082 

(194.591) 

68,421 

15,000 
41,004 
11,341 
2,266 
1,614 
3,774 
5,306 

915 
81.220 

( 12,729) 

62,120 

s 49,461 

1996 
permanently 

Restricted Total 

s $ 186,771 
15,340 
50,172 

7,~13 
7.513 252.283 

13,992 31,039 
829 
295 
141 

21.505 284.587 

(194.591) 

89.996 

15,000 
41,004 
11,341 
2,266 
1,614 
3,774 
5,306 

915 
81220 

21,505 8,776 

842,881 905.071 

$864 386 ~ 913,847 

. otes to financial statements, See accompanymg n 
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FREE WILL BAPTisT 
STATrt.lr."1t....... FOUNDATION, INC . 

.. .... "I.Cj~ 'S OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 3 
1997 1996 4. 

CASH FLO~S FOR OPERATING Af"'Tnn-rn--... 
Cash I'CCetved for: ........ "I'~ 
Cootributions 
Investment income 
Other income 

~d to suppliers and employees 
. oo.s of earnings to revocable trusts 

saVIngs trusts benefic· · • N , . larles and annuitants 
et cash used by operating activities 

CASH FLO~S FROM CAPITAL Af"'Tnn-rn--... 
Contributions "' .... "1 '.u::,.:, 

Jn Vestment . · 
unreaJ.izcd ~me rem vested, net of n:aliud and 

ga IDS or losses on sr..-.nnt.. tran . 
Net cash 'ded --~ .. J _sactJoos 

PCOVI by capital activities 

CASH FLO~s FROM INVEsTING Af"'TnJY"Yorp..., 
N~ R~ee~vablc advances "'"" "' • ~ 

P
PnncapaJ payments received oo notes rcce 'vabl 
~liom--• f ' 1 e 

D..--t..___ _ . • -.eo mvestmeot ~rities 
.. '"YJASCS ofmvestmeot securities 

Net cash used by investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
Proceeds &om additi ACTIVrrms 
gift . ons, net of withdrawals to fu 

Net G ID~ revocable and savings trusts ' ture 
~ ~e ~ ~held for Free Will D4-tist .roretgn Misstons ......., 

Net cash ._, _ _, 
proVI~bY~Gingactivities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beg' · 
lllD1Dg of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF INC 
TO CASH FLOWS FROM~ IN NET ASSETS 

Increase in oct assets TING ACTIVrrms 
Less . 

1DCrea.sc in net assets cons 'dered . 
Realized and unrealized i 1 

• capital additions 
Decrease (increase) in a!'ru ns ~n IDVestm~nt transac:tioos 
Increase (decrease) . ed mvc:mneot nJCome 

Net-~'- nP-.1 IObyc:::rue_d earrungs payable 
~·- "'t"'taling activities 

s 

$ 
( 
( 

sc 

$ 20,903 
298,815 

3,005 
( 85,872) 

( 391,69~ 
( 154,845> 

49,368 

10,897 
60.265 

418 
1,974,121 

(2,429.404) 
( 454,865) 

629,259 

495 
629.754 

80,309 

270.428 

350,137 s 

53,469 $ 
60,265) ( 

173,542) ( 
11,271 ( 
14,22~ ( 

IS184S> I( 

Sec aCGOmpany· 
mg notes to financial statements. 
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-
$ 17,047 

l.S6,19& 
1.26,s 

( 11..220) 

{ 194 . .59l) 
( 100,§01) 

13,992 

Z • .SIJ 
2LSQj 

( 40,4.50) 
2.073 

682,790 
C2.134,298l 
0.489.885) 

1,670,810 

1.728) 
1.669.082 

100,101 

170.327 

~ZQ.~~~ 

8,776 
21,505) 
65,512) 
22,099) 

261) 

I~.~ I) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER. 31, 1997 AND 1996 

A STJMMARY OF SIGNJFICANI ACCOUNIJNG POLICIES 

free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the auspices of the 
National Association ofFree Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

1be financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

1be Foundation has presented its Financial Statements consistent with the provisions of 
Financial ACGOunting Standards Board Statement of Accounting Standards No. 117, 
•financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations• (SF AS No. 111). This statement 
specifies that financial statements provided by not-for-profit organizations include 
statements of financial position, activities, and cash flows. 

1be provisions of SF AS No. 117 require classification of the Foundation's net assets and 
its revenue, expenses, gains, and losses into three classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets of the Foundation and 
changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net. assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the 
passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Foundation. Generally, 
the donors of these assets permit the Foundation to use all or part of the income 
earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statement of 
financial position and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed in the 
statement of activities. The Foundation had no temporarily restricted net assets at 
December 31, 1997 and 1996. 

Further, the Foundation follows the provisions of SFAS No. 116, "Accounting for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made". In aCGOrdance with SF AS No. 116, 
contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or 
permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

-7-
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FREE Wll.L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER31, 1997 AND 1996 

A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Certain reclassifications have been made in the financial statements for 1996 to confona 
to the presentation adopted for 1997. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash EQuivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash on hand, 
deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an original 
maturity of three months or tess to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates in the Prq>aration of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the preparation 
of financial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility of notes 
receivable and detennination of fair value of investments. Management believes that 
such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such estimates are 
adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments 

In 1996, the Foundation adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, 
"Accounting for Certain Investments held by Not-for-Profit Corporations" (SF AS No. 
124) which requires investments to be reported at a fair value with gains and tosses 
included in the statement of activities. Accordingly, total net assets were restated as of 
January 1, 1996 to reflect the fair value of investments as follows: 

Net assets as previously reported at 
December 31, 1995 

Increase in net assets of investments previously 
accounted for at cost 

Net assets as restated at December 31, 1995 

$892,695 

12.376 

S9Q5.071 

Investments in marketable securities are valued at current quoted or estimated market 
value. Nonmarketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value 
has occurred. 

- 8-
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FREE WR.L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER31, 1997 AND 1996 

A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Continued 

Liabilities to Beneficial Qwners 

The Foundation has recorded liabilities for assets they held as trustee, intermediary, 
custodian or agent for beneficial owners of income or remainder interests. 'Genenlj, 
the Foundation's liability is limited to assets held within a specific trust or account ' 

Total investment income amounted to $457,761 for 1997, consisting of investment gains 
of S 173,542 and interest and dividends of $284,219. This investment income represents 
yields of 10.31% and 10.570/o based on the average market value and average cost of 
such investments for 1997. 

For 1996, total investment income amounted to $252,283, consisting of investment gains 
of $65,5 I 2 and interest and dividends of S 186, n 1. This investment income represents 
yields of 7.36% and 7.45% based on the average market value and ave~ge cost of such 
investments for 1996. 

-9-
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D. 

E. 

C. 

~ WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION INC 
OTES TO FINANCIAL ST A 'fEM:EN-rs . 

DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996 

NOTES RECEiyABLE 

Notes receivable co . sts fob . . 
nsl o hgatJons from related parties as follows: 

I997 
1.125% to 9 OO'A notes . b 
St Seb : receava le relating to the 

. astetn church development project in F 

thmaetuFnn~ froMim 2?0 I through 2006, guaranteed r;:Yce 
. oreagn ssrons Board of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists. 
$29,000 

1 I.So/o note receivabl d · 
of $230 through 2~ I uelm _monthly installments 

f . • re atmg to the purchase 
~copy machine b?' the Board of Retirement and 
Bap~~ of the National Association ofFree Will 

$29,000 

8.959 9.317 

$37 259 $38 377 

IN'rnREST BEARJNG REVOCABLE ANp s 
AYING TRUSTS 

The Foundation maintains revocable trusts and . 
and $2,749,292 ~ ~ecember 3I, I997 and I996 ~vmgs ~sts which totaled $3,339,639 
the trust beneticranes. The rate of interest . ? espect.Jvely. The trusts pay interest to 
earned from_ the related investments. With:wd ~ ~ependent upon the amount of income 
a 90 day notice, is without penalty and the trurastsw ro~ththe accounts, which may require 

• are wt out maturity. 

FUn!Jrn GIFT INlERESTS PAYABL& 

~e Fou~~ati9n maintains charitable unitrusts . 
grft ~Ultles amounting to $546,628 and $524~ounttng to $288, 128 and $271,271 and 
respectively. These future gift interests . • 3 as of December 31, 1997 and I 996 
to 8. 'JOA. pay mterest at specified rates ranging from 5.ooio 

-II-
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FREE Wll..L BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER31, 1997 AND 1996 

PERMANENILY RESIRICX ftn NET ASSETS -ENDOWMENT 

Permanently restricted net assets (endowment) .are subject to restrictions by the donor 
requiring that the principal, and in certain instances earnings, be invested in perpetuity, 
and only the income be distributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The rate of 
interest paid is dependent upon the amount of income earned from the related 
investments. A3 ofDecember 31, 1997 and 1996, the permanently restricted endowment 
funds totaled $924,651 and $864,386, respectively . 

RBJ.ATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Board ofRetirement and Insurance of the National Association ofFree Will Baptists 
provided office space and certain administrative services to the Foundation for fees of 
$18,000 and $15,000 for 1997 and 1996, respectively. 

INFORMATION REGARPING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Foundation has an accounting risk of Joss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents 
and investments to the extent they are not insured or guaranteed by a governmental 
agency. The Foundation may also be at risk of loss with respect to the market values of 
other investments. The following table summarizes the Foundation's accounting risk of 
loss at December 31, 1997: 

Amount Amount of 
Account Insured/ Accounting 
Balance Secured RiskofLoss 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 225,491 $ 107,263 $ 118,228 
Short term liquid investments 124,246 124,246 
Cet"tificates of deposit 696,000 696,000 
U.S. Government instruments 2,685,478 2,685,478 
Common stock 689,630 689,630 
Mutual funds 178,770 178,770 
Corporate bonds 22,145 22, 145 
Real estate investment 406,091 406,091 
Rental real property 15,000 75,000 
Unimproved land 2.000 2.000 

~~ lQ.iB~l ~.Q12.QZB ~l.QB~.ZZJ 
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1999 Proposed Budget 

Income 
The Together Way 
Gifts 
Interest Income 
Endowment 
Miscellaneous 
Mono ement Fees 

Total 

Expenses 
Salaries & Benefits 
T rovel & Promotion 
Office Expense 
Rent 
Printing 
Publimtions 
Troining & Edumtion 
Auditing 
legal 
Miscellaneous 

Actual 
1995 

s 15,053 
222 

1,046 
452 
147 

87,401 
$104,321 

$18,000 
7,446 
1,925 
4,000 
2,075 

700 
385 

3,973 
1,222 

328 

Adual 
1996 

$1 6,296 
751 

2,819 
295 
141 

48,188 
$68,490 

$54,004 
11,341 
2,266 
2,000 
1,614 

-0-
3,774 
5,186 

120 
915 

Approved Adual Approved Proposed 
1997 

$17,500 
500 
500 
400 
450 

73,650 
$93,000 

$59,350 
15,000 
2,000 
2,000 
4,500 

650 
3,000 
4,000 
1,000 
1,500 

1997 1998 1999 
$19,926 $19,000 $21,000 

977 750 1,200 
4,239 1,500 4,500 

616 300 600 
49 200 100 

53,269 86,700 70,000 
$79,07 6 5108,450 $97,400 

$57,788 $62,100 $69,700• 
15,996 18,000 20,000 
2,249 14,500 5,000 
2,ooo 5,ooo 5,ooo· 

..().. 3,500 5,000 
1,167 650 1,200 
1,039 5,200 5,000 
5,159 8,000 6,825 

-0- 500 600 
Total $40,054 $81,220 $93,000 

474 1,000 1,000 
$85,872 $118,450 5119,325 

($21,925) 

• $22,000 of Salaries and oil $5,000 of rent paid to Boord of Reti nt . b . 
reme os re1m usement for seMces rendered. 

Salary Breakdown 
Frank Giunta, Field Representative 

So lory 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Health Insurance 
Dentollnsuronce 
tife Insurance 
Disability Insurance 
Totals 

1997 
$28,885.79 

5,226.56 
1,707.96 
4,277.40 

340.20 
283.20 
175.20 

$40.896.31 

1998 
$29,801.60 

5,383.96 
1,759.32 
4,277.40 

340.20 
283.20 
175.20 

$42,020.88 
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1999 
$30,546.74 

5,517.96 
1,803.36 
4,534.08 

340.20 
283.20 
180.24 

$43.205.78 

Master's Men Report 
Greetings from the Master's Men Board: 

The 41st year of the Master's Men Department has been a happy but sad 
one a rewarding but trying one. We have seen new chapters started, renewed 
inte~st in areas and great feUowship as our men have come together. 
Exdtement has been felt as God's men joined together in meetings, activities 
and projects for His honor and glory. 

The saddest part of the year was the resignation of our director, Jim 
Vdllanee, on December 2 at the annual Board Meeting. Bro. Jim had faithfully led 
the Master's Men Department for fourteen years. He has worked hard to moti­
vate our men, provide opportunities for service and to help the department 
grow. Under his leadership, the LifeMember/LifeFriend programs were started 
which resulted in an endowment of over $100,000. The Helping Hands/Master's 
Hands Projects resulted in savings of approximately $4 million in construction 
costs for our churches. The Build-A-House program was initiated which has 
already provided $20,000 for the department with the second project now 
underway. The Master's Men Department was able to move into the new 
National Offices Building with the other departments and is paying its way. 

The National Board of Free Will Baptist Master's Men Department is 
pleased to announce the hiring of Rev. Tom Dooley as our new director. The 
board received several resumes and interviewed four men for the position. The 
seven members of the board present at the interviews unanimously felt God's 
leading toward Bro. Tom Dooley. Bro. Tom will assume the leadership of our 
department in July. 

Tom Dooley, who resigned as pastor of Harrison Free Will Baptist Church 
in Minford, Ohio, to accept the position of Master's Men, said the following con­
cerning Master's Men: 

This ministry of the denomination has been a blessing to us in a personal way. Several years ago 
while serving as a home missionary in Hamilton, Ohio, Master's Men touched our lives by providing 
our church with several volunteers who assisted us in getting our building under roof. Their spirit ol 
servanthood was an inspiration to me and the young congregation that I pastored. 

In April Bro. Tom attended the 24th Annual Master 's Men Conference. It 
was a pleasure for the board members to get to know him. He is talented as a 
~peaker and as a musician. He is the type of person who should be welcomed 
mto any of our churches or homes. 

Concerning his desire to serve as leader of the Master's Men Department, 
Bro. Dooley wrote this: 

My vision is to continue the tradition of servanthood, while seeing Master's Men achieve its 
fullest potential among our Free Will Baptist brethren . ... Men's hearts are hungry for direc­
tion, leadership, opportunities to serve, and fellowship. All the men of our denomination, pas­
tors and laymen, need to be equipped and encouraged to fulfill their responsibilities in their 
homes, churches, and communities. The Master's Men ministry has the unique opportunity to 
be the catalyst of spiritual awakening among our churches. 

In association with his pastoral responsibilities, Bro. Tom has written sev­
eraJ publications, including newsletters, brochures, gospel tracts, VBS materi­
als, youth ministry booklets, etc. He established a Ministry Resource web page 
on the World Wide Web. He has also developed a weekly e-mail publication 
entitled, "Pastor Tom's Sermon Notes," which is provided to an extensive list of 
Pastors and laymen. 
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Dr. Alton Loveless, director of Randall House Publications and a LifeMefllber 
of Master's Men, has known and worked with Bro. Tom for several years. Dr. 
Loveless said, "Tom Dooley is a man of great capacity. He is of sterling charac. 
ter and has broad abilities. He will serve the men of our denomination weD." 

Please continue your prayer and other support of the Master's Men 
Department. We have a great resource for God's work-the men of our denom.. 
ination. We must provide opportunities for service and motivate them to follow 
God's direction in His service. 

For the Master's Men Board, 

Thurman Pate 
Vice Chairman 

December 2, 1997 

Summary of Board Adivity 

The board accepted the resignation of Jim Vallance and adopted the budg­
et for 1999. 

April 24, 1998 
The board hired Tom Dooley as the new director of Master's Men. 
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MICHAEL JOHNSTON 

The Board of Directors 

Certified Public Accountant 

13166 lake Benton Rood 
Benton, Illinois 62812 

Telephone: (618)439-061 0 

The Master's Men, a Department of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Master's Men, a Department of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, as of December 31 , 1997 and 1996, and the related 
statements of activity and changes in fund balance and cash flows for the years then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. My responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those stan­
dards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that 
my 1:1Udit-provides a reasonable hosts for my -opinion. 

In my opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly the financial position of The 
Master's Men, a Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, at December 31 , 
1997 and 1996 and the results of its operations and the cash flows for the years then ended, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. 

Benton, Illinois 
May 13, 1998 
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Michael Johnston 
Certified Public Accountant 

Member of American lnstiMe of Certified Public Accountants 
THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash . 
Trust account - Build A House campmgn 
Trust account - Lifetime membership 
Prepaid expenses . 
Accrued interest receavable 
Inventories 
Cash value of endowment insurance 

Total current assets 

NOTES RECEIVABLE {Note 4) 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 2) 

CAPITALIZED LEASE, net {Note 3) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue {Note 5) 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) {Note 6) 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total capital 

Total liabilities and capital 

1997 

$ 521 
16,455 

106,634 
0 

2,599 
540 

3,761 

$130,510 

17,000 

8,257 

2,712 

$158,479 

$112,955 
1,606 
1,051 

$115,612 

($116,927) 
159,794 

$42,867 

$158,479 

1996 

$ 2,109 
10,281 

103,801 
0 

1,069 
3,800 
3,420 

$124,480 

17,000 

9,243 

2,913 

$153,636 

$114,720 
713 
709 

$116,142 

($11 0, 173) 
147,667 

$37,494 

$153,636 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCE 
Years ended December 31 

' 

REVENUE 
Dues from members 
Cooperative program 
Merchandise sales 
Interest income 
Gifts and other income 

EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel expense 
Conferences and conventions 
Office expense 
Postage 
Promotion expense 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Bookkeeping expense 
Depredation 
Amortization 
Interest expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues, subscriptions and fees 
M~~er's Hands construction expense 
M1ss1ons projects 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 
FUND BALANCE (DEFICrn AT BEGINNING 

OF YEAR 

RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING 

Unrestricted 

S 5,n5 
50,445 

148 
14,835 
56,461 

$127,664 

s 35,280 
12,6n 
9,192 

12,965 
7,644 
6,921 
1,964 

23,858 
20,292 

500 
900 
986 
201 
118 
276 
644 

0 
0 

1997 
Restricted 

s 0 
0 
0 
0 

12,7.27 
s 12,727 

s 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

600 
0 
0 
0 

Total 

S 5,n5 
50,445 

148 
14,835 
69,188 

$140,391 

s 35,280 
12,6n 
9,192 

12,965 
7,644 
6,921 
1,964 

23,858 
20,292 

500 
900 
986 
201 
118 
876 
644 

0 
0 

1996 
Total 

s 8,435 
42,410 
2,868 
9,194 

92,326 
$155133 

s 33,600 
13,867 
7,454 

13,545 
10,416 
11,300 
2,626 

18,032 
20,292 

500 
900 
986 
201 
128 
919 

1,350 
0 

648 

S134.418 S 00 S135,018 SJ36.764 

(S 6,754) S 12,127 S 5,373 s 18,469 

(JJO,l73} 147,667 37,494 19,025 

(Sl16,927l $159,794 s 42,867 s 37,494 

The accompanying notes ore on integral port of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31, 

1997 1996 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue over (under) expenses $5,373 $18,469 

Adjustments to reconcile to net cosh 
Depreciation 986 986 

Amortization 201 201 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
Change in inventories 3,260 (1 ,674} 

Change in prepaid expenses 0 100 

Change in accrued interest receivable (1,530) (33) 

Change in accounts payable (1 ,7 65) (7,1 80} 

Change in deferred revenue 893 138 

Change in accrued expenses 342 (92) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $7,760 $10,915 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTlNG ACTIVITIES 
Additions to trust accounts ($9,007) ($ 9,218) 

Additions to notes receivable 0 0 

Additions to cosh value of endowment insurance (34 1) (479) 

Additions to property and equipment 0 0 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES {$9,348) {$ 9,697) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Reduction of long-term debt $ 0 $ 0 

Proceeds from long-term debt 0 0 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 0 $ 0 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS ($ 1 ,588) $ 1,218 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,109 891 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 521 $ 2 ,109 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-4-
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1997 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of The Master's Men, a 
Deportment of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, hereafter referred to as the 
Deportment. 

GOVERNMENT - The Department operates under the auspices of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

RECEIVABLES AND AllOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS- Receivables are 
presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible by management. 
Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized using the direct write-off method. 

INVENTORIES -The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost being 
determined by using the first-in, first-out method. 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION- Property and equipment ore presented in 
the financial statements at cost and are depreciated by the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets of 3-20 years. 

INCOME TAXES - The Department is exempt from federal and state income taxes; 
accordingly, no provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the Department at 
December 31 , : 

Equipment and furniture 
less: accumulated depreciation 
Property and equipment, net 

NOTE 3- CAPITALIZED lEASES 

1997 
$26,900 

18,643 
$ 8,257 

1996 
$26,900 

17,657 
s 9,243 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists purchased an office building to house 
various departments and agencies of the denomination. The Board of Directors has 
entered into an agreement to lease space in this new building and agreed to contribute 
to the debt service costs during the construction period and to continue until the debt has 
been retired. The construction period costs of $4,018 were capitalized and will be 
amortized over a period of twenty years. 

-5-
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 1997 

NOTE 4 _ NOTES RECEIVABLE 

. · mary of the Deportment's notes receivable at December 31,: 
FollOWing ts a sum 

1997 1996 

Note receivable from John fowlkes, Vilonia, $17,000 
Arkansas; 9%; doted 4/21 /95; due on demond,__.::$!.!l..f::7~,0~00~~$;-:;l-::;7~-,0~007:\ 

$17,000 

NOTE 5 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue consists of dues, golf tournament fees, and meal tickets received for 
future years as of December 31, 1997 and 1996. 

NOTE 6- RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 

The restricted fund balance is revenue designated for specific projects and consists of 
the following as of December 31, : 

Mission projects 
Build A House campaign 
lifetime Membership 
Moster's Hands projects 
Endowment insurance 

-6-
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1997 
$8,366 
33,206 

105,168 
12,450 

604 
$159,794 

1996 
$8,356 
27,306 

103,932 
7,450 

623 
$147,667 



Proposed Budget for 1999 

Income 
Gihs 
Dues 
Rest of the Family Offering 
PromoHorVAdvertising 
Together Way Pion 

{14% Undesignoted Gihs) 
Moster's Men Conference(s) 
Moster's Hands Special Projects 
Softball Tournament 
Golf Tournament 
Missions Projects 
Other (savings) 
Build-o-House Projects 
LifeMembership 
Endo~ent Insurance 
Endowment Trust 
8-A-H Revocable Trust-Designated 
B-A-H Interest 

Total 

$39,375 
7,350 

525 
4,200 

47,250 
1,050 

10,500 
4,200 
4,200 
1,050 

105 
10,500 
6,300 

945 
4,200 
6,300 
2,100 

S150, 150 

Expenses 
Convention Booth 
Debt ReHrement 
Endo~ent Insurance 
Office, Audit 
Office, Bookkeeping Fee 
Office, Equipment Maintenance 
Office Equipment 
Office, Postage 
Office, PrinHng 
Office, Rent and UHiiHes (Sl!sq. ft.) 
Office, Supplies 
Office, Telephone 
PromotiorVAdvertising 
Solory, Cnsuollabor 
Salary, Retirement (5% salary) 
Solory, Insurance 
Salary, Poyroll Taxes (7.51%) 
So lory 
Trove!, Boord 
Trove!, Director 
Contingency Fund 
Miscellaneous 
Tronsfers to Fund Balance 

Build-a-House 
Endowment Trust 
Missions Projects 

Total 

s 525 
6,300 

945 
630 
945 
525 

2,625 
3,150 
8,400 

20,292 
7,875 
2,100 
4,200 
1,050 
1,945 
8,925 
2,921 

39,911 
2,100 

12,600 
8,011 

525 

a,400 
4,200 
1,050 

$150,150 

Salary Breakdown 
Director 

Total 

Salary 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Social Security 

1997 
$35,280 

1,764 
10,000 
2,650 

$49,694 
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1998 
$37,044 

1,852 
9,500 
2,782 

$51,178 

1999 
$39,9)} 

1,945 
8,925 
2,921 

$53,702 

Home Missions Department 
Report on 1997 

G~~!: year 1997 was a good year for the National Home Missions Depart­
ment In January we held our Second Annual Missionary Training and Evalua­
tion Conference with approximately 1 00 missionaries, pastors, and other visi­
tors in attendance. It was a tremendous time of being together and sharing 
ideaS and helps for success in the Lord's ministry. 

• On the last Sunday of March, 1997, the Roll Call was taken setting a new rec­
ord attendance of 271,45 7 for Free Will Baptists with 1, 41 0 sou1s being saved! Our 
Home Missions churches averaged 109 per church in attendance. 

• On May 19th through the 25th we held our first, and very successful, Cross­
Cultural Extension Conference conducted by Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College on 
the campus of the Seminary Of The Cross in Reynosa, Mexico. 

• There were seven newly appointed home missionary couples ... Ron and 
Janice Wallace-Fairbanks, Alaska; Mark and Susan Wheatley-Louisville, Ken­
tucky; Tim and Robyn Osborn-Memphis, Tennessee; Paul and Patricia Col­
lins-Harrisonburg, Virginia; Kerry and Janet Candy-Maumelle, Arkansas; Ste­
phen and Susie Robinson-Flagstaff, Arizona. Keith and Janet Bartlett were ap­
proved as home missionaries for Castaic, California. This is a "Seedling Project," 
a new concept in church planting, sponsored jointly with the National Home 
Missions Department, California State Mission Board, and the West Coast Associ­
ation Church Planting Board. 

* Our Free Will Baptist Cross-Cultural Ministry was expanded by the approval 
of three couples: Omar and Maria AUaro-Joint Project with Florida; Carlos and 
Sarah Rubio-Joint Project with Tennessee (both in Hispanic Ministry); and Dr. 
Fbul and Velina Jbrk-home missionary (a Korean ministry), making a total of 10 
newly appointed missionaries. We also had a new chaplain to be approved for 
service in the U. S. Army-Rev. Richard Anderson. 

• We had three missionaries to go self-supporting this year - Rev. James 
Childers, South Carolina; Rev. Jim Nason, New Hampshire, and Rev. Howard 
Gwartney, Arizona. We praise the Lord for the faithful work of these missionary 
families and commend them on a job well done. 

* ln the new Prayer Partners Program we enlisted over 100 partners who 
are praying for our department on a daily basis. 

*The Home Missions Department received a record offering of $3,342,567.36. 
We ended the year with our General Fund in the black and the missionary deficit 
of $111,000. For all that has been accomplished, we give thanks and praise and 
glory to God! 

We want to wish a sincere thanks and a heart filled with gratitude to all of 
G?<f's people who have made all of this possible by your generous gifts and 
fruthfu] prayers. 

In His service, 

Trytnon Messer 
General Director 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
National Home Missions Board Meetings 

for 1997 

February 24, 1997 
MSC to approve Mark Wheatley as an Associate Missionary to the AbundaJt 

Grace Free Will Baptist Church in Louisville, Kentucky. 
MSC to dig a new well on the property of the Seminary Of The Cross Bible 

Institute in Reynosa, Mexico. 
MSC that we lend $50,000 to the Lakeside Free Will Baptist Church in 

Norman, OK. 

April 3, 1997 
MSC to approve Ron and Janice Wallace as missionaries to Fairbanks, 

Alaska. 

May 5-7, 1997 
MSC to approve Paul and Patricia Collins as Joint Project workers with the 

National Home Missions Board and the Virginia State Home Missions Board. 
They will be joint project workers to Harrisonburg, Vrrginia. 

MSC to lower the interest rate for CELF loans and investors by 1/2% begin­
ning July 1' 1997. 

The Board discussed the Pineville, Louisiana, church and property. MSC to 
give the General Director authority to pursue everything necessary to retain the 
property. 

MSC to present a plaque and $500 at the National Association July 1997 to 
James Childers, Chesnee, SC; Howard Gwartney, Mesa, AZ; Jim Nason, 
Laconia, NH and a plaque to Mark Vandivort in appreciation for his years of 
service to the National Home Missions work. 

MSC to adopt the proposed Mission Statement It will read: Home Missions 
exists to exalt Jesus Christ and fulfill the great commission by using the efforts 
of missionaries and chaplains to communicate the gospel, make disciples, and 
plant new churches within the United States, Canada, Mexico and the U.S. ter­
ritories such as the Vugin Islands and Puerto Rico (Matthew 28: 19-20). 

MSC to accept the proposed Code of Ethics. 
MSC to recognize Delmar Hopkins as a tentmaker to Nampa, ID. 
Discussion was held about the perception and status of the Home Missions 

Department. 
Brother Messer presented Enough is Enough. MSC that our Board, in con­

junction with Randall House, adopt the program Enough is Enough and invite 
others to join. 

December 1-3, 1997 
MSC to approve Carlos Rubio jointly with Tennessee as an associate mis­

sionary and to assist us in the cross-cultural ministry. 
MSC to approve Keith Barlett as a missionary for the Seedling Project in 

Castaic, California. 
MSC to approve Dr. Paul Park as a Home Missionary to Anaheim, California, 

and to work in evangelism and the cross-cultural ministry in America. 
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. t the Hildago State in 
MSC to grant the request of Roulste Sanal c~e~ ttryo r:~ ~e Aztec Indians. The 
. and to also have a cross-e t_ur rrurns 
~~ Director will determine her till~ and salary. . . to Puerto Rico. 
lJeiMSC to accept the resignation of ~guel Vera, ~ss;: March 1' 1998. 

MSC to place Bhargill Reag~~~::::~ ~IT~ofo: each missionary buildirtg 
MSC that we c e a . th Ch h Extension Loan Fund. 

fund investment account ~aceCdoamts' ~esia~~on but place him on designated 
MSC that we accept • un ~ ' 

support until March 31, 1J99ul8.1 1998 as the date for Mike Criswell to go self-sup-
MSC that we accept Y , ' 

~C that the Home Missions Board goes on record as adopting church 

planting as our priority. 

National Home Missions Depamnent 
Mission Statement 

. . Chri t and fulfill the great com-
Home Missto~ exiSts to exalt fJes~s. ~es and chaplains to com­
mission by usmg the efforts o rrussto h h . th-
municate the gospel, make diMscip~es, ;g th~ ~e:~t:O~s ~;as 
in the United States, Canada, .ex~co : · ) 
the Vrrgin Islands and Puerto Rico (Matthew 28.19-20 . 
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BOARp OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE 

OF HILL BAPTJSTS 
THR UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 

Pecember 31, 1997 and 1996 
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HINTON. WARREN. 

DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERTIFIED PU8l.IC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE SPEHCE lllOG. SUITE 200 
6405"£NCEI.AHE 

-.LE, TN 37217-1150 
(61S) -.5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. 

Antioch, Tennessee 

.......... 
AMERICAN INSllTUTE OF 

CERTlFIEO PU8UC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PU8UC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of December 
31, 1997 and 1996 , and the related statements of activities and cash flows for 
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organiza.tion • s management. OUr responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits . 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United 
States of America, Inc. as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles . 

February 19, 1998 
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BOARD OF HOME HISSIQNS OF THE 
NATIOJW. ASSOCIATION OP FR1B !fiLL BAPTISTS 

or THE QNITBD STAIBS or N1BRICA. INc. 
Statemeotp of Pintncial pgpition 

pecember 31. 1997 and 1996 

ASSBTS 

Assett 
Cash - Note 9 
Investments in Church Extension 
Loan Fund - Note 6 

Accounts receivable - related party 
Inventory - Note 1 

- Note 6 

Property and equipment, at coat 
leas accumulated depreciation of $66,626 
($68,316 in 1996) - Notes 1 ~ 2 

Capitalized lease - Note 3 

LIA8ILITIBS AND NET A$SEIS 

Liabilitiet 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred compensation - Note 4 

Total liabilities 

Commitmentp - Notes 7 ~ 8 

Net aaaeta 
unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted - Note S 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountantp' report and accompapying 
notep to the financial statements. 
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$ 

U27 

187,074 

1,029,125 
90,000 

8,526 

167,549 
8.743 

Sl.191. op 

$ 25,115 
156.284 

181.)29 

289,133 
1.020.485 

1.302.618 

Sl.U1. op 

$ 

129§ -
319.011 

825, ,.2 
30,000 
15,742 

169,101 
11. §57 

$1,371,570 

$ 20,217 
166.§00 

186.817 

133,263 
1.051.490 

1 f 184 I 753 

Sl. J7L 57Q 

BOARD or HeMS MISSIONS OF l]IE 

NATIONAL A$SOCIATION OF fRBI WILL BAPIISTS 
Of THE UNITBD STATES OF AMIRICA. INC · 

stateroentp of Activities 
for the Years £nded pecember 31. 1227 and 1226 

gnrutricted 
aevenue : 

cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees - Note 6 
Interest income 
Gain (loss) on disposal of property 

and equipment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses : 
Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 

Total expenses 

Increase in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue : 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets 

Total increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accomoanving 
notep to the financial statements. 
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1227 

$ 114,952 
615,688 

60,000 
83,613 

4 ,076 

2.660.617 

3.532.006 

722,458 
2.660.677 

3.383.135 

15:!,871 

538,159 
2,091,512 

( 2,660,677) 

( 31. 006) 

124,865 

1.184. 753 

$1,309.618 

1926 

$ 112,866 
574,127 
60,000 
57,059 

5,752 

2.266.307 

3.076.111 

707,890 
2.266.307 

2.274.197 

101,:!1~ 

507,972 
2,076,502 

( 2.266,307) 

318,167 

420,081 

764.672 

$1,184.753 



Operating activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile i 
net cash provided b ncrease in net assets to 

Depreciation y operating activities : 

Amortization 
(Gain) loss on di 

sposal of property and equipment 

Chang · es ~ operating assets and 
(In ) . liabilities: crease decrease 
(I l.n receivables 

ncreaae) decrease in i nventoriea Increase (decrease) . 
~ accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Increase (decrease) i 
n deferred compensation 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities 

Investing activities 
Redemption of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on sale of property and . 
Purchases of property d equl.pment 

an equipment 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Financing activitieg 
Payments on notes payable 

Net cash u db se y financing activities 

Increase (d 
ecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Supplemental disclogure
1 

Cash paid during the years 

beginning of years 

end of yeara 

for interest 
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( 

( 

c 

( 

§ 

§ 

1997 

$ 124,865 

16,786 
2. 914 . 

( 4 ,076) 

c 60,000) 
7,216 

4, 898 
c 10.316) 

82.287 

161,176 
364,320) ( 
11,247 
22.104) c 

214 I 301) ( 

-o- ( 

·0- c 

132,014) 

319.088 

187.974 § 

-0 - § 

l?tt -
$ 12o,011 

1,,452 

( 
2,114 
5, 752) 

( 30, OOOJ 
c 3,1271 

'· 142 
p.u~ 

42t.su 

25,100 
16l,U71 
10,295 
2f.UOJ 

142. 122) 

20. 251) 

20.2511 

254,412 

61. §Of 

312. Oil 

1,215 

JIOt• 1 -

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF DiE 
flATION&L A$SQCIATIQN OF fRBE !ILL BAfTISTS 

Of '1'RB UNITBP STAIBS OF N1BRICA. INC· 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Pecember 31. 1997 and 1996 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missiona of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit 
organization affiliated with the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization 
ia to establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches in the 
United States (including u.s. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and 
Mexico. The Organization • s support comes primarily from donor 
contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptista, Inc. In addition , the 
Organization bas been determined by the Internal Revenue service not to 
be a •private foundation• within the meaning of 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 1997. 

Tbe following aignificant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements : 

ll•i• of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which involves the application of generally 
accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains are 
recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized whe.n 
incurred. 

Ba•i• of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SPAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-tor­
Profit Organi%ations. Onder SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required 
to report information regarding ita financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets , 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets. 

Uee of eatimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates 
that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from t .hose estimates. 

-s-
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Note 1 -

BOARD OF 80MB MISSIONS OP TUB 
HATIQNAL A$SQCIATIQN OF PBEB WILL BAfTISTS 

OP THE UNITED STATBS OP AHBBIQ INC I 
Notea to the Financial Stat•menta 

oecemker 31. 1997 and 1996 

OraMization and ou!!JilArv of significant accounting ooliciea (Conu .... 

Investments 

Investment. consist of investments in the Church Extension Loaa 
Fund. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates 1narket nl• 
at December 31, 1997 and 1996. 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with tilt 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SPAS llo. 
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Hade. b 
accordance with SPAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted suppon, 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nat~ 
of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipulated ti~ restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities •• 
net assets released from restrictions. The Organization has no 
permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, 
all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 and an 
estimated useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed 
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally 
as follows. 

AUtOIDObile 
Office furniture and equipment 

S years 
3 - lO years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out 
method) or market. 
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Note 4 -

tv and equipmeDk nooer__ 

A sUJII'IIAtY of propertY 
and equipment is as follows: 

1997 

Land - pyerto Rico 

AUtomobile 
office turniture ~ equipment 

·--·-•lated depreciation Less: ,....._. .... ,_ 

$105,000 
36,lll 
92.953, 

234,175 
( §6.626) 
§167 I 542 

in accgunting estimate 

1996 
$105,000 

35,201 
97.216 

237,417 
( §8.316) 

UU· 121 

1 s and change --
~apiealizedease chased an office 

f Free Will Baptists pur omin&tion 
The National Association o to and agencies of the den . 

· ous departmen in this new 
building to house va~~ into an agreement to lease s~a~ecosts during the 
The Board baa entere contribute to the debt aerv c a been retired. 
building ~d agr~:: ~d to continue until the deb~t~ized in 1991 and 
construct~on per iod costs of $18,802 were cap~ The BOArd of Home 
The construction per a period of twenty years. after a period 

~- amortized over maining balance 
were to ~ i amortizing the re e for the years 
Missions voted to ~~g in 1996. AmOrtization expens 
of five years, beg~ in 1996) . 
amounted to $2,914 l$2,914 

oeferre4 cnmpensation ed compensation for each 
issions provides deferr and years of 

The soard of some M mbining a percent of salary loyment is 
d on a fo[l'IIUla co th employee when emp 

employee base i is payable to eh deferred compensation 
i e The compensat on is a s .. --sry of t e serv c · . .., __ 

teradnated. The followi.D9 

account. 

Balance at beginning of years 
contribution for the years 

Missionaries 
Administrative employees 

Transfer and terminations 
Balance at end of years 
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1997 
$166,609 

26,747 
11.786 

l u.842l 
$156 I 284 

1996 
$148,755 

26,623 
18,970 

( '27.748) 
n6§.620. 



Note 5 -

Note 6 -

BOARD OF HQMB MISSIONS OF TRB 
NATIONAL A$SQCIATION OF FRBB WILL BAPIISTS 

OF THE UNITED STAIES Of AMERICA INC I 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Qecember 31. 1997 and 1996 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the 
following purposes: 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

1997 
$1,019,215 

1.270 
$1,030.485 

1996 
$1,044,133 

7,357 
§1.051,!90 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. 
They are releaaed when the donor restriction is satisfied. 

Related PartY transactions 

The Board of Home Missions provides office space for and pay. 
the salaries of the employees of a related party, the Church 
Extension Loan Fund. During the years, the Church Extension Loan 
Fund paid the Board of Home Missions a management fee of $60,000 
($60,000 at December 31, 1996) to reimburse the cost of the office 
space and salaries. The Board of Home Missions has invested money in 
a demand note of the Church Extension Loan Fund. The balance in thi1 
investment at year end was $1,029,125 ($825,982 at December 31, 
1996) . This investment is uncollateralized . The Board of Home 
Missions' management constantly scrutinizes the monthly financial 
statements of the Loan Fund to make sure that the Loan Fund is 
solvent and to minimize the credit risk of the inveatment. This 
investment is short term in nature and the interest can be changed, 
therefore cost approximates fair value. 

The Board of Home Missions has a receivable from the Church 
Extension Loan Fund for unrestricted earnings during the year . The 
balance on this receivable at year end was $90,000 ($30,000 at 
December 31, 1996) . 
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Mote 8 -

Mote 9 -

to a lease agreement on 
d f some Missions e.ntered ~ f nee Will Baptists, 

The ~~0 :ith the National A&so~i~~~ne~nse for the year 
october 1, d storage space . Tb of the lease will 

rnc. ~~~ ~~f~~~.~o ($50,220 in 1~:1~din~:r:e::tisfied, which 
amoun . 11 mortgages on the 
expire when a 
approximates 10 years . 

The 

•• followa: 
pa.-nta are -

future minimum lease z""·-

1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
Thereafter 

$ 50,220 
50,220 
50,220 
50 , 220 
50,220 

355.285 
.§506 I 385 

The Board 

ipment as collateral 
has pledged its properti ~:ne~ Free Will Baptists, 
that the National A&soc a d 

a mortgage note 
me . hal with the 

Church Extension Loan Fun . 

. of credit risk . 
concentrat1on -- of the federallY 

on 

d 
-·intains cash deposits in exces~ the excess amount 

The soar .,_ At December 31, 199 ' i 1996) The 
d amount of $10o,ooo . 7 074 ($219,088 n . 

insure d limit was $8 , bank which invests 
over the federallY ins:r~t agreement with a localities under a 

soard has a c~:~h o:"~Ight in U.s . aove~t a:~. under th~ terms of 
any excess AnY cash not insur t securit1e1. 
repurchase agree;:n~~llateralized by u.s. aovernmen 
this agreement, 1996} invested in a 

1 has $1,029,125 ($825,982 in This note is uninsured. 
The soard a so tension LoaD Fund · 

d Ote O f the Church Ex 
deman n 
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Note 10 _ 
Pair val 

ues of financ ial 
---- instruments 

The followin 
Organizati in g methOds and assumpti 
instrumen on estimating its ta· ons were Used 

ts: 1r Value disclosures by the 

for financial 

Cash, cash equivalent 
payable s, investments s : The car in , receivabl 
financial position ry g amounts reported in ea and 
short maturiti ApProximate fair Val the statement of 

ea of those instruments. ues because of the 

SUPPl!6J!ENTAR.Y INfORMATION 
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HINTON. W ARREN. 

DENNEY & WALLACE 
aRT!FitO "'*-lC ACCOUNTAHl$ 

"THE SPeiCE 111.00 SUfTE 200 
-SPEHCEUINE 

NASHVILLE. lN 3nH-1150 
(&I&) :W.SIOO 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEHENTARY INFORMATION 

To the Board of Trustees of 
the Board of Home Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
of the United States of America, Inc . 

.......... 
AMI!RICAH INSliTVTE OF 

aRTlFIEO "'*-lC ACCOUNTAHlS 
lENNESSEE SOCI£lV OF 

C£RTlFitD "'*-lC ACCOUNTAHlS 

OUr report on our audita of the basic financial statements of the 
Board of Home Missions for 1997 and 1996 appears on page 1 . We conducted 
our audita in accordance with generally a ccepted auditing standards for the 
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole . The schedule of functional expenses is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is no t a required part of the basic financial 
statements . Such info rmation has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole . 

February 19, 1998 
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80ARp or H9MR MISSIONS O~TRB 
NATIQNAL ASSQCIATION or FRBB N:~ ~STS 

OP THI YNITBD STATBS Of AMRRI • . 
Schedule of functional Bxpe~ 

For the Yea&• lnded Pecembor 3~7 and 1996 

Administrative expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Housing allowance and employee benefits 
Employee savings 
Cost of literature 
Promotion expense 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Inaurance expense 
Telephone 
Interett expenae 
Amortization 
Together Nay Office 
Hiacellaneoua 
Depreciation 

Total administrative txpenaes 

Miasionary expenses 
Salary and wages 
Employee savings 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Literature 
Auto and travel expense 
Insurance expense 
Missionary land ~ buildings 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous other expense 

Total ~ssionary expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants• reoort on supplementary information, 
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UlP 

$ 195,850 
7,928 

77,775 
11,786 
2,497 

35,207 
7,728 

21,286 
1o&7,081 
50,220 
17,515 
40,271 
15,74o& 
38,982 
9,874 

2,914 
8,88o& 

14,130 
16.786 

12~.~~!! 

1,797,580 
26,747 
5,875 

70,931 
37,286 

176,205 
63,219 

365,243 
87,565 
3Q,Q26 

2. 66Q, 677 

§3.383.135 

19?§ -
$ 214' 'st 

13,650 
67,340 
18, Sst 

215 
36, 751 

6,243 
15, 754 

117,231 
50,220 
3,375 

38,UI 
15,734 
o&1, 804 
10,153 
1, 215 
2,914 
6, 566 

30,105 
16.152 

7Q7,UQ 

1,681,070 
26,623 

6,264 
57,032 
26,750 

162,793 
55,868 
78,0·U 

112,061 
59,825 

2,266.307 

$2.974,197 
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Home Missions Department 
Proposed Faith Budget for 1999 

Missionary Maintenance 
Salaries 
Travel & Promotion 
Employee Savings 
Postage & Handling 
Miscellaneous 
Land & Building Fund 

Total 

Missionary Assistance 
Printing & Postage 
Telephone 
Board Member Expense 
Auditing & Legal 
Literature 
Together Way Office & WNAC 
Supplies 
Missionary Training 

Total 

Administration 
Salaries 
Housing 
Payroll Taxes 
Employee Savings 
Insurance 
Utilities 

Total 

Evangelism and Church Growth 
Auto & Travel 
Promotion 
Revivals 
Roll Call Sunday 

Total 

Plant 
Office Space 
Equipment & Supplies 
Depreciation 

Total 

Cross-Cultural Ministry 

Total Faith Budget 

1998 1999 

$1,720,000.00 $1 ,950,000.00 
140,000.00 
30,000.00 
55,000.00 
20,000.00 

175,000.00 

215,000.00 
30,000.00 
40,000.00 
30,000.00 

420,000.00 
$2,140,000.00 $2,685,000.00 

$ 110,000.00 $ 
10,000.00 
20,000.00 

4,000.00 
4,500.00 
9,000.00 

25,000.00 
45,000.00 

$ 227,500.00 $ 

$ 250,000.00 $ 
40,000.00 
12,000.00 
10,000.00 
40,000.00 

6,500.00 
$ 358,500.00 $ 

$ 40,000.00 $ 
35,000.00 
12,000.00 

2,000.00 
$ 89,000.00 $ 

$ 50,000.00 $ 
20,000.00 
15,000.00 

$ 85,000.00 $ 

90,000.00 
10,000.00 
20,000.00 

6 ,000.00 
5,000.00 
8,000.00 

25,000.00 
25,000.00 

189,000.00 

225,000.00 
40,000.00 
12,000.00 
15,000.00 
40,000.00 

8,500.00 
340,500.00 

40,000.00 
40,000.00 
12,000.00 
3,000.00 

95,000.00 

50,500.00 
20,000.00 
20,000.00 
90,500.00 

$ 100,000.00 $ 100,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 $3,500,000.00 

A- 136 

&a•aral Director 
So lory 
Housing 
Utilities 
Savings Bonus 
Insurance: 

Trove I 
Ufe 
Health 
Dental 

Totals 
Oftice cor fumished 

DiredOr of Development 
So lory 
Housing 
Utilities 
Savings Bonus 
Insurance: 

Travel 
life 
Health 
Dental 

Totals 
Oflice cor furnished 

Salaries 

1997 
$48,756.48 

10,800.00 
2,600.00 
2,800.00 

60.00 
286.68 

4,036.92 
340.20 

$69,680.28 

$32,823.00 
16,800.00 

2,800.00 
2,273.11 

60.00 
286.68 

2,122.92 
185.52 

$57,351.23 

Director of Missionary Assistance$37 ,623.00 
Salary 12,000.00 
Housing 2,200.00 
Utilities 909.22 
Savings Bonus 
Insurance: 

Travel 
life 
Health 
Dental 

Totals 
Office cor furnished 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Social Security 
Savings Bonus 
Insurance: 

Life 
Health 
Dental 

Totals 

60.00 
286.68 

5,524.44 
488 52 

$59,091.86 

$27,725.99 
2,121.03 
1,386.29 

194.28 
2,122.92 

185.52 
$33,736.03 

1998 
$50,706.73 

10,800.00 
2,700.00 
3,075.33 

60.00 
286.68 

4,036.92 
340.20 

$72,005.86 

$34,135.92 
16,800.00 

2,900.00 
2,546.79 

60.00 
286.68 

2,122.92 
185.52 

$59,037.83 

$39,127.92 
12,000.00 

2,400.00 
1,022.55 

60.00 
286.68 

5,524.44 
488 52 

$60,910.11 

$28,835.02 
2,205.87 
1,441.75 

194.28 
2,122.92 

185.52 
$34,985.36 
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1999 
$52,734.99 

10,800.00 
2,800.00 
3,176.72 

60.00 
286.68 

4,050.00 
350.00 

$74,258.39 

$35,501.35 
16,800.00 

3,000.00 
2,615.06 

60.00 
286.68 

2,200.00 
190.00 

$60,653.09 

$40,693.00 
12,000.00 

2,500.00 
1,053.86 

60.00 
286.68 

5,600.00 
saooo 

$62,693.57 

$29,988.42 
2,294 .10 
1,499.42 

200.00 
2,200.00 

190.00 
$36,371.94 



Publications Editor 1997 1998 1999 Na~~:.~s~~~~a~i~~:~: ~!P~J!ent So lory $24,228.42 $25,197.55 $26,205.45 Social Security 1,853.47 1,927.61 2,004.71 
1999 Goals 

Savings Bonus 1,211.42 1,259.87 1,310.27 
State 

$260,000 

Insurance: 

45,000 

life 194.28 194.28 200.00 Ala.baJl1a 

180,000 

Health 2,122.92 2,122.92 2,200.00 Arizona 

60,000 

Dental 185.52 185.52 1l31 0.27 ArkanSaS 
12,000 California 

Totals $29,796.03 $30,887.75 $32,110.43 

118,000 Canada 
CELF 55,000 

loan fund Secretary 
Colorado 105,000 

13,000 

So lory $19,720.20 $20,509.00 $21,329.36 
Florida 

96,000 

Social Security 1,508.59 1,568.93 1,631.68 FWB Foundation Savings Bonus 986.01 1,025.45 1,066.46 
Georgia 1,000 

Insurance: 

Hawaii 6,000 
Life 194.28 194.28 200.00 

Idaho 50,000 
Health 2,122.92 2,122.92 2,200.00 

Dlinois 60,000 
Dental 185.52 185.52 190.00 

Indiana 2,500 
Totals $24,717.52 $25,606.10 $26,623.50 

Iowa 25,000 
75,000 Kansas 

Kentucky 20,000 

Secretary 

Louisiana 5,000 

So lory $19,720.20 $20,509.00 $21,329.36 
Maine 35,000 

Social Security 1,508.59 1,568.93 1,631.63 
Maryland 20,000 

Savings Bonus 986.01 1,025.45 1,066.46 
Massachusetts 100,000 

Insurance: 

Michigan 100,000 

life 184.80 184 .80 200.00 
Mississippi 150,000 

Health 2,122.92 2, 122.92 2,200.00 
Missouri 500 

Dental 185.52 185.52 190.00 
Montana 19,000 

Totals $24,708.04 $25,596.62 $26,617.50 
New Hampshire 3,000 
New Jersey 15,000 

Secretary/CELF Bookkeeper 
New Mexico 230,000 
North Carolina 130,000 

So lory $28,058.06 $29,180.38 $30,347.59 

310,000 Ohio 

Social Security 2,146.44 2,232.29 2,321.58 

10,000 Oklahoma 
Savings Bonus 1,402.90 1,459.01 1,517.37 

110,000 Oregon 

Insurance: 

2,000 

life 194.28 194 .28 200.00 Other Income 

45,000 

Health 2,122.92 2,122.92 2,200.00 Other States 

5,000 Pennsylvania 
Dental 185.52 185.52 190.00 

155,000 

Totals $34,110.12 $35,374.40 $36,776.54 Puerto Rico 
South Carolina 8,000 
South Dakota 450,000 
Tennessee 75,000 
Texas 2,000 
Utah 120,000 
Vrrginia 40,000 
Vllgin Islands 7,000 
Wdshington 55,000 
West Vrrginia 2,000 
Wisconsin 95,000 
WNAC 18,000 
Wyoming 

$3,500,000 
Total1999 Goals 
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CEJITlFIEO PUeUC ACCOUHTNfiS 
n<E SPENCE lllDG_ SUf'I'E 300 
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~ T>Ul''lU-tUO 

16 t 5I )1164 tOO 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' 5 REPORT 

TO the Board of Trustees of the 
Chur ch Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

AM£AICAH INSTlTVTE OF 
camFIEO PU8UC AOCOUHTNfiS 

TENNESS£E SOCIEIY OF 
CERT1FIEO PU8UC ACCOUI<r<\NTS 

we have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1997 
and 1996, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organizati on's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
s tandards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
s tatement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, , in all material respects, the financial position of the Church 
Extensibn Loan Fund as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
genera~ly accepted accounting principles. 

February 13, 1998 
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CIDJRCH EXTENSION LOAN fUND 
Statements of Financial Position 

Peceffiber 31, 1227 and 1226 

ASSETS 

Assets 1927 

Cash - Note 7 $ 1,094,823 
Notes receivable - Notes 1, 5 r. 9 9, 426,4 70 
Bonds receivable 65,678 
Accrued interest receivable 75,914 
Property and equipment - at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation of $7,079 
($16,552 in 1996) -Notes 1 r. 2 23,Q82 

Total assets $10,685.974 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSEtS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable - · related party- Note 5 
Accrued interest 
Revocable and irrevocable trusts - Note 10 
Deferred compensation - Note 11 
Notes payable - Notes 3, 5 r. 9 
Note payable - other - Note 4 

Total liabilitie.s 

Net assets 
unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 

-2 -
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$ 90,000 
96,139 

646,868 
260,657 

8,610,398 
5.810 

2,7Q9,872 

976,102 

976.102 

§10.685.974 

-
$ 2, 03'·251 

7 ,&Jo,~~a 

61,01$ ,.,,. 

$10.002 .• 

$ 30,001 
101,771 
604,005 
205,774 

8,270,8U 
11.211 

9, 22;1, Ul 

778,80? 

7781809 

$10 I 002,508 

CHURCH £XIBNSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Activities 

for the d d pecember 31. 1997 Years En e 

aevenue: ted contributions - Note 6 oesigna 
rnvest.ent inco~n notes receivable 
Interest income property and equipment 
Gain on sale of 

~Xpenses: 

Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 

t fee - Note 5 Managemen 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 

Loan losses Will Baptists Home Missions Transfer to Free 

Increase in net assets 

- beg'nning of year Net assets ~ 

Net assets - end of year 

, t and accompanying See accountants repor 
notes to the financial statements. 

- 3-
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and 1996 

Unrestricted 
1997 1996 

$ 182,414 
73,620 

831,770 
1.754 

1,Q89,558 

636,096 
9,443 

22,178 
66,480 

6,990 
2,209 
4,525 
5,344 

139.QOO 

822,265 

197,293 

778,809 

~ 976.102 

$ 119,313 
102,942 
735,229 

957,484 

672,944 
5,178 

17,341 
66,480 
17,483 

2,519 
3,750 
5,100 

21,614 
30.000 

842,409 

115,075 

663,734 

$ 778.809 



For the 

Operating Activities 
rncrease in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile i 
to net cash provided b ncrease in net assets 

Depreciation Y operating activities: 
Loan losses 
Gain on sale of prn....rty ·-d 

--~ -~ equipa~ent 

Changes in operating assets d 
Crncrease) decrease in ac~ li~bilities: 
rncrease Cdecrea•e) in rued 1nterest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in =~~ounts . payable 
rncrease (decrease) in d ~rued 1Dterest payable 

e~erred compen.ation 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchase of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of i 
Coll i equ Pllllnt 

ect on on notes receivable 
Addition. to notes and "-~-

-..UUJO receivable 

Net caah used in inveating activities 

Financing activitieo 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 
~ditions to notes payable 
epayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 
rncreaae (decrease) in h 

cas and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at ~ 
~inning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Supplemental discloaure1 rnterest received 

Interest paid 

end of year 

!0! accouotanto• report d 
notes to the financial .::;;;:~anying 

-4-
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and 1996 

1997 
199§ -$ 197,293 $ 115,075 

5,344 
5,1oo 

( 1,754) 
21,614 

( 11, 223) 
60,000 

( 5, 631) 
?4.883 

298.912 

( 19,530) 
2,650 

1,104,993 
( 2.705,374) 

( •.uz.~u> 

141 , 892 
( 99,029) 

1,640,819 
( 1.,30§,761) ( 

376.921 

( 941,428) 

2,Q3§,2H 

( 

( 

( J '200) 
( 9. 000) 
( 161) 
( 54. 80~) 

74.62§ 

1,387,243 
2 I 141, 289) 

7~4,Q4 6) 

35,005 

1,744,831 
9Zl., 274) 

808,562 

L 907.109 

§1.091.823 §2.036,251 

§ 889.764 

§ 641, 727 s 673.105 

JIOt• 1 -

CHQRCH EXTBNSIQN LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

I>ece!!!ber JL 1927 and 1226 

Qrganization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization 
under the direction of the Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the united States of America, 
Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee . The purpose of the FUnd is to 
loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission 
Churches, for purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's 
support comes primarily from interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 
501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the 
Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a 
•private foundation• within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 
1997. 

The following significant accounting policies have been 
followed in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Fund prepares its financial statements using the accrual 
method of accounting which involves the application of generally 
accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains are 
recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements 
of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Fund is 
required to report in£ormation regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted 
net assets. 

Use of eetimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of 
estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

-s-
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CHURCH 8XTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

Note 1 - Organization and summary of tiqnificant accounting policies (Contin~ 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendatio.ns of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS llo. 
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. 14 
accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded aa 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the 
nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipu~ated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and r~ported in the statements of activities u 
net astets released from restrictions . The Fund has no temporarily 
restricted or permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all 
expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 with a usefw 
life of at least two years. Depreciation is computed on a straight­
line basis over the useful lives of the aa1ets generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

5 years 
5 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a se~rate 
component in unreatricted net assets . 

-6-
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CJIURCR §XTBNSIQN LCW! l'UN[) 
~he Financial Staternentl 

Hot'Dec:tllbtr 31, 1997 and 1.996 

i policies (Continued) 

QX9anization and 
i ' ficant account_nq ----summarv of s qn1 -----

Hotel receiv&ble 
. 1 Ba tist Churches, primarily 

Note 2 -

The Fund loans money to Free W11 p d d buildings . Each 
th purchase of lao an i a 

Mission Churches, for e . aeon the property or s gn 

:=ch is re~ir;~~~i:;~e a:df~:~~r=~t~ng the 1~:~;: ~~I~l:n:~thlY 
deed of trus . fifteen year period except for c 1 The Board of 

t 9 5\ over a . ay interest on Y · 
a . . . which are requl.red to p i able as other interest construct1on h notes rece v k t 
Trustees changes the rat~ on tl::eof these loans approximates mare 
rates change . The carry ~~c:~ed throughout the pnited States. 
value. The churches are 

The 
notes are as follows : ' t ' es of these aggregate matur1 1 

1998 
1.999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
Thereafter 

f doubtful accounts Alloyance or 

$ 41.3,308 
.54,328 
499 , .18 
548,984 
603,470 

6,906.962 
§9c p6, 470 

and notes receivable to be fully 
for doubtf~ accounts is ment considers accounts 

Manage no allowance 
collectible; accordingly, 
required. 

catb equivalentS 
i th a maturity li id investments w 

The Fund con•iders all highly ~o be calh equivalents . 
of three months or less when purcha•ed 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property 
and equipment follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

-7-
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1997 
$ 18,200 

llc 2§8 
30,168 

( 7, QU) 

s v,ou 

1226 
$ 15,714 

J.Q,617 
26,351 

( 1§. ~~a> 

~ 21 7 22 



Note 3 - Notes paYMle 

Motes P.yable conaitt of 5 1/2 - 7t untecured demand note
1 

f~ 
individuals and churchea. The proceeda of these notes are then 10111ed 
to churches to help the• purchase land and buildings. The Board of 
Truateet change the interett rates on these notes payable as Other intereat ratea change. 

Note 4 - Note panNe - other 

Note 5 -

The Fund entered into an agreement with a contributor to pay tlle 
contributor $500 per month for 72 montha in exchange for hia $90,ooo 
contribution. This agreement resulted in a notes payable with an 
unttated intereat rate. Using an imputed interest of 6t, the note~ 
discounted to a present value of $30,170. The amount of the 
contribution waa then reduced by the preaent value of the note payable 
to $59,830. The balance of this note at DeceMber 31, 1997 was $5,810 
($11,281 at December 31, 1996). The interett rate is comparable to~ 
interest rate that the Fund is paying on itt unsecured demand notes. 
Therefore, the balance approximates fair value. 

Related party traosactionl 

The Pund paid the Board o f Home Hisaions of the National 
Atsociation of Free Will Baptistt , Inc. a management fee of $66,480 
($66, 480 at December 31, 1996) to reimburae the Board of Home Missiona 
for aalary, rent and other txpentea paid by the Board. The Board of 
Home Niaaiont haa invested in the note payable of the Fund. The 
balance of this note payable to the Board of Home Missions at year end 
was $658,246 ($552,195 at December 31, 1996). The Fund had account• 
payable to the Board of Home Hiationa in the amount of $90,000 ($30,000 at December 31, 1996). 

The Fund holds a note receivable from the National Association of 
Free Will Baptiata, Inc . in the amount of $282,169 ($798,304 at 
December 31, 1996). This note ia tecured by a deed of trust note. 

Note 6 · PedgnatesJ contribution§ 

The designated contribution. are amounts given to the •suild My 
Church• program. The monies given to this program are loaned to 
churchet in the same manner that other funds are loaned to churches. 
When the total amount given through the Build My Church program reaches 
$1,000,000, then the interest earned from the loans made with the 
program will be used to purchase land for Home Mission's Churches. The 
total amount given through the end of the year is $950 , 141 ($767,728 at December 31, 1996) . 

-8-
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Mote 9 -

CBQRgl BXTBifSIQN LOAN FQND 
NQtea to the Financial Statement• 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

cgpcentration of credit risk 

h depositt in exce•• of the federally 
The Fund .. intains cas mbe 31 1997 the excess amount f $100 000 At Dece r , , 96) 

intured amount o , . . wat $994 ,823 ($1,936,251 in 19 . 
over the federally intured hmit t with a local bank which 
The Fund has a caab management agr~~ns Government Securities under a 
invettt any exceta catb ove~!:h~otni~u~ed should, under the terms of 
repurchate agreement . Any . d b U S Government Securitiet. 

e--~t be collateral~ze Y · · thit agre ...... • 

Fair value of financial instruments 

hods and aaaumptiont were used 
The follow~i-.~ing its fair value ditcloturet Organization in •• ma 

by the 
for financial 

int trume:n tt : 

ivable payablea, accrued Cash, accrued interest rece d , at ion. The carrying 
intereat payable and deferre c~finan~ial poeition 
amountt reported in the statemen f the short maturitiea of 
approximate fair values becaute o 
those inttrumenta. 

i able and bondt receivable : B&ted on Notes rece v. ing value 
current intereat rates, ~he c;r~e notet receivable 
approximate• the fair va ue :0, 31 1997 and 1996 . 
and bon.c:ls receivable at Dece r , 

. Based on current interest 
Notes payable and trusts. ximatee the fair value th carrying value appro 
rates, e 1 d bonds receivable at of the notea receivab e an 
December 31, 1997 and 1996. 

Concentration 

which 
notes 

Included in notes 
total $2,575 ,367. 
receivable . 

receivable at December 31, 1997 are 
This one balance represents 27.32t 

eight loans 
of total 

. t four notes which total $5,210,623 or 
Notes payable include thir y- hi ty-four notes payable, two able of these t r 60.52t of total notes pa;t f.total notes payable. 

total $1,158,246 or 13.4 o 

-9-
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CHQRCJI IXTIHSION IQAH PUND 
Notes to the rinancial $t:=ntl 

Pecembs;r 31, 1997 and iii§ 

Note 10 - Reyoclble and irrevocable trusts 

Nine irrevocable and four rev 
pay interest at 9t per year The ~ab~e charitable remainder truete 
make IIIOrtgage loana . Inter~st pr ncl.pal of these trusts was 
1997 amounted to $54 , 909 ($51 4~ense f o r the year ended Deceabe~~ 

Note 11 - Peferred compensation 

, at December 31 , 1996) . 1, 

Deferred cnmna~ ti 
-~~sa on represents saving 

the Board of Home Missions of the N ti a trusts transferred fraa 
Baptista for the benefit of their ; . onal Association of Free Will 
retirement or departure from Home ~i;ncipal employees upon their 
at a rate of lOt per vear I t sions . These trusts pay inter•-
De z · n erest expens f - .. 

cember 31 , 1997 was $23 , 096 ($25 e or the year ended 
, 807 at December 31 , 1996). 
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sunday School and Church Training Report 
We praise the Lord for allowing your Free Will Baptist Sunday School and 

(]IJrCh Training Department-Randall House Publications-to celebrate 36 
~ of operatio~ this y~ar. We thank the Lord for a denomination with the 
foreSight to perrrut our exJstence. 

We praise the Lord for the privilege to report an increase in sales. Our 
priceS are reasonable and our student books alone average about $.50 less than 
most of our competitors. The sales volume increase permits us to hold our 
prices down and gives us the opportunity to continue to improve our technolo­
rl enabling better design, color, and graphics. It enables us to give up-to-date 
details to our curriculum and to add a number of new products. The Primary 
and Junior curriculums have new writers and formats. We are re-designing 
UfeQuest, Lifeline Devotional Calendar/Journal, Focus, Nursery-Preschool 
Teaching Pictures, and Primary-Junior Teaching Pictures. 

In improving our products, we never sway from staying true to Scripture 
and Free Will Baptist doctrine. On the other hand, our competitors are not Free 
Will Baptist and many support the National Council of Churches if they use the 
International Lesson Series. 

Our Spanish sales are up, and we praise the Lord for the opportunity to 
reach out into our cross-cultural world. 

We are appreciative for the 12 years of faithful service of Dr. Irvin Hyman, 
and for the four years of faithful service given by Rev. James Forlines. We pray 
God will continue to bless them in their fields of service. We are pleased to 
have added to our staff as adult editor, Rev. David Kilgore. We have also added 
a new bilingual employee. 

We are happy to announce the publishing of two new books: A Free Will 
Baptist Handbook by Matt Pinson, and Beyond the Gate, an autobiography of 
Mrs. Mabel Willey, written with the aid of Dr. Mary Ruth Wisehart and printed in 
both English and Spanish. 

While our bottom line shows less money left over from last year, you will 
no~e that our debts have been reduced greatly with our only long-term debt 
bemg $149,000.00 and nearly $200,000.00 has been spent for additional com­
puters, folder, IRT software, and numerous other items to better equip us to do 
our work and produce a better product. 

We are grateful to be able to announce that for the first time since 1971, 
Randall House does not have a long-term debt Our rapid debt reduction plan 
was working in reducing the expense of the building payment, but the sell of 
3.~8 acres of land has allowed us to complete our projections months early. 
This will save us over $90,000.00 in interest since the note was not due to be 
r>aid off until the year of 2008. 

We are asking the convention to approve changing our fiscal year from 
~cember I- November 30 to the calendar year (January 1- December 31). This 
Will save our employees from doing our inventory during the Thanksgiving week­
end and will allow our report to the convention to be more up-to-date. 

Alton Loveless, General Director 
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1997-1998 Minutes' Summary 
of the 

Sunday School & Church Training Board 
of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 

The Sunday School and Church Training Board met three times this Pll 
year. 

The first meeting took place at the National Association in Cincinnati, Qti). 
In that meeting we elected our officers for the coming year and received cu 
committee assignments. Dean Jones was commended for the fme job he cld 
during this year's NYC program. One individual was added to the approved 
writers' list and approval was given to pursue the autobiography of Mabel 
Willey. 

The second meeting took place in Nashville, Tennessee, immediately rol­
lowing the December 1-2 Leadership Conference. Two writers were approved 
and our Editor-in-Chief, Brother Keith Fletcher, was commended for his work. 
The financial report was accepted and the Board adopted a contract for the 
General Director. The Board voted to pursue the acquisition of an administra­
tor. Approval was given to print Mabel Willey's autobiography in Spanish as wei 
as English. 

The third meeting took place April 27 and 28, 1998, in Nashville. The 
General Director, Editor-in-Chief, and the NYC Director each gave reports to the 
Board and each report was approved. Auditors Terry Hill and Ernie Harper gave 
an overview of the fmancial statements of RHP and answered questions 
addressed by the Board. The Board added three individuals to the approved 
writers' list, voted to change the fiscal year end date for RHP from November 
30 to December 31 and voted to approve the 1997 audit The Board voted to 
increase the General Director's salary package by 3o/o and adopt the proposed 
budget for 1999. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jeff Crabtree, Secretary 
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Terry A. Hill 
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Hill, Harper & Associates, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 
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ren
1 

Oldtwood Er ec Is;~ 
Hickory•a•iliill 

SuitrJOJ 
Brentwood, TN :D1Z7 
TEL 61S/Jn-3415 

We have audited the statements of financial position of Sunday School and a 1 
Training Board and Randall House Publications as of November 30, 1997 and 1996, ... 
the related statements of activity and changes in net assets and cash flows for tbe ,_ 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bc.ata 
management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stat~ 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted audilii 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obelia 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matail 
misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suJIPOIIic 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also iDChldel 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made ~ 
management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aU mataill 
respects, the financial position of Sunday School and Church Training Board u4 
RandalJ House Publications as of November 30, 1997 and 1996, and the results of ill 
activity and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, in 1996 the board changed its me~ 
of accounting for contributions and its method of financial reporting and financial 
statement presentation. 

March 2, 1998 
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CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
suND~=-: HOUSE pUBUCATIONS 

Statements of Financial Position 

November 30, 1997 and 1996 

~ 

Or-' assets: . 
OSb and interest ~g depoSits 
Q::rtificaleS or depOSit 

11015 recejvabl~ ~de, net or allowance for doubtful acoounts 

o£$7,000 
Employees and other 

Total reoeivables 
. fi t-o t method) or market 

(Dventory, at lower of cost (flrsHn, IrS u 
Deferred charges and prepaic.l expenses 

Total current assets 

PropertY. plant and equiprrent and capitalized teases, at cost 

Land 
Building 
Printing service equipment . 
(){(ice and administrative eqmpment 

AutomObiles and trucks 

Less accwnulat.ed depreciation and amortization 

Net property, ptanundequipmeot and capitalized teases 

Olherassets: fA__.;'Y.,tiooof$1462in 1997,and$1,143 in 1996 
Loan cost. net o .... ..., • ...._ • tbod) market 
Inventory' at lower of cost (first-Ul. first-Out me or 

Total other assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Omentliabilities: 'talized lease obljgations 
Ourent installments of tong-Cenn debt and capl 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to affiliated organization 

Total current liabilities 

long-Vnn debt and capital tease obligations 

Net assets 

Commitments 

'-'A A • • -· to fiDancial statements . .,..... accompanym~ no ..... 

2 
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s 

s 

s 

257,602 
100,000 

280.337 
2,198 

282,535 

443,200 
30,956 

1,114,293 

140.341 
695,966 
600,210 
597,621 

51,698 

2,085,836 
1,407,748 

678,088 

3,.'\23 
375,2.'\7 

378,560 

2,170,941 

12,564 
85,250 
64,764 

2,851 

165,429 

137,260 

1,868,252 

$ 2,170,941 

1996 -
377,043 
100,000 

260,434 
3,690 

264,124 

436,116 
22,156 

1,199,439 

140,341 
685,485 
596,209 
543,.'\89 

51,698 

2,017,122 
1.304.320 

712,802 

3,642 
366,662 

370.304 

2,282,545 

26,907 
102,403 
63_:\12 

1,567 

194,189 

308,084 

1,780,272 

2,282,545 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHUROI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Statements of Activity and Chan&es in Net Assets 

For the years eaded November 30, 1997 a.ad 1996 

Revenues: 
Net saJes: 

Ouriculum (net of point of sale discounts of $318,915 in 1997) 
Randall House books 
Merchandise 
Vacation Bible School 
Bookstore 
Printing 
Other sales 

Net sales 
Freight and handling 
Other income 
Youth income from conferences an related services 
Commission income on hymnal sales 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales: 

Inventory at beginning of year 
Merchandise pun:hases 
Depreciation 
Editorial and printing preparation 
Printing production 
Spanish department 

Less inventory at end of year 

Selling, general and administtative: 
A.dm.inislr.ltive 
Bookstore 
Bookkeeping 
Building 
Sales and promotion 
Shipping 
Youth department: 

Conferences and related setvices 
General and administrative 

General 
Amortization of loan costs 
Depreciation 
Interest e:tpmse, including finatJ<:e charges 

Total expenses 

Increase in oet assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

See accomp.aayiog IIOtes to r~.~~aocial statcmeats. 
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$ 

$ 

1997 

1,873,653 
40,700 

3,.'\38 
318,491 
181,858 
72,751 

2.490,791 
97,999 
24,029 

167,644 
50,536 

2,830,999 

802,778 
357,067 
43,552 

330,877 
774,413 
21,087 

2,.l29,774 
818,437 

1,511,337 

125,051 
94,634 

156,279 
149,018 
128,977 
224,730 

96,615 
104,057 
77,590 

319 
59,875 
14,537 

1,2.l1,682 
2,743,019 

87,980 
1,780,272 

1.868.~2 

1~ 
--..; 

1,83U. 
S7.21J 
20M~ 
S.nt 

244,5112 
109,447 
70,491 

2.;\43 •• 
96,975 
22,996 

176,20 
S0,679 

2,690.6112 

839,798 
244,864 
43,152 

340,862 
681,SU 

23,944 
2,174,161 
so;m 

1,371,383 

11s,3n 
81,031 

174,597 
140,244 
122,552 
165rl7J 

120,925 
99,307 
74,635 

319 
55,358 
34,066 

1,186,779 
2,558,162 

132,520 

1,647,752 

1.1so.m 

AY SCHOOL AND aruROI TRAINING BOARD 
sUND AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For die year~ elided Noveabu 30, 1997 aad 1996 

See accompanying DOtes to rmaDCial statemellls. 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND aruRCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

November 30, 1997 and 1996 

1bc Board operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by 
1 

Board of Directors. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

ln 1996 the Board adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, "finuc:ill 
Statements of Not-!or Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Board is required to lqJQit 

information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes .of net ._. 

unrestricted oet assets, terqxxarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricled oet assets, if any. Ia 
addition, the Board is required to present a statement of cash Oows. As permitted by this new sta~ 

the Board discootiued its use of fund accounting and has., aca:>rdingly, reclassified it firuux:ial statenn~s 

to present the classes of net assets required. 

Accrual Basis 

1be financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of aca:>unting. 

Inventories 

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by use of the weighted 

average methcxi 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant aod equipment are stated at cost. Expe.nditwes for maintena~ and repairs, reoewals., aad 
bettennents that do not significantly extend the useful Jives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Amortization of Loan Cost 

Loan cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the loan. 

Income Taxes 

lbe Board is exeaq>t from Federal and state income taxes; aca:>rdingly, no provision for income taxes is 
made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For pwposes of the statem!nt of cash flows., the Board considers all cash funds, cash bank armunts and 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or l.ess to be cash and 
cash equivalents. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial sta~nts in conformity with genemlJy accepted aCCOI.mting princ.,les 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect ceJtain reported amounts and 

disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could diller from those estimates. 

5 
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(I) 

(2) 

LAND CRURal TRAINING BOARD 
stJND~=ALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statemeats, continued 

f S. ificant Accounting Policies 
Suaunarv o •VI 

~pensated Absences . . days on, depending oo job 

of the Board are entitled to p;ud SIC~ _days ~ ~ the amount of co~nsation 
Emp~ ~gtb of service and other [actors. It IS unpraellc to ded . the accompanying financial 
cJasStfteatia\,bsen'"t'S and accordingly, no liability has been recor tn nsated absences wben actually 
(or future • ' r . to recognize the cost of these compe 
saatements. 1be Board's po ,cy ts 

paid lo employees. 

· · 1 Instruments Fair Value of Fmancla ble and acaued expenses 
. bl inventory aC(l)Ullts paya f 

The carrying value of cash, accounts reoeava e, . f ~ jnstrumems. 1be carrying values o 
f the short matunty o 

.. nnrnximate fair value because o . . ed fair value of these instruments. 
"'t'Y· - . lly difrerent from the esttmal 
· bil' · are oot matena '' 

ha tues Deb d Ca italized Lease Obli ations 
p ble Loo erm t an Notes a a . rzed tease obligations is as follows: 

of notes payable, long-ierrD debt and capt Ia ' 
A summary 1997 

Loo.....tM"M debt· 
6 --- . • · ble to a local bank. payable 

9 75% installment obhgatioo paya . . through 
. . installments of $2,371 including mterest. . 
m monthly wed by $50 000 certificate of depostt 
2000. 1'be note was sec a • . 
and related equqxnent. 1'be note was paid ore during the year. 

local bank payable in 
7% installment obligation payable to a . . ' h 

tbly insWJments of $2,2A8 including tntereSI. throug 

; secured by first mortgage lien on all real property aod 

improVements. 

Total long-term debt . 
. obl" ~•:..-...• · 9 1% to t6.8% obligations under capttal Capital lease .g.__.. . 

leases payable monthly $5,402- see note 2 

Less currelt maturites of loo~ debt and capital 

tease obligations 

149,824 --
149,824 

149,824 

12,564 

$ 137,260 

. . L- ""··l .. by years of matwities of long term 
debtasofNovember30, 1997. 

lbe followmg tS a scuouu -. • 
November 30, $ 

1998 

1999 
2000 

2001 

2002 
2003 and thereafter 

$ 

6 
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1996 -

122,280 

211,541 

333,821 

-

1,170 

334,991 

26,907 

308.084 

12,564 

13,533 
14,533 

15,584 

16,710 

76,900 

149,824 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND aJURQI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(3) Property, Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Leases (see note 3) 

Depreciation and aJ:I'Utizatioo charged to operations computed on the straighHine method ._ s..,. 
for the year ended November 30, 1997, and$98r'i10 for the year ended November 30, 1996. 

Equipment includes capitialized leases as foUows: 1997 !!II 
$ 22,000 -164,157 l6U! 

Printing service equipment 

Office and administrative equipment 

186,157 1I6JS7 
Less aCOlmulaled amortization 182,066 161JU 

4,091 17 .. 

(4) Pension 
The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement aod I~ ~ .. 
National Association of Free WiU Baptists. The plan is contributory and is ma1cbed up to a maxm.a cl 
5% of compensation. Fmployees with t'M> years of service may participate. Pension expmses IIDi ' ' 

1o $31,852 for the year eoded November 30, 1997 and $20 .. 193 for the year ended Novemt. ]0, 
1996. The pension plan is a defined contributioo plan. Under the plan, an account is mainlllined for_. 

participant and upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distributioo or purchue • 
of several types of annuity contracts. 

(5) Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Board is a distribute.- of bible based suoday school and church training curriculum, and odlr 

denomioatiooal publications. The Board extends credit to its customers which consist primarily of Free WI 

Baptist churches and religious bookstores. These acoounts are not collateraliz.ed and are subject to acaJQI!Iila 
risk of loss amounting to the outstanding balance at any point in time. 

(6) Agreement with Affiliated Organization to Distribute Hymnals 

During the year ended November 30, 1995 the Board agreed to warehouse and distribute hymnals for die 
Executive Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptist. There are t'M> types of hymnals beiw& 
warebou.Jed and distnbuted by the Board; The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book, Rejoice, aod The Rejoice 
Hymn Book for the Oturch at Worship. 
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QIURCH TRAJNING BOARD 
stJND~y s~:SouSE pUBUCAUONS 

AND ts continued 
F, ncial StatemeD , 

Notes to tna 

H nals continued 

A~~~t!~~~~~:;~::~·~~'~t~o~rh~·~str~ib~u~t:e~~~~::::~:: "tb .Affiliated Or a~uon 

: 

; ... eat 'Wl Re~ . Boafd, ~ of 
(6)... ·st llymtt Book- - . $632 10 the Execuuve estiJn.aled 

~ WiU Baptl coiled funds and remlt 00 hymnals with an 
·u invoice the customer. . o annrn:riJnately 12,5 thi aec::ment as of 

1'8 BoaJd Wl 7 the Board was warehiJUSint> yy:- the (tai\SaCtionS under S go No·-- 30. 199 ( $293 ()()(). The following sununanzes s· ce 
t value o . ' lD 

~:3().199'7· 1997 Inception 

. (){{ice at beginning o[ period 
AmOunt due to Execuuve 

Total sales of hymnals 

s 
99,959 
(50,536) 
(46,572) 

314,721 
(152,221) 
(159,650} 

LesS total. fees earned de to the Executive Office 
LesS rem1uanccs rna 

$ ==2=a.8==5==1 
2,851 

) 
Executive Office at end of period 

AJnOUDl due to (£rom 
~ ~~ f ~ auuch of Wo . . ·on of 5% plus co 

ne Reioice RJID! Book or . .bute these hymnals and receave a ~g approxitnltely 26,675 
Board will ware~ and di.stn t997 the Board was Ware 

The ~ of November 30, 
~~Upping per h~· tacemeDt value o( $266,750. 
~ with an esti.ul*d rep 

. .11 ..,..t be sold within one 
· of whach Wl "" · (7) }Dventory . 

1
. rature and materials. a poruoo . used 00 a cycle basis rangmg 

. r denominaUOD ate . which Will be b major 
Inventory COQS1sts o . items consist of hterature . summari1J!S the inventory ~ 

These long-term mventory ,._ .. _~ boOks. 'The folloW1Dg f November 30, 1997 
year years and pub I:>IJ<'U --.-1 to loog-tenn as o 
from t'M> years to seven . as current as con..-~ 

that which is classified Loll~rm 
type between eunent 

Bookstore me~dise tion raw materials 
Printing productiOn and prepara 
Work in process 
Fulisbed literature: 

Curriculum 
Shipping 
Ufequest material chandi-

n~t.~ and mer -Randall House ouu-> 

Spanish curriculum 

Allowance for obsolesence 

Total inventory 

s 

s 

8 
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~ Asset 

98rS30 
61,504 
51,234 

18,597 
108.222 

l13 
84,095 

65,000 
418,642 

40,000 

443,200 
502,737 
127,500 

4431200 
375;bl7 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDAl .I . HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(8) Concentration of CTedit Risk 

The ~ is a ~stn~ of bible baxd sunda~ ~I and chw-cb. ltainio~ cumcu~~un, _. Glit 
denommationaJ pubhcat~ons. The Board extaJds credit ro ats customers whicll consast ps inlii iJy of p,.. 1111 
Baptist churches and religious bookstores. These accounts are not collateralized and are subject to ... lla 
risk of loss amounting to the outstanding balance at any point in time. 

9 

A- 162 

.... nues 
Total Sales 

Budget 
1999 

Other Income . 
Freight & Handhng I 

. . on Hymna s Commassaon 

$2,957,258.55 

120,000.00 
75,000.00 

174,500.00 
12,000.00 Youth Division 

Miscellaneous Income 
Grand Total Revenues 

Cost of Sales 
Cost of Outside_ Purchases 
Editoriai/Grapha_c Arts 
Printing Productaon 
Spanish 

Total Cost of Sales 

General Expenses 
• • • Youth Dtvasaon 

Sales Division 
Bookstore 
Sunday School Growth 
Administration 
Accounting 
Shipping 
Building 
General Expenses 

Total General Expenses 

Grand Total of all Expenses 

Working Capital 

$ 470,000.00 
418,400.00 
799,000.00 

27,650.00 
1 ,715,050.00 

$ 236,472.00 
175,500.00 
120,800.00 

69,279.92 
128,500.00 
184,150.00 
234,350.00 
162,800.00 
266,700.00 

$1 ,578,551.92 

• 
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$3,338,758.55 

$3,293,601 .92 

$ 45,156.63 





Quantity 

4,493 
19,067 
15,213 
4,566 
2,256 
7,662 

23,349 
36,433 
24,040 

6,575 
10,379 
38,733 
47,901 

3,270 
6,625 
3,866 
3,410 

11,507 
53,989 
49,434 

8,000 
5,626 
1,829 
2,889 

13,198 
7,293 
1,966 

38,900 
39,233 
14,098 
18,716 
4,079 

15,725 
112,289 
215,436 

422 

Budget 1999 
Sunday School Literature 
Desaiption Cost 

Nursery Teacher $ 3.85 
Make-N-Do 2.20 
My Bible Lesson Cards 2 .20 
Nursery-Preschool Flannelgraph 9.75 
Nursery-Preschool Teaching Pictures 9 .75 
Preschool Teacher 3.85 
Preschool Student 3 .85 
Preschool Companion 2.20 
Picture Lesson Cards 2 .20 
Bible Times 2 .45 
Primary Teacher 3.85 
Primary Student 2 .20 
Primary Companion 2.20 
Memory Verse Packet 9 .25 
Primary Days 2.45 
Primary-Junior Flannelgraph 9.75 
Primary-Junior Teaching P1ctures 9.75 
Junior Teacher 3 .85 
Junior Student 2 .20 
Junior Companion 2.20 
Junior Counselor 2.45 
Turning Point Teacher 3.85 
Turning Point Packet 9.75 
Turning Point Student 2.35 
Teen Power 2.45 
Horizon Teacher 3.85 
Horizon Packet 9. 7 5 
Horizon Student 2 .35 
Bib1e Teacher 3.85 
Bible Challenge 2 .20 
Visitor's Lesson Leaflets 2 .20 
Power For Living 2.45 
Depth 2 .20 
Bible Scholar 2 .20 
Bible Scholar LP 2.40 
Bible Teacher Cassette 19.95 

Total Sunday School Literature Sales 
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-
-

Revenue 
$ 17,298.05 

41,947.40 
33,468.60 
44,518.50 
21,996.00 
29,498.70 
89,893.65 
80,152.60 
52,888.00 
16,108.75 
39,959.15 
85,212.60 

105,382.20 
30,247.50 
16,231 .25 
37,693.50 
33,247.50 
44,301.95 

118,775.80 
108,754.80 

19,600.00 
21,660.10 
17,832.75 
67,893.85 
32,335.10 
28,078.05 
19,168.50 
91,415.00 

151,047.05 
31,015.60 
41,175.20 

9,993.55 
34,595.00 

247,035.80 
517,046.40 

8,418.90 

$2,385,887.35 

c. T. s. Literature 

Description 
QlantitY I G . d $ 
7iO Helpers Leaders Ul e 

854 Helpers Packet 'd 
1 I D' vers Leader's Gul e 1 279 ISCO k t 

, 99 Discovers Poe e . 
3,~09 Learners Leader' s Guide 

944 Learners Student . d 
2,790 Adventurers Leader's Gua e 

31 Adventurers Student 
4, 1o8 LifeQuest Leader's Gui~e t 
1 450 LifeQuest Stu?ent '}an ou s 

, 599 Focus Leader s Guide 

8 159 Focus Student 

Cost 
3 .85 $ 
3.85 
3.85 
5 .10 
3.85 
2 .20 
3 .85 
2 .20 

17.95 
2.20 
3.85 
2 .35 
2.20 

Revenue 
2,964.50 
7,137.90 
4,924.15 

16,314.90 
2,729.65 
6,476.80 
3,041 .50 
9,088.20 
5,528.60 
3,190.00 
2,306.15 

19,173.65 
20,495.20 

9:316 Lifeline Students 
$ 103,371 .20 

Total C. T. S. Literature Sales 

Total Sunday School & CTS Sales 
Less Discounts to Bookstores 

$2 489,258.55 
$ 

1

330,000.00) 

Grand Total Literature Sales 

Other Sales & Income . 
1 Spanish Curncu um 

RHP Books 
Merchandis~ 
Bulletin Serv1ce 
VBS 
Bookstore Sales 
Printing Sales 
Miscellaneous Sales 

Total Other Sales & Income 

Total All Sales 

Other Income 
Freight & Handling 
Commission on Hymnals 
Youth Division 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Other Income 

Total Revenue 

$ 36,000.00 
75,000.00 
20,000.00 
25,000.00 
15,000.00 

360,000.00 
180,000.00 

87,000.00 

$120,000.00 
75,000.00 

174,500.00 
12,000.00 

A- 167 

$2,159,258.55 

$ 798,000.00 

$2,957,258.55 

$ 381 ,500.00 

$3,338,758.55 : 



General Director 
Salaries 

Salary 

Ho~sing and Utilities 
Soctal Security 
Retirement 
Insurance: 

1997 
$32,669.62 
20,000.00 
4,054.34 
3,117.40 

1998 
$35,283.18 
21,849.39 
4,378.68 
3,117.40 

1999 
$36,311 68 

Medical 

22,504:87 
4,499.46 
3,117.40 

Dental 4,562.88 4 927 91 
440.76 1440.76 

(The Board either pays "I $64,845.00 $69 997.32 
5,805.00 

581.88 
$72,820.29 • . mt eage or furnishes a tra~el c~r. 

Edttor-rn-Chief .) 
Salary 

Ho~sing Allowance 
Soctal Security 
Retirement 
Insurance: 

life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Youth Division Director 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance: 

life 
Medical 
Dental 
l~ng-term Care 
Dtsability 

$20,000.00 
16,000.00 
2,754.00 
1,800.00 

164.76 
7,770.12 

491.04 
.00 

$48,979.92 

$30,000.36 
2,329.45 
1,500.00 

$23,664.68 
16,640.00 
3,083.00 
2,015.00 

164.76 
5,278.00 

582.00 
213.00 

$51,640.44 

$31,200.00 
2,387.00 
1,560.00 

$24,374.62 
17,139.20 
3,175.81 
2,015.00 

164.76 
5,805.00 

581.88 
213.00 

$53,469.27 

$32,136.00 
2,458.40 
1,560.00 

85.20 
5,805.00 

581.00 
18.00 

85.20 
7,770.12 

491 .04 
18.00 

119.40 
$42,313.57 

85.20 
5,278.00 

582.00 
18.00 

165.00 
$41,275.20 165.00 

$42,808.60 
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,_,llocher 
1 w's Resource Packet 
Pft/ls Handwork 
... Lesson Cords 
Prutool Teacher 
Tn*rr's Resource Packet 
Fta w-ol Student 
Pru hoi Workbook 
,._. Lesson Cords 
PrL•ary Teamer 
Vislal Pamt 
PrillllJ Student 
PriiiUil Workbook 
•Memory Verse Packet 
Mior Teacher 
Visual Packet 
Mlior Student 
Mior Workbook 
Teen Teacher 
YISUOI Pocket 
Teen Student 
Teen Workbook 
High Teen Teacher 
VISUal Pocket 
High Teen Student 
High Teen Workbook 
lifeline (Teen Devotional} 
Bible Teacher (Young Adult 
Bible Challenge 
Bible Teacher 
Bible Scholar 
Bible Scholar Lorge Print 
Depth (Adult Devotional) 
Visual Packet 
Visitor's lesson leaflet 

SP = Scripture Press 
ST = Standard 

Cost Comparisons 1998 
SP GL ST **UGP AY DCC 

4.69 4.69 459 1.45 4.69 4.69 
9.99 9.99 10.99 6.25 10.99 10.99 
259 259 2.49 1.45 259 259 
.00 .00 .00 .85 259 .00 

4.69 4.69 459 1.45 4.69 4.69 
9.99 9.99 10.99 6.25 10.99 10.99 
259 .00 .00 1.45 .00 259 
259 259 2.49 .00 2.59 259 
.00 .00 1.99 .85 259 .00 

4.69 4.69 459 1.45 4.69 4.69 
9.99 9.99 10.99 6.25 10.99 10.99 
259 .00 .00 1.45 259 259 
.00 259 2.49 1.35 259 259 
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

4.69 4.69 459 1.45 3.69 4.69 
9.99 9.99 10.99 6.25 .00 10.99 
259 .00 .00 1.65 2.89 259 
.00 2.59 2.49 1.65 2.79 .00 

4.69 16.99 459 155 459 4.69 
9.99 l .00 10.99 I .00 .00 10.99 
2.59 .00 3.09 I 1.65 2.89 259 
.00 .00 .00 I .00 .00 .00 

4.69 16.99 459 1.75 459 4.69 
9.99 .00 10.99 .00 .00 10.99 
5.89 .00 3.09 1.65 2.89 259 

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 I 1.75 459 .00 

.00 .00 I .00 1.65 2.89 .00 
4.69 16.99 459 3.75 459 4.69 
259 9.99 259 1.85 3.19 2.69 
359 .00 1 3.49 .00 3.89 2.99 
.00 .00 I .00 .00 .00 .00 
.00 .00 I 10.99 .00 i .00 10.99 
.00 .00 .00 I .00 I 2.69 259 

GL = Gospel Ught 

AY = Free Will Baptist Press 
.. UGP = Union Gospel Press 

DCC = David C. Cook 
RHP = Randall House Publicotions 

•Produced only by Randall House. 

RHP 

3.75 
8.95 
2.10 
2.10 
3.75 
8.95 
2.10 
2.10 
2.10 
3.75 
8.95 
2.10 
2.10 
8.95 
3.75 
8.95 
2.10 
2.10 
3.75 
9.25 
2.25 

···.oo 
3.75 
9.25 
2.25 

***.00 
*2.10 
3.75 
2.10 
3.75 
2.10 
2.30 

*2.10 
.00 

2.10 

••tn order for a price comparison to be a«Urote one needs to make a visual comparison. 
For instance it may appear that Union Gospel Press has lower prices than us or others, but they generally run quite a few pages 

shorter in their publirolions. 
··~ Teen rourse student book contains both the former student book and handbook. This gives you both books for the price 

of one. 
Please note that most companies ore charging for more for their produds than Randall House Publications. Sow money, receive 

quality, and preserve sound dextrine by purchasing your literature from Randall House Publicotions. 
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Foreign Missions Report 
The sixty-second year of the Department of Foreign Missions Will be IIlii 

bered for newly opened doors of ministry and the loss of some of our~ 
missionaries. Yet, in spite of personnel losses by retirement and death, ~ 
Missions continues to experience the blessing of the Lord in His Kingdom~ 

Highlights from the Fields 
In Brazil I I 9 people professed faith in Christ in I 997. The Conselheiro la(al. 

ete church invited Flavio Grossi, a Brazilian preacher, to serve as their J>aslor. A 
new work was organized in Araras and another outreach ministry in~ was in beginning stages. 

In COte d'Jvoire a special evangelistic campaign resulted in 91 professions of 
faith. Our church in Abidjan witnessed 50 conversions and three baptisms Wilb. 
in the last year. A new church building was dedicated in Agnibilekrou where 25 
young people turned to Christ during an evangelistic campaign. The Bible irJsti. 
lute started its third three-year training program with six ministerial studens. 
These new students have been able to enjoy the new student housing built in '!l6 with the help of Master's Men teams. 

In Creative Access Countries five Free Will Baptist English teachers are shar. 
ing their testimonies with interested individuals. 

Last summer 455 Cuban young people attended a retreat Where some of 
our missionaries shared the teaching responsibilities. Nearly all of these yoq 
people signed pledges committing themselves to Sexual purity. 

During the past year, eight people in France prayed to receive Christ After a 
long wait and many obstacles, the St. Nazaire congregation recently started con­
struction on a dassroom/fellowship building. 

The attendance at the annual conference in India grew from 1,500 in 1997 ro 
2,000 in I 998. This growth as well as the dedication of several new church build­
ings clearly shows how the church in North India is developing. 

Although Japan continues to be resistant to the gospel, I 6 people have given 
themselves to the Lord since January I, I 997. Prayers for Japanese leadership 
have been answered as two men recently assumed ministry roles in two of our Free Will Baptist churches. 

The Parita church in Panama has elected a fanamanian pastor. Our co-labor· 
ers witnessed I I 5 conversions and 35 baptisms in that country within the last ye;u: 
Outreach to !he Kuna Indians has been started by missionaries who have made 
several introductory trips to some of the remote villages. 

ln I 997 we conducted two training sessions for the pastors and church lead· 
ers of the Southern Ural region of Russia. We encomaged the existing churches 
to start their own mission works. FoUowing our example of planting new works, 
these churches now support two Russian church planters. We have just sent our 
fifth church planter to the city of lroitsk on the border of Kazakhstan. This city 
has over 100,000 people with 33 known believeiS. Church planters supported by 
Free Will Baptists reported 361 converts and 71 baptisms in 1997. 

A missionary team is again in formation in Spain. While the run Johnsons 
and the Anthony Edgmons gather support, the missionaries already in the coun· 
try are assisting the work in VIllalba and teaching seminary classes in Alcala. 

Our missionaries in Uruguay have reported several conveiSions in !he four 
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they are working. The camp ,....e-cwflere · F re 1 
ministry continues to be fruitful. 

See statistics m IQU . 

A rc1 ........ F FREE WILL BAPTIST STA~J>E~SEAS MINISTRIES 
Effective December 31, 1997 

Avtt'lge 
1997 1997 Sunday IHaries Nltloul llctiiSed Bible Organized Mission 

Baptisms Attendance -:'tened to Ontalned and ~Y Institutes Students Churches Worb Converts Eadl field PastOf'S Prea ers ..... 
I 

Brazil 22 7 11 1 6 10 7 119 42 683 

Cuba 8 146 1 12 24 86 535 260 1,783 

France 8 3 8 8 157 

India 2 10 so· 3 26 80 .. 479 334 ••• 3,602 

C6te d'Jvoire 31 6 26 1 47 11 41 198 71 2,579 
8 155 3 16 6 4 6 

35 523 

12 1 

6 115 l~:a 7 5 20 1 10 6 

~n 9 1 2 4 1 3 2 100 
Uruguay 9 3 3 1 8 6 13 35 1 187 
Russia 2 plus 4 Russian church planters 361 71 

Totals 105 42 274 5 91 89 239 1,869 832 9,769 

ngelists and partners. ·we support at least 70 pastors. eva 
• "Incomplete report . . . . . 

•• ·south India report unavailable ffT tes teaching English m limited 
. I pment and seven a I Ia We have one worker in commumty deve o 

access countries. 

• Financ1al Report 

Osity of our . 1997 Through the gener 
needs m · aking ·ncome Our God graciously met our . $4 97 4 279 This record-bre I . s 

F Will Baptist people we received ' '$399 857 more than the pre_VIo~ ~~~eded our budget by $19,317 and~d~: expe~ses by $271,337, resulting m di . ur income excee 
year. In ad lion, o h osition . • naries and 
a healthy growth ~ ou~~ ~re $4,702,942. I_ commend our~~~~ 019 below 

Our expenses. or stewardship in keeping our expens i ure :2 We also 
home staff for their good f expenditures by category, see F gt . I 9il7 Figure 
budget For a breakdown o . cal missionary's dollar was spen m ·th those 
show, in Figure 3, how the_ typt d expenses of 1997 compared WI 
4 shows how the budget, mcome an a-

of the previous 19 years. d B ign Missions. The 166 congreg 
Last year 1 605 churches supporte ore $2 033 133 or 55 percent of the 

tions which co~tributed $5,000 or m~re gWJ~~efmd a li~t of these churches post­. f m churches. IOU total income commg ro m 59 
ed at the Foreign Missio~ ~ooth. h (over $10,000) also increased fro The number of top-giVIng churc es 
in 1996 to 66 last year: 

Central FWB Church 
Donelson FWB Church 
Norman First FWB Church 

Royal Oak, Ml 
Nashville, TN 
Norman, OK 
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$70,461.01 
$69,623.52 
$56,535.25 



Figure 2 

Total Expenditures for 1997 
$4,702,942 

Department Travel 
and Board 
$61,346 

Missionary Stateside 
Ministry 

-----.-...:c:.:~·S25 

Administration 
$533,991 

11.3o/. 22.4o/. 

MK Education 
Missionary Salary 

and COLA 
$1,052,370 

lnformau111111 
Promotl011 
$302,095 

Missionary ss and 
Retirement 
$309,651 Missionary 

ProJects 
$224,042 Ml~lonary Field 

Housing 
$372,822 

Missionary Medical 
and Insurance 

Missionary Travel $394,443 

Figure 3 

Salary and Cost 
of living 
26.7¢ 

and Shipping 
$211,525 

1997 Missionary Dollar 
(How It was spent) 

lang. Study, 
Newsletters 

Equip. ' 
2.5¢ -

Auto Housing, 
Purchases Utilities, 

Furn. and 
and Trans. Appliances 

10.6¢ 11 .6¢ 

-
E MK. Information and 
ducatron Promotional 
2·3¢ Materials 

7.8¢ 
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Social 
Security 

and 
Retirement 

7.8¢ 

• 20 YEAR LOOK AT BUDGET, INCOME AND EXPENSES 
N" --~.-.-~r-r~~~r-r-~~lr-r~~~--r-~~~ 
••• -

..... .... 

1971 1979 1910 1911 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

• BUDGET 0 INCOME Q EXPENSES 

Umestone FWB Church 
Unity FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Ina FWB Church 
Cofer's Chapel FWB Church 
Horse Branch FWB Church 
Tippett's Chapel FWB Church 
Sand Hill FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Fellowship FWB Church 
Bethany FWB Church 
Forest Valley FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Miamisburg FWB Church 
Cross Timbers FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Bethel FWB Church 
Hannon FWB Church 
Calvary Fellowship FWB Church 
Allen Chapel FWB Church 
Gomer FWB Church 
Southern Oaks FWB Church 
New Hope FWB Church 
Fellowship FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Bethlehem FWB Church 
Fulton FWB Church 
Sherwood Forest FWB Church 
Trinity FWB Church 
Verdella FWB Church 
Bethany FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
First FWB Church 
Macedonia FWB Church 

Limestone, TN 
Greenville,NC 
Russellville, AR 
Ina, IL 
Nashville, TN 
Turbeville, SC 
Clayton, NC 
Coward, SC 
AJbany, GA 
Kingsport, TN 
Broken Arrow, OK 
Springfield, OH 
Jacksonville, NC 
Miamisburg, OH 
Nashville, TN 
Locust Grove, OK 
Raleigh, NC 
Newport News, VA 
Kinston, NC 
Liberal, MO 
Fenton, MO 
Batesville, AR 
Garner, NC 
Oklahoma City, OK 
Joelton, TN 
Park Hills, MO 
Mtn. Grove, MO 
Ashland City, TN 
Fulton, MS 
El Sobrante, CA 
Greenville, NC 
Liberal, MO 
Timmonsville, SC 
Beaufort, NC 
Farmington, MO 
Purdy, MO 
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$47,141.29 
$46,145.23 
$45,920.81 
$44,106.00 
$36,849.75 
$30,163.51 
$26,766.16 
$26,755.66 
$26,487.37 
$25,229.46 
$25,060.31 
$23,819.00 
$23,642.08 
$23,269.45 
$21,549.43 
$20,353.83 
$20,098.73 
$19,685.04 
$19,545.00 
$19,520.51 
$18,230.06 
$17,979.76 
$17,638.35 
$17,368.06 
$17,021.51 
$16,773.12 
$16,694.92 
$16,618.80 
$16,580.66 
$16,360.04 
$16,153.11 
$16,061.94 
$16,054.37 
$15,648.80 
$15,541.34 
$15,535.83 



Immanuel FWB Church 
Par~erls Chapel FWB Church Durham, NC 
Whrte Savannah FWB Ch Greenville, NC $151534.00 
S!atesboro FWB Church urch Conway, SC $151182.75 
F~rst FWB Church Statesboro, GA $141700.66 
F!rst FWB Church Church Hill, TN $141467 S.C 
lrberty Bible FWB Church Gastonia NC $141063:50 
Fo~~t G~ove FWB Church Gainesville, GA $131596.29 
R~1orce Frrst FWB Ch h Knoxville, TN $131427.00 
F t 0 . . urc 0 $13 296 05 rrs ngrnal FWB Ch h wosso, OK I • 

B II . urc Ch I $13 157 50 e vrew FWB Church or eston, SC I • 

T~mple FWB Church Colquitt, GA $131009.18 
Frrst FWB Ch Dorl' t $121791.95 urch rng on, SC 
S~erwood Forest FWB Ch h Florence, sc $121525.00 
Frrst FWB Ch h urc New Bern, NC $121239.43 
P!ney Grove ~~B Church Duncanville TX $121021.38 
F st FWB Ch" I I $11,592.73 ~r d S .Church N. little Rock rp ey, Fl $11,570.52 
C ~o pnngs FWB Church No. little Rock, AR $11,496.01 
.a vary FWB Church Pleasant View, TN $11,158.28 

Frrst FWB Church Norman, OK 
Harrison FWB Church Darlington SC $111055.37 
Freemon Chapel FWB Ch h Minford, OH $101885.00 
C~ntral FWB Church urc Stewartsville, MO $10,631.08 
F~Jt~ FWB Church Grandview, MO $10,495.00 
T~rnrty FWB Church Goldsboro NC $10,362.94 
F t FW B 'd I $101301.60 rrs B Church n geton, MO 
Poplar Spring FWB Ch h Ada, OK $10,233.39 

urc luko, MS $1 0, 120.36 
ltis encouraging t $101009.71 

goals. fur a complete ~ti~tef that last year 20 states and districts 
r:;;;~;-..=:.:.::=.:::""~ ~o~stat~e g~oals and gifts tofu . . . exceeded their faith 
I Figure 5 reJgn Missions, tum to page 194. 

$5,000,000 

$.4,500,000 

$3,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$0 

1995 

• Undesignated 

Gift Income Onlr 

1996 
1997 

Designated 
• Total Gltt Income 
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In spite of improved giving, for many years the percentage of undesignated 
arne haS been shrinking. The graph in Figure 5 shows the ratio of designat­

:'~ undesignated income in 1997. This left us with a support service deficit of 
$16,521 as of April 30, 1998. 

'Ole ooard is recommending an overall budget of $6,342,171 for 1999. Of this 
amount $5,565,82I is our operational budget and $776,350 is for VISION projects. 
A summarY of the budget appears on page 191. 

Board Action 
The board met August II - 12, I997, in conjunction with the annual Foreign 

Missions Retreat and took the following action: 
The board decided that those missionaries who have served 25 years or 

more should be given a retirement gift of $2,500 per couple or $1 ,500 per single 
missionary. 

The board authorized the establistunent of a scholarship fund for MKs. Tanya 
Hart, coordinator of MK ministries, was given permission to raise the funds. 

The semi-annual meeting of the board was held December 3- 4, I997, and 
included the following activities: 

The Cote d'lvoire Field Council was authorized to raise $100,000 for the 
Abidjan project. 

The board granted a request from Robert Bryan to pursue educational stud­
ies in an adult non-formal education program. 

The board approved the employment of the accounting firm of Hinton, 
Wcmen, Denney and Wallace to serve as our auditors during 1998. 

The board approved the construction of a new church building in Goumere, 
Cote d'lvoire. Darrel Nichols was authorized to raise $15,000 toward this project. 

The board adopted a strategic plan for our operation over the next 1 0 years. 
The board agreed with the Cote d'Ivoire Field Council that it is time to trans­

fer the curative aspect of the Doropo medical ministry to our African brothers 
and sisters. We are turning our attention to community health. This program 
will open many more villages to evangelism and church planting. 

The board authorized a $15,000 VISION project to assist a house church in 
Cuba to purchase property. 

The annual meeting of the board was held April 20 - 23, 1998, with these 
actions: 

The board approved further contacts with a church in Medellin, Colombia, 
Which is seeking identification with Free Will Baptists. Our missionaries will 
make occasional visits and teach the believers. We hope to provide them with 
some books and literature regarding Free Will Baptists. The church will be 
encouraged to send observers to the International Fellowship of Free Will 
Baptists which will meet in October 1998 in Uruguay. 

The board approved fund-raising for the following projects in Cuba: 
1. Repairs to the road to Cedars of Lebanon Seminary-$6,000. 
2. $200 per month subsidy for seminary training. 
3. The attendance of a representative of the Cuban Free Will Baptist 

Convention at the National Association in Tulsa. 
The board approved a study of testing procedures which might enable mis­

sionary candidates to meet educational requirements for career missionaries 
other than the traditional classroom setting. 
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The followmg· r.n 
Ch . . o•~Jcers were elected: . arrman - Bill Jones 
VJce--chairman - Milton w · 
Secretary - David Shores orthington 

Department Events and An 
. In April our board conducted a ".ouncements 

Smce last year, Alabama Fl 'd sec~>nd Foreign Missions Su 
own support plans The ' . ?" a, GeorgJa and Oklahoma have PPort Fonun. 
~h? have each dev~Jop!d J~~i~kansas, Missouri, South Carour!d:~ed .theW 
CJati~ns meet in May and June I h: A~ts 1 :8-type plan Since many state~ 

ur department is spons~ . ue .o ~pdate this list during the COn\-~ ~ 
Pastors and others who wish t nng MJssJons Awareness Visits" to e~tion. 
should contact our office o see firsthand what the Lord is doinnour elds. 

Th "T. • - ~ overseas 
e .ogether Way Plan" of . 

ment t? assist our congregations ~~r Nauo~ ~sociation calls for our de 
Acc~rdmgl~, the last Sunday in April ~~hasJZ~ng foreign missions each .Q' 
receJVe therr World Missions Offe . Jb ~ desJgnated time for all churches to 

h
a gdoal of .$1 00,000. Our goal for 1 9~· unng. 1997 we received $83 162 toward 
a receJVed $29,269. was aga~n set at $100,000. As of May IS we 

As I look ahead I see tre 
that ~od is going t~ do som~endous possibilities. I believe with all m h 
B.aptist Foreign Missions in the n~~~~gs through the ministry of Fr:e = 
pioneered the work which is b . ~ears. But we have those to thank who 

eanng fruit today. 

Veteran Mis · · stonanes Promoted t Gl 
On October 26 1997 the R o ory 

Ar hi . ' ' everend Ar hi M 
c e and. his wife, Sarah, served 1 7 c e a~h~w died in Modesto, Calif. 

~ter returning to the States, Archie serv~~ars as mJsstonaries to Cote d'Ivoire. 

at ~~~~eofwashi pdastor of his home churc;~~~eBsot arFd of Foreign Missions for 

Th 
s eath. ' 0 ree Will Baptist Church, 

. e Reverend Daniel Cronk w . 
1997, m Nashville, Tenn Dan and hi en~ to be WJth the Lord on November 20 

~o;P~~t:~r ~ol~owing his. service ~;';~~~rub~~rve~ as ~s~ionaries to Indi~ 
Foreign M' ~ o ege for rune years and se:Ved aug t mJssJons at Free Will 

JSSJons for 1 5 years. as a member of the Board of 
t -~December 17, 1997, the Reverend Do 
DaJ pr~a~her of the Word, went to be ~aid Sexton, former missionary and 
th~~~~sB~e served eight years in France :~J ~ Lo~ in Elizabethton, Tenn. 

tali. r. • r a number of years Don and sm· ess orced them to return to 
ves •Or our den!llrtrn ' Je served a · · 

activeJ .r-uuuen~ traveling extensive) s mJSSJonary represen· 
and B.Y.Promoted the Tennessee \Vctlk-a-th Y t~ promote missions. They also 
• JHJe Sexton Wcilk-a-thon " Thi . ~n which was later named the "Don 

tion of Free Will Baptists. . s JS a proJect of the Tennessee State Associa-
Mrs. Mabel "Mom" WiJJe was 

1 998, in .Bryan, Tex. She an~ her ~2 years of age when she died on Janu 16 
~lley, P•oneered missionary work . us~ the late Reverend Thomas ~p': 
Megan her mi.nistry in Panama untillf! a and Cuba. From 1937 when she 

om was actively involved in behaJf ~~:r::willmon~ befo~e her homegoing, 
Baptist ForeJgn Missions 
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More recently, we received the distressing news that Mrs. Marie Hanna, vet­
_. misSionary to India, died on April 23, 1998, in Sonapurhat, India. She and her 
iaJsband, Carlisle, first went to India in 1953. Marie worked in many capacities in 
lit\- to develop a strong, rapidly growing missions work in North India She and 
Qdsle had returned to India in January after a short time in the States. 

On behalf of the Department of Foreign Missions and the entire National 
AssOciation of Free Will Baptists, we pay tribute to these pioneer missionaries. 
TheY laid a good, strong foundation for us. Now it is up to us to build the kind 
d missionary movement which will take the gospel and plant churches in the 
uttermost parts of the earth. 

Special Recognition 
We also honor those who have recently retired from our department. 
The Reverend Fred Hersey has retired after 43 years of service in Japan. He 

and his wife, Evelyn, who went to be with the Lord on October 4, 1993, entered 
Japan in 1956. On January 21, 1995, Fred married the former June Wilkinson 
whose husband, the Reverend Sam Wilkinson, died on April 11, 1988. At the 
time of Sam's death, he and June were both working at Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College after serving for 20 years as missionaries to Brazil. From 1991 
until her marriage to Fred, June worked in the foreign missions office. Fred and 
June ministered in Japan for two years before returning to the States and 
announcing their retirement last year. They continued serving with the depart­
ment until the end of February this year. 

The Reverend Eamie and Jean Deeds worked as missionaries to Brazil for 
35 years. When they left Brazil for the States in December they were anticipat­
ing retirement from active missionary service, which made this departure a dif­
ficuJt one. They left the church in Lafaiete where they had served for 24 years 
in the hands of a Brazilian preacher. 

The Reverend Vvalter and Marcia Ellison have retired after 35 years of service 
in South America They began their work in Livramento, Brazil, on the border of 
Uruguay, and for the last 16 years have ministered in Montevideo, Uruguay. Vvalter 
labored with the Bible institute in Montevideo and more recently headed up the 
reconstruction project of the Central Free Will Baptist Church in Rivera. 

We will miss the contributions of these faithful missionaries. We ask you to 
join us in expressing our appreciation for their dedicated service and wishing 
them joy as they serve the Savior in the United States. 

We are grateful for the years of service given by our two board members 
who are ineligible for reelection: Joe Grizzle and Dean Dobbs. 

From the beginning of our ministry, we have been very generously sup­
ported by Women Nationally Active for Christ. We especially honor Dr. Mary 
Ruth Wisehart who is retiring as Executive Secretary-Treasurer of WNAC this 
year. We pray for God's best for her as she leaves the office. 

New Appointees 
Even though we will miss the five faithful servants who went to be with the 

Lord in recent months, as well as those who are retiring, we rejoice that the 
Lord is calling more workers who can make their own impact for the Lord. Last 
year our board appointed Verlin and Debbie Anderson to Cote d'Ivoire, Anthony 
and Lea Edgmon and Tim and Kristi Johnson to Spain, Mike and Cathy Corley 
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to Russia, Justin and Leslie Banks to Panama, Lloyd and Betty Plunkett to~ 
d'lvoire, and Kevin Stacy and Charity VanWinkle for a special assi8Jllnel& 
Charity worked as editorial assistant to Don Robirds prior to appointment. 

In addition to the 12 college students serving in six countries as ove. -
apprentices this summer, 10 members of the "Go and Be" Team served from tf: 
17 to June 30 in Cote d'lvoire. Nineteen members of Teens Equipped and Adivt 
in Missions (TFAM) have worked in Cuba and Japan this summer. 

Office Personnel 

I want to pay very special tribute to Mrs. Shirley Lauthem, my executive 
assistant, who insists on simply being recognized as my secretary. She has been 
far more than that, for she is our family's friend and faithful prayer warrior b 
us and our ministry. 

Don Robirds, director of communications, is the senior staff member, hav­
ing worked in the office for 26 years. Jimmy Aldridge, overseas secretary, has 
willingly assumed many responsibilities which were not in his original job 
description, and his wife, Janie, has worked right along with him. Fred Wclmer, 
director of stateside ministries, is almost everyone's favorite preacher. Rob 
Conley, our treasurer, has proved that a young man can graciously handle a lot 
of responsibility. 

Others who effectively serve in our office include Eddie Payne, support cordi­
nator/comrnunications assistant, and Ken Eagleton, Sr., missionary and TFAM 
coordinator, and his wife, Marvis, who demonstrate their servant spirit by accept­
ing assignments in many areas. 

The ladies in our office render very valuable service also: Carole Ragan, sec­
retary; Barbara Nicholson, bookkeeper; Gladys Gragg, accounting clerk; Nancy 
Jones, volunteer and part-time accounting clerk; Cheri Ham, computer services 
coordinator; and Deborah Sl Lawrence, editorial assistant 

Our regular faithful volunteers, Charlie Hingst and Jimmie Carter, care for 
our mailings, and for us, and are constantly securing equipment and supplies 
that are shipped to our missionaries around the world. 

Our staff enjoys the privilege of working in a ministry which we believe is 
near to the heart of God. Together, with each of them, I pledge my support to 
the new General Director of the Department of Foreign Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists. 

A -178 

N M~SSIONS OF THE BOARD OF FQREIG BAPTISTS 
QCIATION OF FREE WILL NATIONAL ASS 

mb 31 1 997 and 1996 oece er , 

contents 

page 

zjpancial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
. . . . . .. . . • . . . . . . . . . . 2 

dit r • s report · · · · · · · . . ... · Independent au . o . 1 i tion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
statements of f l.nan~l.~ pos ... . .... . . . ...... . .... .. . . ... . . . . . 

f tl.• Vl. tl.eS · · · • ' ' . . · · • 4 statements 0 ac . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5- 1 0 
Statements of cash flows . . . . . . ........ . ......... . .. . 

t the financ ial statements ...... . 
Notes o 

§ypplementary Information . 11 
t on supplementary informatl.on ...... ~; -13 

Independent auditor's repor ······· ·· ·· · ···· · ···· 
al nses · · · · · · Schedule of function expe .... 

A- 179 



p-
04Vl0 C. HINTON. CPA 
A06EAT AA'f' WARREN, CPA 
WILLIAM H DENNEY CPA 
lARRY BRUCE W41.LACE, CPA 

HINTON. WARREN. 

DENNEY & WALLAC£ 
calllFIEO PUIIliC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE SPENCE SLOG SUITE 200 
..0 sPENCE LANE 

NASHVIllE, TN 3nl7· 1150 
(615) 366 5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of U. 
Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptista (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 3~, ~997 and 1996, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management . 
OUr responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted audi t i ng 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f~ancial statements are free of 
material misstatement . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements . An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Board of 
Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists as of 
December 31, ~997 and 1996 and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

March 27, 1998 
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IGN MISSIONS Of THE 
po~OF ~RB NfOF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL :;soc~T~OFinancial Position 

p;&e;b;r 3~. ~997 and 1996 

ASSETS 

h quivalents - Notes 1 ~ 2 --h and cas e 
._.... ts _ Notes 1 " 2 
lllyeatmen . able from employees and 
~ts r ece1v 

· ar•es - Note 2 d ""'tful ai&&10D • t of allowance for ouu 
()d)er receivables, ne . ~996) 

of $29 000 ($~4,333 Ln f accumulated 
accounts d quipment, at cost, net o 

rropert Y an e 
i ation - Notes 1 " 3 cSeprec 

rrepaid expenses 

Tota l assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

d ccrued expenses 
Accounts payable. an a t insurance payable 
Suppl emental ret1remen 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 {c 8 

Ne t assets (deficit) : 
unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 

Total 

- Note 4 

Total liabilities and net assets 

d accompanying 
See accountants' report an 
~ote; to the financial statements. 

-2-
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1997 
$1.~63,727 

885,541 

65,406 

1 4 ,000 

15~,567 

4.415 

$2.284.656 

$ 256,631 
228,041 
152 I 142 

636,!!14 

( 94, 749) 
1 , 7 42,591 

1 , 6 47,842 

~212841656 

1996 
$ 878,947 

692,457 

75,814 

32,867 

173,367 
3.819 

f1.857.27l 

$ 159,04 1 
~95, 4 93 

143.920 

4 98 ,454 

( 55, 791) 
1, 414 , 608 

1.,358,817 

~1. 857 127l 



BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF 

Vnrestricted 
Revenue : 

Contributions - Notes 1 ~ 
Investment income 

5 

Gain on disposal of 
Net assets released ~roperty ~ equipment 

Restricti . 7om restrictions : 
ons sat1Sf1ed by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Informational and 
Travel and board 
Administrative 
Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

promotional 

Decrease in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 ~ 5 
Net ass~ts . released from restrictions · 

Restr1Ct1ons satisfied b . Y payments 

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 

Total incre · ase 1n net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report . 
notes to the fina . 1 and accompanylng 

nc1a statements. 
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1997 lttf -
$ 764,431 $ "'·tll 85,998 

l.0,324 
57,214 
15,"' 

3.782.132 3, S?l,ftl 

4.642.885 4.3U. pl( 

153,475 148,131 
88,296 84,575 

663,081 634 ,271 
3,712,604 3,530,432 

69.528 6l.01Q 

4.686.984 4.45?.U~ 

( 44. 099) c 9S.Qlt) 

4,115,256 3,819, 442 

c 3.782,132) ( 3. 591.443) 

333.124 227,929 

289,025 132,960 

1.358.817 1. 225.857 

~1,647,842 ~1,358,8~7 

BOARD OP FOBBIGN HISSIQNS OF '1'lf§ 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Of FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of cash Flows 
For the Years Ended pecember 31, 1997 and 1996 

gperttinq activities 
Increase in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Decrease (increase) in value of investments 
Depreciation 
Bad debts 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decre.ase) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Jet cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Purchases of investment 
Proceeds of investment redeemed 

Met cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

CAsh and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental noncash investing and financing information 

Sale of equipment 
Less: Loan receivab~e 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

-·-

A - 183 

1997 

$ 289,025 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

54,279 
14,667 
10,324) 

14,608 
596) 

138,360 

500,019 

136,992) 
114,837 
193,084) 

n~ . ~l~> 

-0-

284,780 

878.947 

$1 1 163 1 727 

$ 114,837 
-0-

s 114.837 

1996 

$ 132,960 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

4,865 
52,618 
14,333 
15,986) 

98,358 
3,819) 

305) 

283,Q24 

87,066) 
19,650 

846,018) 
640,749 

272, §§~) 

-0-

10,339 

868.608 

s 878,947 

$ 

$ 

66,850 
47,20Q 
19,650 



Note 1 -

w89ARp OF FQRBIGN MISSION§ OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE wu:X: BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
DeCember 31. 1997 and 1996 

Organization and summary of significant accounting POlicie
1 

The Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists is a nonprofit organization affiliated with tbe 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, located in Antioch, 
Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to establish and 
support Free Will Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. ~ 
Organization's support comes primari~y from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under 
section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group 
exemption of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. In 
addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a •private foundation• within the meaning 
of 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated 
business income for 1997 and 1996. 

The following significant accounting policies have been 
followed in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which involves the application of 
generally accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and 
gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are 
recOgnized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial Statements presentation follows the recommendatioD8 
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statement• 
of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Organization is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net 
assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, 
and permanently restricted net assets . 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of 
estimates that affect the financial statements . Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

- 5-
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110te 1 -

BOAJU) OF FOR8IGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WIJ.!. BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Pecember 31. 1997 and 1996 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 
(Continued) 

Contributions 

accounts for contributions in accordance with The Organization in 
the commendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Boa~d 

FASr:o 116 Accounting for contributions Received and Co?trLbutions 
S · ' dan ' th SFAS No 116 contributions rece~ved are Hade . In accor ce w~ · ' 

1 d d unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanent Y 
~=:~~i;te:saupport, depending on the existence or nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as dean i:~:eas: ~e 
'1 permanently restricted net assets pen g o . 

::~:a:~ ~b:rrestriction. When a restriction exp~es _ (t~t ~s. when 
i ulated time restriction ends or purpose restr~ct~on ~s . 

a at pli bed) temporarily restricted net assets are reclassi~~~d . to 
~~~ri~ted ~et assets and reported in the Statemen~s o~ ac~v~:~es 
as net assets released from restrictions . The Organ~zat~on s 
permanently restricted net assets . 

PropertY and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost , 
· t in excess of $500 and an all expenditures for property and equ1pmen 

estimated useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is 
b i over the useful lives of the assets computed on a straight-line as s 

generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office furniture and equipment 

5 years 
3 - 10 years 

The net property and equipment balance 
separate component in unrestricted net 

Investments 

has been recorded as a 
assets. 

Investments 
approximates cost 

are stated at market value. Market value 
at December 31, 1997 and 1996 . 

cash and cash equivalents 

f the S tatements of cash flows, the Board For purposes o · hl 1 · id 
considers all cash on deposit, money market funds and h1g Y ~qu 

debt ~trumen a w1 •-- t · th a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

-6 -
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NATIO~ OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
ASSOCIATION OF fRBB WI 

Notes to the Financial Stat~~~ISTS 
pecembe 3 s r1. 1997 and 1996 

Note 2 - Summarv of s . if . 1gn 1Cant concentrations f - - o~ financial inst~ 
As f nts 

. . o December 31, 1997 the 
1nst1tution located in the Unlted SBoard had deposits with a f ' 
Insurance of the Nat . tates and the Board 1IlanciaJ. 
Nashville, Tennessee1onal Association of Free Will Ba t~f Retirement~ 
up to $100,000 by th~ F:~~;~ts at the financial institu~~:nlocat~d 1D 
has a cash management Deposit Insurance Corporati are 1~ 
excess cash overnight ~~r~ement with a local bank which i:~· ~e Boa~ 
agreement An . S. Government securitie eats any 
agreement. be ~~~sh not insured should, under thestunder a repurchaae 

th 
' ateralized by 0 s erma of this 

e Board of Retirem . . Government securiti 
Will Baptists are ~t and Insurance of the National As es. . A~counta at 
employees and mi ':uunsured. The Board also has ac BOC1at1on of Pne 

ss1onaries and th counts receivabl 
The following i 0 er receivables whi h e fro. s suumary of those d c are uninsured 
corresponding risk of accounting lo:~sits, a ccounts receivable and ti. 

Interest beari d . with f ' . ng epos1t accounts 
~c1al institution 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits on 
account with the Board of 
Retirement and Insur 
Nation 1 ance of the 

a Assoc . of Free Will 
Baptists 

Common stock 
Total investments 

Accounts receivable 
and missionaries 

Other recei vable.s 

Total 

from employees 
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Account 
Balance 

$1.163 I 127 

1.163.727 

884,891 
650 

us. 541 

65,406 
14.000 
79. 406 

$2.128.674 

Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

$100.000 

100,000 

uoolooo 

Amount of 
Accounting 

Risk of L9t• 

$1.063.727 

1.063,727 

884,891 
650 

885. sn 

65,406 
14 I OOQ 

791 406 

$2.028.674 

-· 3 -

Jote 4 -

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

B9ARILOP PORBIGI! MISSIONS or niB 
IQTI~:SsOCjATiQI! or PRBB WIJ.I. p.PTISTS 

N __ e_ to the rinaocial Statement• 
oecemb!r 31. 1997 and 19?6 

Property and eauipment 

A surrmary of property and equipment is as follows: 

;1.227 

Office furniture and equipment $ 48 ,142 

cameras and projectors 
86,460 

Automobiles 
76,500 

Computer equipment 2~.22~ 
305,007 

Less: accumulated depreciation ( l:l~.4!0) 
s j!.~1 1 567 

1926 
$ . 47 ,774 

84,876 
92,000 
143,QO~ 
367,655 

( 124,288) 

~ 17~1367 

Depreciation expense, computed utilizing the straight line 
method amounted to $54,279 ($52,618 in 1996). 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the 

following purposes: 

Missionaries 
VISION c.ampaign 

1927 
$1,562,779 

172' 812 
$1.742.591 

1996 
$1,323,397 

91,211 
$1.414.608 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. 
They are released when- the donor restriction is satisfied. 

Informational and promotional material and equipment transfers 

The Board charges a fee against the foreign field accounts to 
reimburse the unrestricted net assets for information service 
production expenses . These fees are presented as transfers from the 
temporarily restricted net assets to the unrestricted net assets. 

Pension plan 

The Board participate• in the master pension plan of the Board 
of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. The Board contributes 5\ of gross salary for missionaries 
and administrative employees . Employees are allowed to contribute 
but are not required to contribute. Employees with two years of 
service may participate . Pension expenses amounted to $81,028 
($121,100 in 1996). The pension plan is a defined contribution plan . 
Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and 
upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum 
distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

-8-
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Note 7 -

Note 8 -

Lease 

BOARD OF PQRBIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL NjSOCIATION OF F&BB WIT·!· BAPIISTS 

N9tea to the Financial Statement• 
pecember 31. 1227 and 1226 

The Board entered into a lease agreement on OCtober 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists for office ADd 
storage space. The term of the lease it until all mortgages on U. 
building are satisfied, which is approximately 10 years . The rent 
expense for the year vas $74,988 ($74,988 in 1226). 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Commitments 

1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

Thereafter (estimated) 

$ 74,988 
74,988 
74,988 
74,988 
74, 988 

381.189 
$756.129 

The Board has pledged ita furniture and fixtures as collateral 
on a mortgage note that the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists has with the Church Extension Loan Fund. 

The Board provides health insurance for its 93 (87 in 1996) 
employees on a self-insured basis . The Board has a stop loss policy 
with Boston Mutual Life Insurance for individual claims in excess of 
$20,000. During the year the Board paid $154,946 ($170, 466 in 1996) 
in benefit payments and $65,769 ($64,779 in 1996) in stop loss 
premiums. 

The Board has entered into an Lndemnity and Hold Harmless 
Agreement with First American National Bank. As part of the 
agreement, Firat American National Bank will guarantee to Citibank 
that it will honor checks written on the Board of Foreign Missions' 
First American National Bank account by the Board of Foreign 
Missions' Cote d'Ivoire Mission employees up to $20,000 per check. 
In exchange, the Board of Foreign Missions will indemnify and hold 
harmless First American National Bank from any and all claims, 
liabilities, actions or causes of action that arise as a result of 
First American National Bank's agreement to guarantee checks to 
Citibank. 
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Note 10 -

BOARD OP PORBIQN MISSION§ OF TBB 
HATI~;OCWON OF FRBB wu.L BAPTISTS 
~~ the Fin•pcial statement• 

oecU!ber ll t 1?27 and 1996 

Reclassification of net assets 

d a detailed analysil of the net asaet 
The organisation performe f th ' -~alysis the net asset• at 

Aa a result o ~• ..... 
account• during 1997. t d to reflect the proper balance 

f t h year were reata e 
the beginning o e i d t asaets were increased $5,560 

Th unrestr cte ne 
in the account. e . net asset• were reduced $5,560. 
and the temporarily restr~cted t releaaed from restrictions 

h rior year net asse s 
Accordingly, t e P t for this correction. 
were restated $5,560 to accoun 

Fair values of financial instruments 
d in tiona were used by the Boar 

The following methods and assumpfor financial instruments: 
estimating its fair value disclosures 

cash, cash 
payable&: 
statements 
because of 

i nvestment•, receivables and 
equivalents, h 
The carrying amounts reported in t e 
of financial position approximate fair values 
the short maturities of those instruments. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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BOARD OF PQ&BIQN MISSIONS OF THB 
NATIONAL ASSOC IATION or FRIB wu!. BAPIISTs 

Sche4ule of Fynctiop•l Bxpentet 
For the Xeart Ended pecember 31. 1227 and 1226 

Mittionary expenses : 
Ivory Coas t 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Ptnat'llll 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Commonwealth of Independent States 
Summer mi11ionaries 
Other projects 
Missionary medical 

Total mi11ionary expenses 

VISION campai gn expenses : 
Project expenses 

Total VISION campaign expenses 

( 

1297 

$1,022 , 539 
364,029 
147,206 
724 , 673 
488,595 
295,100 
218,146 
303,262 

83,735 
85 , 419 
63,484 
91.284 ) ( 

3.712.604 

69.528 
69.528 

UN -
$1,044 ,5ft 

403,111 
U1,3U 
see,oos 
401,200 
234,121 
17!t,ns 
307 . 440 
133,115 

78 , 131 
54,115 
52.0]51 

3 , 530.432 

61.010 
61.01C 

Total expen.es §1 . 686.284 $4,459. 135 

See accountants• re t por on supplementary information. 

,_ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR • S REPORT ON SOPPLEHBNTAAY INFORMATION 

Board of Dire ctor& of the 
Board of Foreign Mi aaiona of the 
~~~ionah 1 Aaaociation of Free Will Baptiata 

oc • Tenneaaee 

Our report on our audita of the be i 
o f Fore ign ~aaiona of the N•ti l a c financial a t a te .. nta of the Board 

d 1 
~ ona Aaaociation o f p Wi 

a n ''' a ppeara on nage 1 Th ree ll B«ptiata for 1tt7 
r- · oae audita vera d f 

an opinion on the baaic fin4an i 
1 

- e or the purpoae of fonoing 
of functional expenaea ia pre:~te:t;:;-e:• taken aa a whole, The acbedule 
are not a required part of the ba i purpoae o f additional analyaia and 
ha ... _ 8 c financial a t t • .-en aubjecte d to the audit in a a..nta · Such infonaation 
baaic financi a l atat eme.nt a and t! proceduraa a pplied in the audita of the 
.. teria l reapecta in relation ~o tb~baeopinion, ia fairly a t a t ed in a ll 
whole . ic financial a tate .. nta taken aa a 
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Free \f./ill Baptist Foreign Missions 
1999 Budget 

hlllgn fields 
!wrY (oost 

$1,293,215.15 

Brazil 
719,655.39 

France 
379,080.39 

Indio 186,222.62 

Jopon 517,922.58 

us. 175,397.12 

(Bntrol Asio 161,235.56 

Ponomo 370,736.50 

Spain 395,849.50 

Uruguay 326,579.03 

Cubo 26,750.00 

Other Fields 126,300.00 
200t000.00 Projeded missionary appointments 

54,878,943.84 

Oilier 
Retired missionaries s 2,400.00 

lllfonnation and Promotion 
Heartbeat mogozine s 52,200.00 
Promotional materials 20,000.00 
lnformofion services materials 33,710.00 
Foreign Missions Month 6,000.00 

Other 4,800.00 
film and art supplies 6,300.00 
Audio-visual supplies 3,600.00 
Video production 11,000.00 

Video equipment 16,800.00 
Books ond subscriptions 3,000.00 
Retreat ond debriefing sessions 7,500.00 
Equipment ond vehicle depredofion 13,500.00 
Computer equipment 3,000.00 
Personnel 151 903.76 

s 333,313.76 
I.e Tronsfer of ~ inWIJOIIlO d1oJges 

{304,136.51} rom miss. budgets s 29,177.25 

Travel & Board Expenses 
Deportment auto expenses s 14,000.00 

Boord members' expenses 18,000.00 
Boord members' overseas trove! 1,000.00 

Honorariums 1,000.00 
Deportment troveVouto expenses 35,000.00 
Travelers' insurance 800.00 

s 69,800.00 

Note: Budgets for foreign expenditures ore subject to change 
where extreme fluctuations in the value of the dollar occur. 

Administrative 
Solories s 233,964.20 

Administrofive housing 48,200.00 

Administrofive SO<iol security 34,141.13 

Health insurance 32,135.66 

Refirement 12,392.45 

Benevolent insurance fund 1,980.00 

Audit 6,000.00 

Office rent 75,000.00 

Office insurance other 3,300.00 

Office equip purchases 8,000.00 

Equipment and vehicle depreciofion 39,000.00 

Maintenance of office equipment 1,500.00 

Office and computer supplies 5,000.00 
Condidote, recruifing and promofion 6,500.00 
Seminars, training and educational 3,000.00 

Books ond subscripfions 5,000.00 

Miscellaneous expenses 27,500.00 

Professional services 27,886.57 

PnyToll tuxes 15~000.00 
s 585,500.01 

Total Operational Budget $5,565,821 I 10 

Additional Approved VISION Proiects 
France - church building ot Nantes S 93,000.00 

Indio - church buildings 80,000.00 

Cuba - churche¥'rest home 50,000.00 

Po noma - down payment on house 7,500.00 

Uruguay- new church property 150,000.00 

Uruguay- Malvin 70,000.00 

Brazil - Evongelondio 20,000.00 

Brazil - Bela Horizonte 15,000.00 

Brazil - Borboceno 50,000.00 

Brozil - Compinos apartment 5,850.00 
Brozil - Ribeiroo Preto 2nd (Morincek) 25,000.00 
Brazil - Uberiondio 2nd Church 30,000.00 
Brazil- Conselheiro lofoiete Comp Fodlities 30,000.00 
Ivory Coast -Abidjan 100,000.00 

Unexpected opportunities 5otooo.oo 

Total VISION s n6,3so.oo 

Total Budget $6,342,171.10 
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1997 1998 1999 
$23,683 Salary Breakdown Bookkeeper 521,687 522,555 

1,812 Salary 1,659 1,725 
General Director Social Security 1,128 1,184 1997 1998 1999 1,084 2,827 So lory $24,846 $27,812 Retuement 3,299 2,336 $33,438 

$27)44 $29,506 Housing and U~lities 16,800 18,000 Insurance $27,730 20,000 TOiOI Dept. Expense to Employ Social Security 6,716 7,388 8,617 Retirement 2,082 2,291 2,672 Auounting Clerk 
516,510 517,171 518,978 Insurance 1,452 6,222 4,488 5,430 Salary 1,263 1,314 Total De~t. Ex~ense to Em~lol S56t666 $591978 $70,157 Social Security 859 949 

826 2t827 - Retirement 21336 Director of Communications 
31299 Insurance $21,679 524,205 So lory $26,009 $27,833 $21,898 $28,600 Total Dept. Expense to Employ Housing and Utilities 9,600 9,600 11,400 

Secretary to the General Director Social Security 5,742 6,036 6,450 $27,090 531,751 Retirement Sol $26,048 2,429 1,780 1,872 2,000 ory . 1 993 2,072 Insurance 1,588 81460 6,085 7,363 Social Secunty 
1
' 
302 1,354 Total De~t. Ex~ense to Em~lol S51t592 $511426 $55t813 Retirement 3 299 2)36 2,827 

$38,594 Overseas Secretary Insurance 1 $32,853 
Total Dept. Expense to Employ S32•642 So lory $23,513 $25,433 $25,000 Housing and Utilities 12,000 12,000 15,000 Secretary 

$19,619 $20,404 $22,281 Social Security 5,727 6,036 6,450 So lory 1,561 1,705 Retirement 1,776 1,872 2,000 Social Security 1,501 
1,020 1,114 

981 2,827 Insurance 6,222 4,488 5,430 Retirement 
3,299 2,336 Total Dept. Expense to Employ $49,238 ~49,829 $53,881 lnsumnce S25t322 $27,927 

Total Dept. Expense to Employ $25,400 Director of Stateside Ministries 
So lory $22,265 $24,233 $26,800 Part-nme Accounting Clerk $7,280 $7,280 Housing and Utilities 13,200 13,200 13,200 Salary 557 557 Social Security 5,719 6,036 6,450 Social Security 0 0 

0 Retirement 1,773 1,872 2,000 Retirement 0 Insurance 6t222 4,488 5,430 Insurance 
0 $7,837 $7,837 

Total De~t. Ex~ense to Em~lo~ Total Dept. Ex~ense to Employ $49,180 $49,829 $53,881 
Treasurer Part-nme Office Staff $10,000 $10,000 Salary $35,993 $37,433 $40,000 Salary 0 0 

0 Socia I Security 5,735 5,965 6,374 Social Security 0 
0 Retirement 1,949 1,872 2,000 Retirement 0 Insurance 8,460 6,085 7,363 Insurance S10,000 $10,000 

0 Total De~t. Expense to Emplo~ Total Dept. Expense to Employ $52,137 $51,355 $55,737 
Support Coordinator/Communications Assistant Computer Services/Associate Support Coordinator 

$16,224 $17,035 So lory $21,280 $21,600 S I $19,264 
0 0 a ory 

4 Housing and Utilities 12,000 14,400 Social Security 1 ·~~3 0 0 Social Security 2,683 2,903 Retuement 
3 299 0 0 Retirement 1,664 1,800 Insurance - ' ~16,224 $17,035 Insurance Total Dept. Expense to Employ $25•000 2,336 2,827 Total De~t. Expense to Em~lo~ 0 $391964 $43t530 

Editorial Assistant 
So lory $17,727 $18,436 $19,358 Social Security 1,356 1,410 1,481 Retirement 886 922 968 Insurance 3,299 2,336 2,827 Total De~r. Ex~ense to Em~lol $23)68 $23t 104 S24t634 
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1999 State Goals 
With 1997 Comparison 

State/Source 1997 Goals 1997 Gifts 1999 Goals 

Alabama $195,000.00 $210,544.47 $245,000.00 
Arizona 6,500.00 8,917.48 11,000.00 
Arkansas 300,000.00 305,389.51 355,000.00 
California 83,000.00 58,993.46 75,000.00 
Canada 10,000.00 6,533.16 11,000.00 
Colorado 8,000.00 9,987.04 13,000.00 
Florida 85,000.00 123,169.03 142,000.00 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 23,000.00 20,144.24 27,500.00 
Georgia 200,000.00 238,449.97 250,000.00 
Hawaii 1,000.00 125.00 1,000.00 
Idaho 1,000.00 4,245.11 7,500.00 
Illinois 150,000.00 154,074.54 175,000.00 
Indiana 40,000.00 42,119.84 50,000.00 
Iowa 3,000.00 2,062 .04 3,000.00 
Kansas 9,000.00 7,784.76 12,000.00 
Kentucky 80,000.00 75,290.70 90,000.00 
Louisiana 2,000.00 1,785.00 2,500.00 
Maryland 29,000.00 46,907.24 60,000.00 
Michigan 200,000.00 187,275.62 210,000.00 
Miscellaneous 19,365.88 127,498.07 135,821 .10 
Mississippi 75,000.00 72,519.61 90,000.00 
Missouri 325,000.00 413,667.01 460,000.00 
Montano 2,500.00 2,100.00 3,000.00 
Nebraska 1,000.00 1,035.00 1,500.00 
New Mexico 2,000.00 3,481.80 5,000.00 
North Carolina 570,000.00 635,131.45 685,000.00 
Northeast Assoc 2,400.00 2,865.00 4,000.00 
Northwest Assoc. 10,000.00 6,968.01 11,000.00 
Ohio 135,000.00 185,438.48 200,000.00 
Oklahoma 420,000.00 459,707.90 505,000.00 
Pennsylvania 1,000.00 447.00 1,000.00 
South Carolina 255,000.00 330,589.25 375,000.00 
Tennessee 715,000.00 786,605.45 850,000.00 
Texas 100,000.00 76,627.19 95,000.00 
Virgin Islands 3,000.00 2,511.13 4,000.00 
Virginia 110,000.00 89,435.24 100,000.00 
West Virginia 110,000.00 110,543.67 130,000.00 
WNAC 170,000.00 163,309.68 170,000.00 

Totals $4,451,765.88 $4,974,279.15 $5,565,821.10 

Note: Miscellaneous includes miscellaneous sources, states and interest income. 

A- 194 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Report 
With a sense of joy, yet sorrow, I recently shook the hands of 56 graduates­

members of one of our largest recent classes. The joy came becau_se they had 
finished what they started; joy because of the memon~ w e made; JOY because 
of what I anticipate God will do in and through them_; JOY because, _as _a faculty, 
staff, and administration, we had the privilege of bemg part of the~r bv~s for a 
short time; joy because we helped to mold them and giVe them direction and 
purpose. What an awesome responsibility! . . 

The sorrow comes when I realize they will not be back next year. I will rruss 
them. They have become vital expressions of what FWBBC is all about Their 
contribution to the college has been significant. 

But, I remind myself, we have done what we were charged to do: 

-to love and train them, 
-to show them how to know God, 

-to challenge them to serve Him, 
-to connect with them in lifelong friendships. 

In the simplest way I know, I say, "Thank you!" ~ Y?~ for helping to make 
it all possible. You are a vital part of what we are domg, trairung students to serve 
Christ and His Church. They are yolff students. Someday, they will be your pastors, 
your teachers, your missionaries, and your musicians. . 

We are moving forward in relocating the college. We kicked off_ the 
Relocation Campaign in March. People and churches ~e already re~ponding_. 

Enrollment last year was up slightly. We are expecting another Increase tn 

August. . . 
We set a new record, again, in the 1997 Paul Ketteman Memonal Christmas 

Drive, raising $335,508.39. 
I commend to you our fine faculty and staff. They are people who love Christ 

and His Church. They are also dedicated to the training of our students. . . 
As you may know, after 20 years as Dean of ~o~e~, Mrs. ~aiJone 

Workman has resigned. Also, after 43 years, Dr. Robert J!cm~ h~ resigned as 
Academic Dean. He will remain with the college and will assist his successor. 
Replacements have already been named for these offices, people who are w ell 

qualified to do the work. 
Thank you for your contributions to the college: prayer, students, encour-

agement and support. Continue to rem ember us when you pray. Send us your 
best yo~ people. As God enables, support us to the best of your ability. Free 
Will Baptist Bible College is still your college. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Tom Malone 
President 

A- 195 



December 4-6, 1991 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Board of Trustees 

Synopsis of Minutes 
1997-98 

The Board met on campus to hear reports and conduct necessary business. 
We received reports from the President and each department head regarding 
his area of responsibility. Roy Harris was approved to fill the position of Director 
of Advancement to handle the campus relocation capital campaign and Tun 
Campbell was assigned to the position of Director of Stewardship 
Development. The state of the budget was reviewed and updated information 
on the campus relocation process was considered. 

May 11-13, 1998 
The Board m et on campus with all members present. The College 

President's report of the current school year was received and his evaluation 
and goals reviewed. The resignations of Dr. Robert Picirilli as Academic Dean 
and Mrs. Marjorie Workman as Dean of Women were received. Dr. Milton Fields 
was appointed as Academic Dean and Mrs. Susan Forlines as Dean of Women. 

Reports from all department heads were heard; the 1998-99 budget and 
salary schedule were adopted; faculty appointments were approved. Approval 
was given to move the retirement investment funds to Suntrust as trustees. 
Commendation was given to Doug Little for his years of service as board mem­
ber and chairman. 

Financial Aid Report 
Loans Issued ..... ...... . . . .... ... . 137 ... . ... $ 166,499.10 
Student Workers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 5 . . . . . . . . . 11 8,56 7 . 00 
Scholarship Recipients ............. . . . 86 .......... 60,996.99 
State Grant Program .. ... .. ..... .... . 15 .......... 21,636.00 
SEOG Program . .................... 76 . . .. ...... 22,311.00 
College Work Study Program . . .. .. ..... 13 .......... 20,863.00 
Pell Grant Awards .................. 124 . . .. ..... 161,203.00 
Subsidized Stafford Loan Program ... . .. 233 ......... 625,905.00 
UnSubsidized Stafford Loan Program ..... 44 ......... 128,577.00 
PLUS Loan Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 . . . . . . . . . . 15,400.00 
Total Financial Aid Administered 1997-98 ........... $1,341,958.09 
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Registration Report 
Annual Report 1997-98 

.... 372 
Enrollment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . 

Enrollment Breakdowns 

8y State 22 Kentucky · · · · · · · ·12 
••abama . · · · · · 1 
I'U 18 Louisiana · · · · · · · · 
·..Lansas . · · · · · 14 
I'U ~ 2 Michigan . · · · · · · · 
.... izona . · · · · · · · · 7 ,... 2 Mississippi · · · · · · · · 
California · · · · · · 19 2 Missouri · · · · · · · · 
Colorado · · · · · · · k 1 14 Nebras a · · · · · · · · 
Florida · · · · · · · New Mexico . . . · · .1 

South Carolina 12 
South Dakota · .2 
Tennessee · · · · 79 
Texas .. · · · · · ·3 
Virginia .. · · · .13 
Washington · · · .2 
West Virginia . · ..4 

Georgia . · · · · .14 C 1· 27 1 North oro ma · · · 1 
ld~h~ . . . · · · · ·AS Ohio . . . . . . . . . . .13 ysvt : . . · · · · · · 
llhnots ... · · · · · oul h ma 6 Foretgn . · · · .22 13 ~a o .. . . . .. . 
Indiana . . . . . . . bod ... 27 states USV1 and 8 foreign countnes.) 

(The student Y represen.) ' , 

By Classification 
Freshmen . · · .114 
Sophomores · · .93 

Others 
Male .. ...... 212 
Female .. · · · .160 
New ........ 120 
Returning . · · .252 

•foreign 
Bahamas . . · · · · .4 
Brazil ... · · · · · .2 
Canada ... · · · · .9 

Juniors · · · · · ·15 

Seniors ~ ~ ~ · · · · · · 78 

Free Will Baptist .346 
Other . .. · · · · · · ·26 
Ministerial . · · · · · .6S 
Missionary · · · · · · .6S 

France . · · · · · · · · ·1 

Panama . · · · · · · · ·2 

Romania . · · · · · · · ·1 

Welch Library 

Special . . . . . . 12 

Single .. · · · .312 
Married . · · · · .60 
FT . .... .... 308 
PT .... . .. . . . 64 

Russia .. · · · · · ·1 

Spain .. · · · · · .2 

Total books, bound volu~es, micro~~!t~~~-r~.c~r~~· ... 66,654 
video-cassettes, instructional maten s, 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College Salary Breakdown 

President 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
Life Insurance 

Academic Dean (New) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
life Insurance 

1996-97 

$51,308 
3,925 
2,960 
2,304 

183 
$60,680 

1997-98 

$53,104 
4,062 
3,064 
1,964 

183 
$62,377 

Unavailable 
at time of 

printing 

Advancement Director Relocation Campaign (New) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
life Insurance 

Stewardship Development Director (New) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
Life Insurance 

Treasurer 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Medical Insurance 
life Insurance 

$38,949 
2,980 
2,247 
2,304 

183 
$46,663 

$40,357 
3,087 
2,329 
1,964 

183 
$47,920 

Salary includes housing allowance where applicable. 

Some administrators have chosen a voluntary reduction from fisted salaries. 
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1998-99 

$54,354 
4,158 
2,718 
2,400 

240 
$63,870 

$36,208 
2,770 
1,810 
2,400 

240 
$43,428 

$31,013 
2,372 
1,551 
2,400 

240 
$37,576 

$41,607 
3,183 
2,080 
2,400 

240 
$49,510 

I F d Gift Goals by States for 1998-99 Genera un 

1998-99 Goals State $ 86,000 
Alabama . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3 000 

, . . . . . . . . . . . .Arizona .... · · · · · · · · · · · 
Arkansas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Califorrua . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 
Canad ...... . a .......... . • • • • • • 

Colorado .. ......... . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Connecticut . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Delaware ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
F) 'd ......... . on a . .. . · · · · · · · · · · · 
Georgia ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Hawaii .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Idaho ............... . . . . . . . . . . . 
lli.inois .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

60,000 
14,400 
1,300 
1,200 
1,800 
1,100 

30,500 
90,000 

700 
700 

48,000 
16,400 • • • • • • • • • Indiana . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 ,600 . . . . . . . . Iowa ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2,000 . . . . . . . . Kansas . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 24,000 

Kentucky · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 700 . . . . . . . . . .. LOUISiana · · · · · · · · . . . . . . 12,000 
Maryland . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 42,000 
Michigan · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 36,000 
Mississippi · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 45,800 . . . . . . . . . . MISSOun · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . 600 
Nebraska . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 600 
Nevada . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 200 
New Hampshire · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 600 
New Jersey · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 600 
New Mexico · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 178,000 
North Carolina · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 24 000 . . . . . . . . . , <:>hio ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 33,000 
<:>k1ahoma . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 200 
Pennsylvania · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 7 4, 100 
South Carolina · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 , I 00 
South Dakota · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 210,500 
Tennessee · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 16,000 . . . . . . . . . . Texas .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 ,200 
Vermont . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2,400 
Vrrgin Islands · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 30,000 
Virginia .... · · · .. · .. · · .... · .. · .. · 12,000 Ac ..... . WN · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . 2,400 
Washington · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 14 800 
West Vrrginia · · · · · · · · · · · · · : : : : : : : 78:500 
<:>ther . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ..... $1,200,000 
or.otal · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · •• • • • • • • • 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 
3606 West End Avenue 

NO$hviUe, Tenn8$$ee 37205 

---615/383-1340 
Fox: 615/269-6028 
www.fwbbc.edu 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COl .LEGE 

Statements or Finandal Posltfoo 

May 31, 1998 aod 1997 

aa••' a.w:ts: Clsla and cash equivalents 
A,ccOUJlts receivable: 

Student accounts. net of allowance for doubtM 
accounts of $6,000 in 1998 

p)edges 
Employee and other 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Total c:urn11t assets 

Noa curnnt assets: 
Cash restricted for en.dowments 
Cash restricted for student loans 
Cash held under life income agreements 
Investment securities, at market value 
Loans to students, Jess allowance for doubtful 

loans of $15,000 

Total DOD c:urnnt assets 

Property, plant aad equipment: 
Investment in property. plant and equipment 
Acc:wnulated depreciation 

Net property, plant aud equipment 

Total usds 

Uabilities and Net Assets 

Ulrrent liabilities: 
Accounts payable and acaued expenses 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Acaued salaries 
Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total curnnt liabilltes 

Notes payable aad lon& tum debt: 
Notes payable and capital lease obligations 
Notes payable to individuals 

Total other liahllites and lon& term debt 

Total liabilities 
Net assets: 

Unrestricted funds 
Temporarily restricted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities aad Det assets 

See ac.companyia& DOtes to finaDcial atatements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

1998 1997 

307.259 379,061 

23,001 36,131 

134.250 81,600 

34,043 17,393 

9,904 6,056 

41,168 48,427 

549,625 568.668 

316,311 270,311 

439,710 432,881 

5,000 5,000 

91,147 63,823 

248,424 268,017 

1,100,592 1.040.032 

5,650,377 5,391,129 

2,336,338 2,2()9,167 

3,314,039 3,181.962 

~.964.256 ~.790,662 

97,467 69,018 

53,250 55,327 

105,938 79,542 

8,581 15,693 

265,236 219.580 

7,701 24,760 

172,241 186.589 

179,942 211,349 

445,178 430,929 

3,461,719 3,431,742 

98,895 51,205 

958.464 876,786 

4,519.078 4,359.733 

4,964,256 4,790,662 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Statements of AdiYities aod Changes fo Net Assets 

For the years ended May 31, 1998 and 1997 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees 

Federal grants and contracts 
Private gifts 

Endowment income 
Investment income 

Unrealized gain on investments 
Sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises 

Otber sources 

Net assets released from restrictions 

Total rennues 

Expenditures: 

Educational aad ceneral: 
Instruction 

Academic support 
Student services 

Operation and maintenance of plant 
Institutional support 

Scholarships and fellowships 

Total educatwnal and general 
expenditures 

Auxiliary enterprises: 

Dormitories 
Dining hall 

Boolcstore 
Snaclcshop 

Total auxiliary enterprises 
expenditures 

Total expendituJU 

Increase In net assets 

Net assets at becinnlac ot year 
as restated 

1998 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 
FUnds 

$ 1,506,307 

932.795 
7,589 

11,418 

FUnds 

32,709 

201,250 
14,986 

99 

FUnds 

50,515 

14,088 

27.324 

Total 

1,506,307 

32,709 
1,184,560 

22.575 
25,605 

27.324 

1.307,605 
2S,6)5 

1,129,984 

1~ 

26,966 
4.Q60 

983,788 

27,410 

3,469,307 

201,354 
249,044 

983,788 959,762 
(10,249) __ 1_,7,_16_1 _----'8-'-".Q...;.. 

81,678 3,800,029 3,481,427 

(201.354) ---- -------
3,670,661 47,690 81,678 

2.792,097 ---- ----

848,587 ---- ----

3,640,684 ---- ----
29$T] 47,690 81,678 

3,431,742 51,205 __ ___.__ 

3.800,029 

929,429 

252.160 
318,515 
387,423 
835,923 

68,647 

2.792.097 

3,481,427 

878,416 

255,130 
302,841 

343,107 

798,253 
46,909 

2,624,656 

304,824 275,042 

420,213 398,953 
96,863 85,596 

26,687 _ ____::23~,83.._._7 

848,587 

3,640,684 

159,345 

783,428 

3,408,084 

73,.343 

Net asseta at end ot year 
$ 3,461, 719 ===98=,89===5 

876,786 

958,464 

4.359,733 

4,519,078 

4,286,390 

4,359.733 
See accompanyln& nota to financial statements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COI..I.EGE 

Statements of Cash F1ows 

For the years ended May 31, 1998 aod 1997 
1998 

Temporarily Permaaently 
_._.__. Restricted Unrutrkted Rest~ 

Funds Fundi Funds 

,.._ .... n ws from operating activities 
~ 0 $ 2.488,036 C&1h collected from students 

fedeta) grants 
PeD grants considered to be agency 

fund transactions 
Private gifts and grants 
Endowment income 
Investment income 
Other revenues 
Cash paid for scholarships. to vendors 

and for payroll 

930,545 
7,589 

11,418 
15,849 

(3,438,4TI) 

32.709 

161,922 
43,235 
14,986 

99 

Total 

2,488,036 
32.709 

161,922 
973,780 

22,575 
11,517 
15,849 

1997 

2,270,475 
25,615 

154,870 
1,060,854 

18,626 
17,563 
27,514 

(3,438,477) (3,243,141) 
(161,922) (154,870) Cash paid for PeU grants 

Interest paid 

(161,922) 
_ _ _..(9'-"8~2> ---'-' 4_,_..5=..=1=-tS) __ ..... (9 __ 8~2) ---- ----

Cash provided from 13,978 
opentinc activities . . -. _ ___::..::....,___ 

Cash Dows from investing actinhes 

91,029 

(288,635} Expended for plant assets. 14,500 
Proceeds from saJe of equJpment 
Student notes receivable made . 
Student note receivable collections 

Cash provided from (274,135) 
(used by) iavestinc activities . . ----

Cash Dows from capital acttvities 

Gifts received for: 
Endowments and student loans 
Proposed new campus 

Other stude.nt loan transactions: 
lnterest income on student loans 
Investment income . 
Collection costs and other transacttons 

Cash provided by capital activities . . -
Cash Dows from financing actiVIties 

te debt· Retirement of notes payable and Jong rm · (17,059) 
Related to plant assets 205,414 
lnterfund activities 
Notes payable for student loans 

Cash provided from (used by) 

tinancln& activities 188,355 

Net lnause (decruse) in cash 

and cash equivalents (71,802) 

Cash and c:asb equivalents at 

be&innlac of year 379,061 

Cash aad c:asb equivalents at 

107,615 

107,615 

(198,644) 

(198,644) 

5,000 

at end ot year $ 307,259 ==~5,====000 
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(183,218) 
185,673 

2,455 

50,515 

105,007 

(288,635) 
14,500 

(183,218) 
185.673 

(271,680) 

50,515 
107,615 

172.991 

(66,734) 

(120,702) 
148.568 

(38,868) 

81,080 
63,650 

15,669 15,669 7,912 
14 088 14,088 9,403 

< 4 :nn - ---"' 4=· n:..:c....n _ ___,.C5=;J.=n=> 
75,545 183.160 156,m 

(6,TIO) 
(18,401) 

(25,171) 

52,829 

703,192 

756,021 

(17,059) (41,464) 

(18.401) __ .....;5-..-00~ 

(35,460) (40,964) 

(18,973) 249,932 

1,087,253 837,321 

1,068,280 1,087,253 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COI.I.EGE 

Statements of C.sb Flows, cootinued 

For the years ended May 31, 1998 and 1997 
1991 

TauponrfJJ PermuentJ1 
Uarutricted Restricted Ratrided 

Funds 

Cash atld cash eqaJYaJents 
Current usets 

COnsist of the followia,: 

Non C:UIT'eat asets: 
$ 307,259 

Cash restricted for endowments 
Cash I'Utrided for student loans 
Cash held under life Income 

apeements 

Total cash ud cash equi"Yalents 
$ 

Rec:ondlation of lucreue In net assets to 

307.259 

cash Oows prov;id-~ , . 
c:u arom operating activities 

lnaease in net assets 

Transactions considered lo be capital additi $ . 

Gifts for endowments and student loans ons. 
Proposed new campus 

Net olber transactions from 

student Joan funds 
Depreciation 

29,977 

153,619 
UmeaJized gain on investments 

Gam on saJe of eqwpment 

Net interfund transfers 

(Increase) decrease in current assets: 

(11.561) 
(201.354) 

Accounts receivable: 

Student accounts, net of allowance for 
Pledges 

Employee and olher 
Inventories 

Prepaid expenses 

Inaease (decrease) in current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Student deposits and agency funds 
Acaued salaries 

13,130 
(2,250) 

(16,650) 
7,259 

(3,848) 

Funds 

5,000 

5,000 

47,690 

(107,615) 

201,354 

(50,400) 

Deferred revenues 

Cash proYided from 

28,449 
(2,071) 
26,396 
{7,112) ----

from operatlnc adlriUes 

Funds 

316.311 

439,710 

756,021 

81,678 

(50.515) 

(3,839) 

{27,324) 

Total 

307.259 

316.311 
439,710 

5,000 

1,068.280 

159,345 

(50.515) 
(107,615) 

(3,839) 

153,619 

(27,324) 

(11.561) 

13,130 
(52,650) 
(16,650) 

7,259 
(3,848) 

28,449 
{2,071) 
26,396 
(7,112) 

$====13=,97,~8 ====9:=;1,029~ 
========~ 105,007 

See ac:compaaJinc DOta to finandal statements. 
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319.1161 

270,3u 
432.1BJ 

S.C. 

1,087~ 

73,343 

(81,(81) 

9,302 

153,383 
(4,060) 

(12.739) 
11,950 
11,412 

(10,714) 
12,025 

(10,022) 
4,589 
4,344 

11,258 

1n,991 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COIJ.EGE 
Notes to Floanclal Statements 

Ma, 31, 1998 and 1m 

ne Free Will Baptist Bible College operates under the auspices of lbe National Association of Free Will 
Baplisls. Inc. and is governed by a Board of Trustees. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of lhe College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In order 1o ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on lbe use of resources available lo 

the College, lhe accounts of the College are maintained in accordance wilh the principles of "fund 

accounting". This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting 

pwposes into funds lhal are in accordance with activities or objectives as specified by donors, in 
accordance wilh regulations, restrictions, or limitations imposed by sources outside lbe institution, or in 
accordance wilh directions issued by lbe governing board. 

These fmanciaJ statements. however, have been prepared 1o focus on lhe entity as a whole and 1o present 

transactions according 1o the existence or absense of donor- imposed restrictions in conformity wilb 

Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received 

and Contributions Made" and No. 117 "Fmancial Statements of Not- for- Profit Organizations" adopted 

by the Financial Accounting Standards Board in June 1993. This has been done by classification of fund 

transactions into three categories of net assets: unrestricted net assets which have no donor- imposed 

restnctions, temporarily restricted assets which have donor- imposed restrictions that expire in the 

future, and permanently restricted net assets which have donor imposed restrictions which do not expire, 

as follows: 

Reporting prior to 

SFAS No. 116 and 117 

Fund Group 

Unrestricted current funds 

Restricted current funds 

Annuity (life income) funds 

Loan funds 

Endowment funds: 

True 

Scholarship 

Quasi 

Plant funds: 

Unexpended plant funds 

Net investment in plant 

Agency funds 

Expiration of Donor- Imposed Restrictions 

Reporting in compliance with 

SFAS No. 116 and 117 

Net Asset Group 

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

Temporarily restricted 

Permanently restricted 

Permanently restricted 

Permanently restricted 

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

Unrestricted 

Unrestricted liability 

The expiration of a donor- imposed restriction on a contribution is recognized in the period in wb.idl the 

restriction expires and at that time the related resources are reclassified 1o unrestricted net assets. A 

restriction expires when the stipulated time has elapsed. when the stipulated purpose for whicb lbe 

resource was restricted bas been fulfiJJed, or bolb. 
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FREE WllL BAPTIST BffiLE COIJEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. continued 

Pledges Receivable (note 8) 

These amounts, less an appropriate rCSCIVe, are recorded at their estimated fair value with amo • ... 
later than one year at the present value of estimated future cash Oows. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant assets, consisting of land, buildings. other land improvements, equipment and furnishings, .., 
books, and oonstruction in progress are stated at cost or estimated fair value at date of gift Expelditaw 
for acquistion of assets in excess of $250 are capilalized as investment in plant. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives of the ...._ 
ranging from 5 to 50 years. The current provision for depreciation is reported as an expenditure of 11e 
College. 

Inventories 

Inventories, oonsisting of books and supply items, are valued at oost, with oost being determined 011 lie 

fust- in. fust- out method. 

Investments (See note 11) 

Investments are reported at market value to oomply with Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, 

"Accounting for Certain Investments of Not for Profit Organizations." 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in oonformity with generally accepted accounting principlcl 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets ud 
liabilities and disclosure of oontingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and die 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actua.l results oouJd differ 

from those estimates. 

Income Taxes 

The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(cX3); accordingly. 

no provision for taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College considers all cash on hand. deposits in financial 
institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an originaJ maturity of three months or less to be 

cash and cash equivalents. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the College are entitled to paid vacation. paid sick days and personal days off, depellding 

on job classification. length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the amount of 

oompensation for future absences, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying 

financial sbtements. The College's policy is to reoogJlize the cost of oompensated absences wbell 

actually paid to employus. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

tin Policies. continued 
SQmiDarv of Significant Accoun g -

(l) - f Financial InstnJments [air 
Fair Value o bl d accrued expenses approximate 
- carr)'ing value of cash, accounts receivable, .accounts :y• ~ean caxrying values of liabilities are not 
'lbe of the short maturity of these msuumen 
value becaoSe 1h timaled fair values of these instruments. 
materiallY different from e es 

ts _ Marketable Securities 
(l) lnvestmen . table summarizes by type the 

- . . ue stated at market value. The followmg 
Investment secunties al f th investment assets. 
elationship between canying value and market v ue o e Ex<:US of UnreaJ!zrd 

r . 
Market Market Over Cumulative 

Value (Under) Cost Gains 
Carrying 

Value 

Balance May 31,1998 

Com11lon stocks 

Balance May 31,1997 

eommon stocks 

$ 38,224 ===9~1.==14==7 ·=====:=-== == 

$===38:::!:22:=:4 ===63~,8==23== 
. ch . the cummuJative 

Unrealized gam due to ange m 

52.913 

25,599 

$=:::::::::27~,3=2<==4 
change in market value pools 

(3) Remaining Net Assets of Temporarily Restricted Fu~ds . 
. . ted funds ue available for the (ollowtng purposes: 

Net assets of temporarily restnc 

Proposed new campus 

Scholarships 

Life income funds 
Other instructional and institutional 

$ 

(4) N t Assets Released From Restrictions 
e . tri ted net assets as follows: 

52,923 

25,599 

Do 
. posed restrictions expired on temporarily res c 

nor un . ~tt u ·ctions· 
Expenditures made for donor un.,.,-- res 1 

• s 39,289 

Private schotarshlps 17,801 
cA • a1 Opportunity Grant ,90 Supplemental ....,...ucatiOn 14 7 

College Work Study Program 5,126 

Equipment capitalized 3,385 
Other instructional and institutional 120,846 

Proposed new campus related oosts $ 201,354 

Net assets released from restrictions . 
54 870 for 1998 and 1997, respectavely, are not 

PeU grants to students amounting to $161,922 and $1 ' . . as scheduled above. PeU grants are 
ts released from restncUODS, funds are 

included in expenditures or net ~ · ~ the student payments are entitlements and the 
oonsidered to be an agency transacbOD m tha 

not under the control of the College. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLlEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(S) Property, Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Leases (see note 7) 

Components of property, plant and eqwpment and capitalized leases are as follows: 

Land 

Land and costs incurred, proposed new campus 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Library Books 

$ 

Purchased 
Total Assets 

296.519 296,519 

418,067 418,067 

3.374,969 3.374,969 
1,156.564 1,011,240 

404.258 404,258 
5,650,377 5,505,053 

2.336.338 2.191,014 

---
14SJ31 
-
145,3at 

145J! AccumuJated depreciation and amortization 
Net investment in plant 

Depreciation and amortization charged 10 expenditures 

1997. respectively. 

$ 3,314,039 3,314,039 
was $153,619 and $153,383 =in=1=:=998;:=:= .. = 

(6) Pension Plan 

The College has a defined benefit pension plaD which covers all regular employees, except fuD- ti8e 
students. hired prior 10 attaining age 61 following completion of one year of service and attainmeat Ill 
age 21. Service for benefit and vesting purposes shall be the number of plan years in whida .. 

participant completes at least 1,000 hours. The benefits on retirement are determined based on ·~ 
compensation during the three consecutive years during the last ten years prior 10 the par1icipllfl 
normal retirement date which produces the highest average. Employees are not required to oontribllc 
toward the cost of the plan. The College's funding policy is to fund pension costs accrued. The piD 
assets consist of investments held and managed by Sun Trust, Inc., the plan administrator. 

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the College's 
statement of financial position at May 31, 1998. 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligation: 

AccumuJated benefit obligation (of which $1,449,589 is vested) 

Projected benefit obligation for services rendered 10 date 

Plan assets, at fair value 

Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets 

Unrecognized net (gain) or loss 
Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost (benefit) 

Unrecognized net asset at June 1, 1989 being amortized over 15 years 

Acaued pension cost. included in accounts payable 
Net pension cost for 1998 included the following components: 

s (1,489,896) 

s (1,828,160) 

1,626,826 

(201.334) 

230,204 

s 

108,152 

(149,470) 

(12,448) 

Service cost - benefits earned during period S 60,829 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 108,834 

Actual return on plan assets (129,684) 

Net amortization and deferral 11,473 

Net pension cost $ 51,452 

The weighted- average disoount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used il 
determining the actuarial present value of the projected benefit obligation were 8 percent and 4 percellt. 
respectively. The expected long-term rate of return on assets was 8.5 percent 
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APTIST smLE COl .J .EGE 
FREE WILL B ts, continued 

Notes to Financial Statemen 

1993 (7) N~ payable and Long Term Debt 

- eitricted Funds _ Student LoaD Fuods 
ra-aaeotlJ R . d. "duals 

s=~1=n.24====1 ==1=86=.5=89= 
S* deJDand notes payable to U1 tVl 

_._ Related to Jllaot Aad Fioaadac April 1999 
• .__...wed Fuoua - $793 through 
~~- oblia•lion payable monthly at S 
~ inStallment cr 

d by computer equipment. . 
secure ed b computer and telephone equtpment. 

obJj tion. &eCUt y "tal ]ease 
Capital )eaSe ga deb :....... payments related to capa 

(Note· t serv- · · rs) as follows: . · . substantially funded by billang 10 use 
obbgatJOns are 

. thl installments of $1,421 matured 
7% obligation 

November 1997. 

payable m mon Y 

7,701 16,414 

$==7::!7=0==1 ===24=.7==60== . installment obligation 
Total notes payable and capatal lease 

debt installment obligations amounts 
of long- term 

10 $7,701 for the yeat ended 

.Annual maturities 

May 31,1998. Receivable 
(8) Relocation Campaign. New Campus and Pledges 

Relocation Campaign an~ New Ca~pu:. March 1998. The Campaign's purpose is 
10 ~: 

The College began its RelocaUon ~palgP be collected over the next five years. 
ledges and cash contributions totalmg $12.000.~. to $6 000 000 (an average o( $1.2()0,000 annually) 

P · ~nses amounung to • • · 10 $6,000,000. 
$12.000,000 is to fund operatang v~r- located in Joelton, Tennessee amountmg ·ed 
and to relocate and construct the new campus t campus will be sold and all proceeds appli 
When all criteria for relocation have been met. th~ p~excess of the proceeds realized from the sale of 

Cost of construction m 
to the cost of the new campus. . · 

·nbe funded by the RelocatJon Campalgn. 
the present campus WI 

i bl an allowance for potential Pledges Rece va e . ted ealiW>Ie value after 
Pledges receivable are recorded at es~a abl ~ to be collected in years after the next fiscal 
uncollectible pledges. Further, pledges receav e cash flows using an 8% interest {actor. The 

d. unled to their present values of future 
year are LSCO marizC;S pledges receivable as of May 31,1998. 
followangswn . thl for general operations. 

. dated check books. depoSated mon Y s 32.750 
The College receaves post d considered fully collectible. 
whtcb are collectible in the next fiSCil year an are 

Cam · "for 
Remainin pledges outstanding from the "Oaim the Land :''iJl 

g . land for the Joelton. Tennessee camp · 
the purpose of secunng . • 

. . to the "Relocation Campal'i}l for 
Pledges received durmg l998relatmg . d 

th 
. . t .. ~ of general operations and relocaUon to an 

e JOin P-.,......... ~ essee 
constn.action of the new campus in Joelton. enn . 

Less allowance for uncollectible pledges DL 

cash flowS disc:ounted at 8-,u 
Less present value of future 

10 
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$ 18,643 

115,600 

134.243 

(13,424) 
(19.319) 101,500 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, cootinued 

(9) Net Assets 

Net assets of the Colle . ge consiSt of the following as of May 31,1998and 1997: 

Operations 
Net investment in plant assets 
Life income funds 
Unexpended funds restricted for: 

Operating purposes 
Plant facilities 

Student Joan funds 
True endowment funds 
Scholarship endowment funds 

Uorestrkted 
$ 155,381 

3,306,338 

3,461,719 Total net assets $====~~~ 

(10) Concentration of Credit Risk 

1998 
Temporarily Permaaeatly 

Restricted Restricted 

4,ns 

57,001 
37,169 

551,007 
118,513 
288,944 

98,895 958,464 

"" Total 
155,381 

~ 
274,540 

3,306,338 3,LS7 .. 
4,ns 4,715 

57,001 46,. 
37,169 

551,007 S4US3 
118,513 91,18t 
288,944 242,944 

4,519,078 4JS9,733 

The College is the institution of higher cducaf . . 
and offers Bible based educational . IOn of the National Association of Free Will Baptisls, I& 
aedit in certain instances to stu .. -tsse;~ to . members of the denomination. The College _.~ 
F ds. ""u aor .,.,ucatiOnaJ costs d Q~ 

un The College also maintains certain an makes loans to students from the l..oll 

telephone charges, etc. The CoD also accounts for sponsored groups, staff purchases sa··.._. 
d . ege has a substantial' ...,.. IS~ among numereous supporters of the CoD amount of pledges receivable which • 
subject to accounting risk of Joss amowtting to th ege.. These accounts are not collateralized and • 
Furth th e outstandmg balance at any point in time. 

er • e College has cash funds . loss ~ mvested at several finan . al • . . 
or funds amounting to approximately $319 000 . CJ mstitutions and has risk of acGOIIDtia& 

greater than the insurable limit The College aJ' smce the balance at certain financial institutioas i 
subject to accounting risk of '--~ . so owns marketable securities received by gifts hich 

.lVI» amountJng to the recorded bal w • 

(11) Change In Accounting p • I I ance. nne P es (see note 1) 

Changes Made forM 31 The Colle e . J ay , 1997 Financial Statements 
. . g unp emented SFAS No. 124, "Accoun. . 

OrgamzatiOns" during 1997 wiUA.. . . ting for Certam Investments of Not for Profit 
tal , ,.., requires mvestments to be 

to net assets have been restated as f M reported at market value. AccordinglY 
pins" those.,,.." foUowso o ay 31, 1996, effect;,, May 31, 1997, to <dlect DWket .~~ 

Total net assets as of May 31, 1996 
as reported May 31,1996 

Net gajn as of May 31,1995 

Net gajn for the year ended May 31, 1996 

Total net assets as restated as or May 31 
1996as reported May 31,1997 • 

$ 

$ 
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3,427,403 58,039 

3.427,403 ====5~8,0~3~9 

11 

779,409 
7,666 

13,873 

800,948 

4,264,851 

7,666 
13~ 

4,286,3~ 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

'Ibis sununatl' is provided to help the denomination better urulerstand the overall financial 

condition of Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

Balanced Budget 
Total Unrestricted Funds Revenues for the year ending May 31, 1998 amount to $3,670,661. 
Total Expenditures were $3,640,684, providing a $29,971 surplus of income over expenses. 

Negative Cash Flow Statement 

The combined cash flow of the College's operating, investing, capital and financial activities 
showed cash and cash equivalents decreasing $71,802 in Unrestricted Funds, no change in 
Temporarily Restricted Funds, and increasing $52,829 in Pennanently Restricted Funds for a 

cumulative cash flow decrease of$18,973 . 

Note: Last year's (1996-97) cumulative cash flow was a posittve $249,932. In 1997-98, the college built 
an access road at the new campus site. A large portion of the funds that had been given in I 996-97 were 

held unti/1997-98 before release for payment of said road. 

Unrestricted Giving 

Private gifts provided $932,795 in unrestricted funds revenues. Of that amount, $872,859 was 
provided from General Fund gifts, $59,646 from Estate gifts, and $290 from special gifts. 
FWBBC thanks all who gave so generously to help us end another fiscal year "in the black." 

~neral Fund Giving Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

Because of above-mentioned General Fund gifts, FWBBC students were in essence "awarded,. 
SlOO for every semester hour taken in 1997-98. Or, unrestricted General Fund gifts kept the cost 
of tuition per semester hour at $159 instead of$259. This gift subsidy saved each student taking 

30 semester hours (15 hours per semester) a total of$3,000 this past academic year. 

Relocation Campaign/Claim the Land Update 

All totaled, the college has now received $462,316 in gifts toward the purchase of the Joelton 
property, construction of the access road and the new Relocation Campaign. Another $134,243 

in pledges remains to be collected. 

Financial Obligations 

The College remains, in practicality, debt-free. A loan obligation for computer equipment 
amounts to $7,701. Notes Payable to Individuals (the proceeds are restricted for the purpose of 
providing low-interest student loans) amounts to $172,241. The College has sufficient cash and 

savings to completely liquidate these financial obligations. 

Debt Ratio 

FWBBC's assets to debt ratio is extremely good. Total assets amount to $4,964,256. Our debt 
(listed in "Financial Obligations" above) comes to $179,942, giving a 27.59 to 1 ratio. Adding all 
other liabilities to our debt bring the total to $445,178, and gives a 11 .15 to 1 ratio. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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Free Will Baptist Bible CoU e 
Proposed Budget for the year End. ~ 

As Co tng ay 31, J 999 
Actual as S · mpared to 

utnmarized for the Year Ended May 31, 1998 

Revenues: 

Tuition & Fees 
Gifts: 

Relocation Campaign (Operations) 
Estates & Miscellaneous 

Endowment Income 
Investment Income 

Current Unrestricted Funds 

Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 

Other Sources 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 

Total Revenues: 

Expenditures: 

Educational & General: 
Instruction 
Academic Support 
Student Services 

Op~ra~on, Maintenance of Plant 
lnstJtutronaJ Support 
Scholarship/Contingency 

Total Educational & General Expenditures 

Auxiliary Enterprises: 

Expenditures 

Total Expenditures: 

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 

Proposed 
Budget 

May 31, 
1999 

1,694,224 

1,200,000 
17,000 

7,500 
I 5,000 

1,089,000 

15,000 
100 000 

4,137,724 

1,038,185 
321,651 
358,877 
489,304 

1,000,040 

I,S06,lo7 

873)49 
S9,646 

7,519 
11,411 

983,781 

27,410 
201354 

3,670,661 

929,429 
252,160 
318,5JS 
387,423 
835,923 
68647 

3,208,057 2,792,097 

929,667 848,587 

4, 137,724 3,640,684 

0 29,977_ 

TinS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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commission for Theological Integrity Report 
1be purpose of this commission is: (I) To alert our people of theological 

uendS that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To 
~ materials that will contribute to the continued preservation of the the­
QioSical integrity of the denomination, and (3) As need and opportunity arise, to 
COil(luct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the purpose of the com-
misSiOn 

On October 24-25, 1997, we sponsored the second annual Theological 
SympOsium. It met at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma 
Seven papers were read on a variety of subjects. The interest was good. On 
friday night, October 24, a panel discussion was conducted on Postmodernism 
There was a good, healthy interaction during the meeting. Our 1998 Theological 
Symposium will be conducted November 6-7 at Free Will Baptist Bible College, 
Nashville. Tennessee. 

It is generally recognized that a drastic change has taken place in the secular 
culture since World War II. A paradigm shift has been made in secular thought 
from Modernism to Postmodemism. Prior to 1960, Modernism was on the throne 
in secular thought and culture. From 1960 - 1990 was a period of transition from 
Modernism to Postmodernism. By 1990, Modernism had been dethroned and 
Postmodemism had ascended to the throne. At the present time, Postmodemism 
is the major force in shaping American culture. 

While Modernism ignored God in its thinking, it did believe that truth existed. 
Postmodemism does not believe that truth exists. Modernism recognized the 
place of the law of non-contradiction in the pursuit of truth. Postmodernism has no 
trouble with believing ideas that stand in contradiction to one another. Modernism 
believed that there is a moral nature to reality. There might not have been com­
plete agreement on right and wrong, but it was agreed that there was such a thing 
as right and wrong. Postmodernism rejects the idea that there is any truth that 
makes some things right and some things wrong. Modernism believed in the aspi­
ration for high ideals for culture that find expression in beauty and excellence. 
Postrnodernism rejects the concept of high culture and low culb.Jre. Everything is 
democratized. Modernism believed that reality is rational and that a rational 
Worldview is possible. Postmodemism rejects the idea that reality is rational, and 
thus rejects the idea of a rational Worldview. The challenge of the church in facing 
secular culture, as it is being shaped by Postmodemism, is drastically different 
from the challenge in facing secular culture as it was shaped by Modernism before 
1960. 

The Commission for Theological Integrity will conduct a seminar at this 
Year's National Association on "Dealing with the Influence of Postmodernism." 
Panel members will be: Leroy Forlines, Steve Ashby, Matt Pinson, and Randy 
Sawyer. 

In His Service 
' 

Leroy For1ines, Chairman 
Fred Hall, Secretary 
Daryl Ellis 
Paul Harrison 
Jeff Manning 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
Janua!Y - D.ecember 1997 

F1nanc1al Report 
Bank Balance ... January 1 I 1997 
Income 

Gifts/The Together Way/ Rest of the Fam·l ruz • 
Alabama $ 1 Y '-menng 
Arizona 4 7.54 
Arkansas 1 .50 
California 387.61 
Canada 29.62 
Florida . 17 
Georgia 60.63 
Illinois 84.90 
Indiana 70.97 
Iowa 184.69 
Kentucky 6.80 
Maryland 14.03 
Michigan 8. 11 
Mississippi 87.27 
Missouri 20.82 
New Mexico 315.75 
North Carolina 1 .50 
Northwest Ass 78.2 7 
Ohio oc. .04 
Oklahoma 101.87 
South Carolina 409.42 
Tennessee 5 .71 
Texas 206.61 
Virginia 46.83 
West Virginia · 92 

Theological Trends Registration 167.75 
Interest on Sank Account 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Digest of Reports 
Bookkeeping 
Seminar Speakers 
Seminar / Conference 
Pr?mise Keepers Meeting 
Miscellaneous Office 

Total Expenses 
Bank Balance - December 31 I 1997 

1999 Proposed Budget 

$2,339.33 
475.00 

34.33 

$ 75.08 
250.00 
300.00 

2,063.17 
1,385.08 

94.62 

Income 
Together Way Plan 
Miscellaneous Gifts 
Interest on Bonk Account 

Total Income 

$2,500.00 
240.00 

60.00 
$2,800.00 

Expenses 
Bookkeeper 
Office Supplies 
Annual Meeting 
Seminars 

Total Expenses 
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$2,168.65 

$2,848.66 

$4,167.95 
s 849.36 

$ 200.00 
75.00 

1, 125.00 
1,400.00 

$2,800.00 

Media Commission Report 
'(be Media Commission experienced some of God's richest blessings in 

J997. We thank God for using Free Will Baptists across the nation for making it 
one of the best years ever. 

We fulfilled a long-time dream in producing the first Free Will Baptist tele­
vision commerciaL Thank you to the Florida State Association for helping 
def1ay production costs and giving us permission to use the project denomi­
nation wide. It aired in two Florida markets in 1997. We have had a number of 
inqUiries and the commercial has actually also aired now in the Nashville, TN, 
market. 

Titled, The Arrow, Free Will Baptists are targeting adults 25-54 years old 
with an image building commercial. Designed to encourage your church 
members to talk to the community about strong family values and inviting 
them to the Free Will Baptist church in their area. It is generic enough for any­
one to use, and we personalize it just for you for that local church/association 
appeal. 

Thank you again to Florida for giving another gift enabling the Commission to 
produce our second television commercial. We are truly excited about the poten­
tial Florida is giving our commission to serve our denomination. 

In November, Tennessee Free Will Baptists answered the challenge and, 
similarly to the State Association in Florida, gave our commission $1 ,200 to 
fund the production of radio commercials. The commission was able to pro­
duce four radio commercials. Thank you, Tennessee! All these products are 
available to see/hear at our National Association booth. 

We are finding that state associations providing funds to defray production 
costs is greatly increasing our opportunities to provide more products to you. 
Perhaps your church or association would be able to help in some of these 
areas: 

1 )Church Video Production: A 3-5 minute video about Free Will Baptists 
with a 30-60 second personal message from the pastor. 

2)Postcard Shells: A Free Will Baptist personalized postcard suitable for 
sending to visitors or church absentees. Also ideal for promoting a special 
Sunday or series of sermons. 

3)Print Slicks: Perhaps you would like to spruce up an advertisement in 
newspaper, revival posters, or even an ad in your local yellow pages. 

Our Commission has no full-time employees and no office space to rent 
We receive one half of one percent of the undesignated Together Way offer­
ings. This means of support, coupled with individual gifts, is our means of 
financial support. 

Our financial statement for 1997 and budget request for 1999 follow. We 
ask that you prayerfully consider what ways you can support this ministry. 
Thank you for allowing us to serve you through media. 

Because of Christ, 
Steve Faison, Chairman (GA, '98) 
Jim Vallance, Secretary!freasurer (TN, '99) 
Doug Kite (NC, '00) 
Ron Hunter (FL, '0 1) 
Bill Gardner (TN, '02) 
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1997 Financial Statement 
Balance Bro h F 
Contributions ug t orward 12/31/96 
Interest earned 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Equipment/Maintenance 
Convention Booth 
Commission Expenses 
Production 
Promotion 
Telephone 
Total Expenses 
Balance on Hand 12/31/97 

$ 2,475.35 
325.29 

555.00 
1,601.48 
1,157.66 
2,673.46 

150.00 
16.94 

1999 Proposed 8 d 
Proieded Income u get 
Together 'Wcly ( 5% . 
Gifts · undesignated funds) 

*Designated 
*Church Videos 
*Print Slicks 

** *Postcard Shells 
Sale of Products 

Interest 
Total Projected Income 
Projeded Expenses 
Promotion 

2,500.00 

2,850.00 
5,000.00 

500.00 
2,500.00 
5,000.00 

325.00 

Commission Expenses 1,000.00 
Bookkeeper 600.00 
Other Help 200.00 
Production 500.00 
Supplies 1,000.00 
Postage 475.00 
Equipment/Maintenance 500.00 
Telephone 250.00 
Printinn ,..as 750.00 
Convention Expenses 500.00 
Broadcast Time 1 ,500.00 
Designated Gifts 500.00 
;c~urc~ Video Production 2,850.00 
*Print Slicks Production 5,000.00 
Postcard Shells Produ ti 500.00 

Total Projected Expens~s on 2,850.00 

:!"e execution of these funds depends u n ; 
Soles of Products is the church video a: T~ ftsA from State ~ations or individuals. 

e rrow promotional video. 
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$ 8,515.0) 

2,800.64 

(6,154.54} 
$ 5,161. )) 

$18,675.00 

$18,675.00 

Music Commission Report 
'flle Music Commission is pleased to announce the completion of the first 

aecordillS of the National Convention Mass Choir. The joint project involves 
bOih the Commission as well as Prism Music. The arrangements are a mixture 
d the old and new, with a special emphasis on practicality. Each selection or 
medleY can be used as the core of a worship service involving both congrega­
tion and choir, or they can stand alone as a special musical presentation. The 
selections are as follows: 

1. That Blessed Name (Medley) 
Blessed Be the Name • All Hail the Power of Jesus' Name 
All Hail King Jesus • He Is Lord 
(Full Orchestration) 

2. Jesus What a Friend to Sinners 
3. King of Kings (Medley) 

Crown Him King of Kings • King of Kings 
Let There Be Glory, Honor and Praises 
(Full Orchestration) 

4. The lamb Upon the Throne 
5. Crown You with Praise (Medley ) (a cappella) 

Jesus, We Crown You with Praise • We Give You Praise 
6. The Blood of Jesus (Medley) 

0 the Blood of Jesus • Nothing But the Blood 
7. Now Unto the King Eternal 
8. Thank You, Lord (Medley) 

Thank You, Lord (a cappella vocal intro.) (C) (D) 
Victory in Jesus (F) • New Name in Glory (G) 
Since Jesus Came into My Heart (Ab) • I've Been Changed 
(Full Orchestration) 

9. Corry the Glorious Gospel 
10. lead Me lord (Medley) 

lead Me lord, I Will Follow • I'll Go Where You Want Me to Go 

Along with the listening cassettes and COs, the commission is excited to 
make available a print project of the choral arrangements, along with the 
accompaniment cassettes and COs and orchestral charts. The arrangements 
are written to be easily accessible for any level of choral proficiency. For spe­
cial convention prices, please stop by the commission booth. 

The commission continues to make available a quarterly publication. The 
periodical, Reasons to Rejoice, provides readers with a variety of helps for the 
development of an effective music ministry. Subscriptions are available at the 
COmmission booth. 

The convention music reading session, held during the convention on 
Wednesday at 1 :30 p.m., is yet another ministry of the commission designed at 
making available to our churches a wide variety of musical works. The music 
packets provided upon registration are well worth the price of admission. In 
addition, many of the pieces introduced at the seminar are on sale at the booth 
at convention prices. 

Again, as in previous years, the commission has been responsible for the 
Planning and direction of the convention music program. Because of the spe-
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cial choral project, the mass choir has been featured during each evening sen«. 
ice. Next year we anticipate returning to the former format of utilizing \'CU'ba 
local church personnel. 

We are pleased with the continued success of the Rejoice Hymnal. Sales~ 
both editions have been good this year. 

The commission is thoroughly committed to the task of encouraging, inslnJcl,: 
ing, and providing resources that will help each Free Will Baptist church grow il 
its music ministry. Your comments and suggestions are welcome. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Music Commission 
Randy Sawyer, Chairman 

Music Commission Financial 
Statement 

January - December 1997 

Beginning Balance $3,655.11 

Income 
Co-op 
Family Ministry Offering 
Music Soles No~onol 
Sole of Tracks 
No~onol Pockels 
States ond Churches 

Alobomo 
Missouri 
Mississippi 
Oklohomo 
SooiR {molino 
Texas 
Cross Creek Church, MS 
Fellowship Church, TN 
Roaring Creek Church, NC 
Ruth's Chopel Churdl. NC 

Total Income 

Expenses 

$1_106.14 
26.32 

458.85 
45.00 

2,276.70 

83.49 
313.54 

7.14 
268.81 

2.16 
33.99 
3.26 

89.45 
6.18 

40.00 

Music--Condelo 500.00 
Music Comrnim1 Meeti~ 9nl'97 1, 988.7 4 
Na~onol Association 1,400.56 
Music Ministries Breakfast 1,020.00 
Reason to Re;oice (publico~on) 464.58 
Miscellaneous Expense I 9 77 

$4)61.03 

Total Expenses (55,393.65) 

Ending Balance $3,022.49 

Proposed Budget for 1999 

Income 
Co-op 
Family Ministly Offering 
Music Soles 
Notional Seminar 
States ond Churches 
Tracks and CD soles 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Notional Convenfion 
Purch!.j8 of Music 
Boord Meetings 
Postage ond Telephone 
Publicofion 
Notional Choir Project 

Total Expenses 

51,000.00 
100.00 
700.00 

2,500.00 
800.00 

2,000.00 
57,100.00 

51,550.00 
1,000.00 
2,000.00 

50.00 
500.00 

2.000.00 
57,100.00 
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Historical Commission Report 
. to of minutes in the Historical 

The Commission prepru:ed and t Indveregc:ies at the national convention in 
lion which will be distribute o e 

: . . h, the commission is in the process 
In order to enco~age histod!lcal res~~ for loans or grants from state/district 

d drawing up guidelin~s r~~ar mg reque 
associations and from ~diVIduals. 25 short history articles to b e placed on the 

Or. William F. Daytdso~ wrote Randall House Publications. 
back covers of bulletins pnnted by . tional clerks to send copies of current 

The commis~ion .encoCourllage: as~~~~e Will Baptist Bible College. 
minutes to the Htstoncal ec on 

• • 
Free Will Baptist Historical Commass•on 

Financial Report, 1997 

Balonce on hand, Detember 31, 1996 

Income for 1997: 
Coop gifts (designoted/undesignoted) 
Rum's Chapel FWB Church, direct 
Nofionol Ministries Offering 
Interest (first American Bonk) 

Total 

Expenditures for 1997 . 
Notional Convenfion Fund, O~gest fee 
Two fire-resistant storage cabinets 
Commission travel ~enses (Morbeny) 
Wrifing bulletin ortides (Oovidson) 
lobar in collection {VanWinkle) 

Total 

Balance on hand, Oe<ember 31, 1997 

$19,718.38 

51,836.33 
40.00 
19.53 

885.57 
$2)'81 .43 

$37.54 
599.98 
503.15 
500.00 

26.25 
$1,666.92 

$20,832.89 

1999 Budget 

Income 
Gifts {Together Way) 
Interest (First American Bonk) 
Transfer from cosh reserves 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Expenses 
Books, materials, lobar for 

Total 
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Historical Commission 
Inventory prinfing 
RllSe{lrch grant 
Travel 
Execufive Office (Digest Fee} 

52,000.00 
900.00 

1,415.00 
60.00 

$4,375.00 

52,150.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
650.00 

75.00 
$4,375.00 
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(615)386-5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ 

........... 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of tbe 
Women Nationally Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the National AssociatiOD 
of Free Will Baptists) (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1997 ~ 
1996, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of t he 
Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted audit~ 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits t o 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, ·in all material respects, the financial position of the Women 
Nationally Active for Christ as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

February 17, 1998 

A- 222 

• 

(61' §t p:menxx d 1996 cember 31 . 1997 an 

AS§ET§ 

Cllb te of deposit 
~ific& ivable - Note 1 
aoccll""t• rece 
~torr : Note 1net of a llowance for 
~· rece1vabl e, f $632 ($458 in 1996) 
~.~ful accounts o 
~- i nterest receivable 
~ d equipment at cost, less 
"opertYa;:d depreciation of $23,250 
~ 6) - Notes 1 ~ 2 
($20 454 in 199 

c.pi~lized lease - Note 3 

Total assets 
MIABILITIES AND NET A$SETS 

a.ccounts payable and accrued 
Deferred revenue - Note 9 

Total liabilities 

£9Pmitments - Notes 5 ~ 7 

let assets 
unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

expenses 

Total liabilities and net assets 

, repor t and a ccompanying 

-2-
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$ 
1.927 
78,689 
80,000 

6,641 
13,043 

15,139 
2,655 

14 ,887 
6.630 

~217.684 

$ 29,660 
30.541 

§2 . ~21 

37,621 
109,547 

1.0 , 315 
157 ,483. 

$217 . 684 

$ 
1996 
89,350 
80,000 

8,272 
H,552 

13,825 
2,876 

17,683 
7.121 

p33.679 

$ 37,773 
32.238 

70,011 

53,502 
101,086 

9 , 08Q 
163.668. 

$233 . 6'7? 



(An 

Statement•~' Actiyitiea ~ 
For the Years snded Pecemblr 31, 1997 and 1996 

unrestricted 
Revenue and other support : 

Duea and fee• 
De1ignated contributions 
Magazine and literature sales 
Convention and retreat income 
Gift• and offerings 
Interest income 
Collection of bad debts 
Net a1set1 released from restrictions : 

Satisfaction of program restrictions 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Bad debt expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues and 1ubscriptions 
Special projects 
Collection fees 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements . 

- 3-
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( 

1997 

$ 82 , 138 
310 ,810 

73 , 235 
9,530 

57,587 
2,450 
1,185 

935 

537.870 

94,176 
22 , 011 
38 , 591 

8 , 784 
22 , 832 
10, 894 
4,137 

24 , 600 
3 , 660 

300 
2 , 796 

491 
174 
641 
143 

1 , 742 
592 

1,131 
310, 688 
~.168 

553,751 

1~,§81) ( 

• 72,1JI 
no,,_ 
7t,eu 
lS,,J 
st,en 
2,1,. 

5n.na 

lt,SU 
22,105 
39,011 

5·"' 
11,570 
10,071 
4,,2l 

24, ,00 
3,107 

3,0,3 
01 

7,511 
1,4U 

24, 
1,507 

1,525 
3)0, 935 

4,QU 
569. Qal 

la ~Qil 

:t 

(Cont nue 

1ft• and offer nga 0 
1 ocne Interest nc d from restrictions : 

Net asset• relea:e ogram restrictions 
satisfaction 0 pr 

in temporarily restricted 
~·•• (decrease) 

!l'pentlv restricted 
II Gifts and offerings 

d et assets 
Permanently restricte n lDcreaae in 

) in net assets total increase (decrease 

Jet aasets - beginning of year 

Jet aaaetl - end of year 

d omoanyinq ccountants ' report an ace~ 
~e: to(the financial statements . 

net assets 
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$ 

( 

( 

1997 1996 

3 , 663 $ 4 , 662 

5 , 733 2 , 767 

935) ( 8 . 776 ) 

8.461 ( 1.,147) 

1,235 804 

1.235 8 04 

6 ,185) ( 1, 84 7 ) 

161,668 165,515 

$157 . 483 $163 . 66§ 



Operating actiyitie@ 
Increase (decrease) in 
Adjustment t net assets 

o reconcile incr . 
net cash provided b ease 1n net assets to 

Depreciation y operating activities: 
Amortization 

~e of~ of bad debts 
ges 1n operating assets . 

(Increase) decrease in and 11abilities: 
(Increase) decrease in ~ccounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease i 1Dventory 
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in :ccounts payable 

Net cash provided (used) 

lnvesting actiyitiea 
Purchase of equiptaent 

n eferred revenue 

by operating activities 

Collection of loans 
New lo receivable an made 
Purchase of certificate 

of deposit 
Net cash i prov ded (used) by i 

nvesting activities 
Increase (decrease) in cash d 

an cash 

Cash and cash equivalents 
equivalents 

at beginning of years 
Cash and cash equivalents 

at end of years 

-s-
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( 

( 

( 

~ 

1~97 

($ 6,185) 

( 

c 

( 

2, 796 

491 
174 

1,631 
1,509 

221 
8. ll3) 
1.697) 

9.17J.) 

1,812 
3,300) 

L188) 

10,661) 

Q9.3so 

78·612 

( 

c 

( 

( 

~ 

-'1111 
' ($ 1,..,. 

l,IJJ ·-'·SU 
l,llJ 
1,2'11 

1St 

( 
16,315 

it' 

21.H1 

l, 314) 
2,107 

70.08) 

70.7071 

41,2511 

130.601 

82. ~~~ 
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(IP auxiliary 
WQMEN NATIOW.I.I.y ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 

of the National A&sociation of Free 
Hotes to the Financial Statements 

DeCember 31. 1997 and 1996 

Will BaPtists) 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Women Nationally Active for Christ is a nonprofit organization 
and an auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc . 
located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to 
publish the Free Will Baptists' magazine for women, to receive and 
disburse funds for missionaries and provide other services to Free Will 
Baptist women. The Organization's support comes primarily from donor 
contributions, dues and fees, and magazine sales. 

Th.e Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
SOl (c) (3) of the Inte~al Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
Nationa~ Association of Free Will Baptista, Inc. In addition, the 
Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to 
be a •private foundation• within the meaning of 502(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 1997. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements: 

saais of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which involves the application of generally 
accepted accounting principles; consequently, revenues and gains are 
recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when 
incurred. 

sasis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements oL Not-Lor­
ProLit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required 
to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates 
that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

-6-
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Note 1. -

WQMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHBIST 
(An Auxiliary of the Hational A&sociation of Free will B&ptiota) 

N9tes to the Financial Statements 
pecember 31. 1297 and 1926 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies _ Ccat~ 

Contributions 

The Organization accounta for contributions in accordance Witk 
rec01111\endationa of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in sru .. • 
116, Accounting for Contri.butions Received and Contributions lf41de, Ia• 
accordance with SPAS No. 1.16, contributions received are recorded .. 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently reetricted ~ rt .... 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently reetricted net assets depending on the D&~ 
of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assete are reclassified to 
unreetricted net aaaets and reported in the statements of activitiu u 
net aaaeta released from restriction• . 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at coat, 
all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 with a 
usefu1 life of at leaat two years. Depreciation ia computed on a 
etraight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally •• 
follows: 

Equipment 5 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment ba~ance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and notes receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for U. 
purchase of magazines and literature . These churches and individual• 
are located all across the United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible college students for the 
payment of college tuition. The student is required to aign a note tor 
the money. These notes are uncollateralized. These students are 
located across the United States. There are numerous loans with varying 
interest rates and maturity dates . Accordingly , the fair value of the•• 
notes approximates the carrying value net of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. 

Management conaidera accounts receivable to be fully collectible; 
accordingly, no allowance for doubtfu~ accounts is required for account• 
receivable . Management considers the notes receivable. that are overdue 
to be only partially collectible and accordingly has recorded an 
allowance for doubtful account& in the amount of $632 ($458 in 1996). 

-7 -
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<an Auxiliarv 
lL ;e;;n;;;;.. 1227 and 1226 

Qraanization an d tUII!!IfXV of 
i policies - continued 

significant account ng 

JIC)te 2 -

Jote 3 -

Mote 4 -

~tsh equivalents 

~ organ~zation considers 
.1.ue less f three months or maturitY o 

all highlY liquid 
when purchased to 

investments with a 
be cash equivalents . 

Inventory 

Inventory ia 
method) or market . 

t {first in , first out 
stated at the lower of cos 

froper,ty and equipment 
and equipt'ftent follows : 

A summary of property 

Equipment depreciation 
Lee•: J.cC\,IIDUlated 

199'7 

$ 38,13'7 
( 23.250) 
~ }<l,887 

1996 
$ 38,13'1 

{ 20.t54) 
~ p.683 

~pitalize4 lease . urchased an Will Bapt1St8, Inc. p 
1 Maociation of vree and enciee of the 

Tbe Mationa various department• ag ment to lease 
office building to hou::ization baa entered into an agr~:e debt service 
denQCili.nation . The org . and agreed to contribute to the debt has 

apace in tihist::wc::~~~~~ion period and tot coo~t~$·~u:2~~:~e capitalized 
coste dur ng i period cos s ' 

i ed The construct on . od of twenty years . 
been ret r . ill be amortized over a per~ $421. ($491 in 1??6) . 
in l.t91 and w tor the years amounted to 
Amorti%ation e~e 

Jeatrictiqna on net asset~ . abl for the following 
net asset• are ava~l e 

restricted TemporarilY 
purposea: 

student Loan 
Foreign scholarship 

i t d assets are permanently restr c e 

Endowment Tru8t 
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1997 
$1.03,831. 

5.'116 
~109.547 

r estricted to : 

s 10.315 

1996 
$ ?6,15'1 

4,929 
po1.086 

~ 9,080 



Note 5 _ 

Note 6 _ 

Note 7 _ 

WQMEN HATIQNAI.x.y ACT 
(M Auxiliary of the National AsS ~ FOR CHRIST 

N9tes to the FinanoJiation of Free Will Ba 
December 31 al StatementsPti•t;a) 

--· 1997 and 1226 

Lease 

ith The Organization ente w the National As red into a lease 
storage space Th sociation of Free Will agreement on Octobe 
:uilding are ~atia;i::= ..;:~ :he lease expir::P~!:• • l Inc . for .~.::.. ... 
Oexr><m•• for the yeara ~mo c is approximately 10 • l oortg .... ao .. 

cember 31, 1996) unted to $24 , 600 ($2 years . ~e .. . 4 ' 600 for the rat year ttCtl 

The future min1' mum 

1298 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

lease payments are as 

$ 24,600 
24 , 600 
24 , 600 
24 , 600 
24,600 

Thereafter (estimated) 125.050 
§248.059 

Pension plan 

follows: 

The Organization . Board of Retir partic1pates in th Will ement and Ins e master pen · Baptists The 1 urance of the Nati 1 s1on plan of tbe 
Organi · · P an is a d fi ona Associ i zat1on contrib e ned cont rib at on of ~ 
or more years of se u~es 5t of gross salary f~tio~ plan. The 
than five years of rv1c7 and 3t of gross sal r a 1 employees with fhe 

are not requi · oyees are all ed oyees with lell plan but aerv1ce Empl ary for empl 
amounted to $3,900 ($ red to contribute . Pen ~w to contribute to~ 
maintained for each !,633 . in 1996). Under t:eon expense f or the~ 
either receive a 1 p rtic1pant and upon r ti plan, an account is 
of annuity account~ sum distribution or :ur~=ent the participant Call · se one of several t~ 

Commitments 

The Women Nationa as collatera1 o lly Active for Chri 1 Baptiata I e note that th e ged 1ta equipMOt W' ll n a mortgag st has pl d . 
, nc . has with the Church :X Nati~nal Association of Free 

tens1on Loan Fund . 

-9-
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Baptists) 

_. 
1 

_ £0ncentration of credit risk 
The organization maintains cash deposits at a financial 

institution located in the united states . Accounts at the institution 
are insured by the Federal eepoait Insurance Corporation up to $10 0 ,000. 
At necember 31. 1997 the excess amount over the federally ·inaured liudt 

was $- 0-. 

JIOU 9 - ~ferred revenue 
Deferred revenue resulted frOO magasine subsc r i ption• received f o r 

1998 issues. 

IIOt• 10 - fair values of financial instrumentf! 
The following methods and asaumptions were used by the 

organ<sation in eatimatin9 ita fair val•• disclosure• tor financial 

cash, accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable , 
payable&, and deferred revenue : The carrYing amounts 
reported in the statement of finaDCial position approximate 
fair values because of the short maturities of those 

inatruments: 

instruments . 
Notes receivable : Based on current interest rates , the 
carrying value approximates the fair value of the notes 

receivable at oecember 31, 1997 . 
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CERTIFlEO P1J1UC ~ THE SPEHCE MNfTS 
IIWG SUITE 200 

140 SPENCe LANE 
HASIMLlE, TN 37217-1150 

(1151 311&-5100 

To the Executive C 
Women Nationall ommittee of the 

y Active for Christ 

....,, .... 

We have audit Chri8t (an . ed the financia~ 
year ended ~1liary of the Nationals!:tementa of the Women 
17, u•a cember 31, 1.,7 and sociation of Pre National1y Acti .. ~ 
information Prolfeaaional standards :ave . issued our repor~ :!11 Baptista) for U.-

re ated to our di equ1re that we p ereon dated au t. rovide you with Peb~ 
Our Resoo i the foll--.4-

nl bilitv ---. ---- W1der Gen erally Accepted 
Aa etated in o Auditing Standards 

reapon.ibili ur engagement le 
our audit toty, as described by roftter dated December 
•tateoent• ar:":ain reasonable, :Ot :::ional ttandarda, ~~ ~!''• our 
accordance with ree of .. terial adtttat abtolute, atouranco t.!lan and perforo 
of reasonable generally accepted ac eoent and are fairly t the fiNm<UO 
all tr assurance and be counting principl presented in 

anaactiona th cause we did ea . Becaus 
may exist and no~ beere il a risk that t not perform a detail de of ~he~ detected by ma erial errors f e ex.amnation of ega acta us . ' raud, or ill 1 

Aa part of our au . ::~!;::lly Active for c:!~~twe considered the internal interna~'::n;;:laudit proced~re!u~d~:i~erationo were~~:~~ ;f the women . o provide any as or the purpose of 
Si if ourance concerning 

gn icant Accounting ---- Policies 

Management ba 
accounting polic s the reaponsibilit will advise manaies _ In accordance wiy for selection and use application gement about the a th the terms of our of appropriate 
Active f . The oignificant ppropriateneos of a engagement letter, ,. 

or Christ accounting li ccounting pol' i 
acco=tin are deocribed in po eieo ~•d b 1c eo and their 
changed ~rr"licieo were adopted an:"te 1 to the financi~lthe Women Nationally 
during the ng 1997 . We noted not the application of e . st~tements. No new 

year that ransactio x1at1ng pol . . 
profeooional were both oignifi na entered int b 10108 wao not 
tbere if a 1 s~andards , we are requi :"t and =u•ual, .,.: ~ the Organization 

ac of authoritativ . re to inform you o which , under e gu1danc ' or trans . e or consensus. act1ons for wbicb 
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...... ting esti .. te• are an integral part of the financial statement• ~bY ......... t and are baaed on management's knOWledo• and experience 
c--o ... t and current events and asaumptio .. abOUt future events . certain 
"";;.tiD9 eati .. t•• are particularlY aenaitive because of their significance to 
;;. f~ial atat ... nta and becauoe of the poooibilitY that future events 
.,._...., tbeO .. y differ significantlY frOO thO•• expected. we evaluated th• 
.., factor• and aosumotions uted to develoP the eatimate• in determining that 
dOW ,.re reatonabl• in relation to the financial stat ... nto taken as a whole . 

a 

oor purpo••• of this letter, profeational otandards define a aignificant 
_.ut adjustment as a propoted correction of the financial statement• that. in 
- j...,...nt, may not haVe been detected except through our auditing procedures . 

J19Pifif*Ot audit ;djustroenta 

~ adjustments maY include tho•• proposed bY u1 bUt not recorded by the 
organisation that could potentiallY cause future financial otatemento to be 
.,teriallY misstated, even thOUgh we nave concluded that ouch adjuotmento are not 

.. terial to the current financial statements. 

•• proposed no audit adjustment• that could. in our jud9=""t• either 
UOtlvidUally or in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the organisation•• 

financial reporting process. 

Por purposes of thil letter, profeotional standards define a disagreement 
with oanagement ao a matter, whether or not resolved to our tatiofaction, 
concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be 
significant to the financial otatement• or the auditor's report. we are pleased 
to report that no such disagreement• arooe during the couroe of our audit . 

Q1eaqreernents with Manag~nt 

Cgosultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In ao=e ca•••• management may decide to consult with other accountants 
about auditing and accountinO matter•. oimilar to obtaininO a •oecond opinion• on 
certain oituationB · If a consultation involve• application of an accounting 
principle to the organisation's financial statement• or a determination of the 
type of auditor's opinion that maY be expreooed on those otatements, our 
profeaaional standards require the consulting accountant to check with uo to 
determine that the conoultant baa all the relevant facto . To our knowledge , 

tbere were no such consultations with other a ccountants . 

Issues Discussed Prior tO Retention of Independent auditors 

we generallY diocuo• a variety of matters, including the aPPlication of 
accounting principles and auditing standards, witb management each year prior to 
retention aa tbe organisation'• auditor•· However, the•• diocuooionB occurred in 
the normal cour•• of our professional relationshiP and our reopon••• were not a 

condition to our retention. 
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To the Executive Committee of th 
Women Nationally Active for Chri:t 
Page three 

Difficulties Encountered i P 
n erforming the Audit 

We encountered n o signif' 
performing and completi ~cant difficulties in dealing w' th 

ng our audit. ~ management in 

This information is intend 
and management of thew .ed solely for the use of the 
for any other purpose. omen Nat~onally Active for Christ and ~::~~i::tcbomaitt .. , 

e uaed 

Very truly yours, 

HINTON, WARREN D""' .. ......,., 
, gnn~x & WALLACE 

February 17, 1998 
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Gifts to Missions/Missionary Obiectives 
January 1 , 1997 to December 31 , 1997 

Cash Gifts 
Foreign Missions $229,578.15 

Sent through WNAC 182,491 .59 
Sent direct to department 47,086.56 

Home Missions 106,153.36 
Sent through WNAC 106,153.36 
Sent direct, not available 

Bibles colleges 7,926.04 
Memorial Student loan Fund 1,836.66 
Other Gifts 16,727.20 

Foreign Student Scholarship 1,787.28 
Mission Objectives 14,939.92 

Provision Closet 8,918.49 
WNAC operating expense 115,335.41 
Co-Laborer Offering 23,732.29 
Emphasis Offering 8,847.88 
Endowment Trust Fund 11185.24 
Dues 81,570.00 

Non-Cash Gifts 
Provision Closet 44,600.00 

Total Cash and Non-Cash Gifts $531,075.31 

1997 Top Ten Contributors to WNAC 

General Fund Offering Emphasis Offering Combined 

1. Arkansas $3,221.15 1. Arkansas s 1,581.85 1. Arkansas $4,803.00 
2. Tennessee 3,113.66 2. Tennessee 1,411.08 2. Tennessee 4,524.74 
3. Missouri 1,999.86 3. South Carolina 1,308.71 3. Missouri 2,83058 
4. Georgia 1,91854 4. Missouri 830.72 4. Georgia 2,45754 
5. Oklahoma 1,558.66 5. Alabama 743.00 5. Oklahoma 2,187.64 
6. North Carolina 1,534.94 6. Oklahoma 628.98 6. South Carolina 1,794.75 
7. Ohio 1,108.04 7. Georgia 539.00 7. North Carolina 1,74154 
8. Alabama 890.75 8. Virginia 400.00 8. Alabama 1,633.75 
9. Illinois no.2o 9. Ohio 310.00 9. Ohio 1,418.04 

10. California 690.83 10. Florida 268.19 10. Virginia 1,003.80 
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Women Nationally Adive for Christ 
Suggested Budget 

For the Year Ending December 31, 1999 

Estimated Income 
*General Fund Offering 
Convention Offering 
Convention Expense Gift 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
Literature Sales 
Magazine Subsaiptions 
Miscellaneous 
Rest of the Family Offering 
WNAC Emphasis Offering 

Total Income 

Estimated Expense 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 7 636 00 Employee Retirement 4'064·
00 He~lth and life Insurance 12,27 4.00 

Chnstmas Bonus ' · 
Insurance-General & Workers' C ~ ,865.00 
L 1 d ompensation ega on Professional Services 
Convention Expense 
Executive Committee Expense 
Co-Laborer Magazine Expense 

Mailing 
Miscellaneous 
Printing 
Postage 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Office Rent 
Office Supplies and Materials 
Phone 
Postage 
Printing 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Travel and Promotion 
Continuing Education 
Equipment (additions and repairs) 
Special Projects 

Total Expense 

3,000.00 
500.00 

29,463.00 
4,500.00 

$35,000.00 
1,500.00 
8,000.00 

500.00 
75,000.00 
5,000.00 

16,000.00 
80,375.00 

1,000.00 
2,000.00 

14,000.00 

$96,903.00 
25,839.00 

1,000.00 
4,500.00 
8,000.00 
3,570.00 

37,463.00 

3,000.00 
24,600.00 
3,000.00 
2,000.00 
4,500.00 
7,500.00 
5,000.00 

200.00 
4,500.00 
2,000.00 
4,000.00 

800.00 

$238,375.00 

rrhe $238,375.00 
WNAC &erutive Commitlee approved cho · the 

nglllg nome Co-Laborer Offering to General fund Offering, Oe<ember 4, 1996. 
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The General Board Report 

The General Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptists met Monday, 
July 13, 1998, in the International Ballroom of the Doubletree Hotel, Tulsa, Oklahoma 
As a result of this meeting we offer the following infonnation and recommendations. 

1. We heard the reports of WNAC, the Historical Commission, Executive Office, 
Board of Retirement, Free Will Baptist Fotmdation, Master's Men Department, 
Music Commission, Home Missions Department and Church Extension Loan 
Fund, Media Commission, Sunday School and Church Training Department, 
Foreign Missions Department, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Commission for 
Theological Integrity, and Ministerial Family Life Cormnittee. We recommend 
that the reports be received and the budgets adopted as each is presented We 
also recommend the adoption of the request in the Sunday School and Church 
Training report to allow them to change their fiscal year, and the request of the 
Ministerial Family Life Committee that they continue their work another year. 

2. We recommend that we accept the invitation from West Vrrginia and meet 
in Charleston, West Virginia, for our national convention July 20-24, 2008. 

3. We recommend that the Commission for Theological Integrity be reim­
bursed from the convention fund for money expended in their study of the 
Promise Keepers movement in 1997. The amount is $1,385.08. 

4. We recommend that the Executive Office be the agency to handle disaster 
relief funds if and when the need arises. 

5. We recommend that the national body return to the procedure given in the 
By-Laws with regard to the nominating committee. Such procedure is 
given on page 61 of the Treatise, Section 11, of the By-Laws, and is also 
mentioned in Section 23B, page 65. 

Report of the Ministerial Family Ufe Committee 
1998 

The Ministerial Family Life Committee has been working on "Step-by-Step 
Procedures" for discipline of Free Will Baptist local church members and Free Will 
Baptist ministers. At the present time, these plans are in the hands of an attorney 
for his examination. Our pwpose for having these recommendations reviewed by 
an attorney is so we can have reasonable assurance that a trial conducted by these 
procedures would stand up in a court of law. When we receive these plans back 
from the attorney, we will meet and make the necessary revisions and have this 
report ready for the convening of next year's National Association. 

The Ministerial Family Life Committee requests that we be given one more 
year so we can finish the work on these "Step-by-Step Procedures." 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Trymon Messer 
Larry Powell 
Eugene Waddell 
Ralph Hampton, Advisor 
Melvin Worthington, Advisor 
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Report of the Credentials Committee 

We the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters from the foB~ 
states, cllstricts and local churches and found them in order as presented below. 

1. From the following state associations which are entitled to be represent­
ed by five delegates: 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
California 
Florida 
Georgia 
Idaho 

lllinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Michigan 

AU fees paid or accounted for. 

Mississippi 
Missouri 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 

Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 

2. From the following district associations entitled to be represented by 
three delegates: 

Arizona District Association New Mexico District Association 
Atlantic Canada Association Northeast Association 
First Colorado Association Northwest Association 
First District Association of New Jersey 

AU fees paid except Mexico. 

3. From the following local churches entitled to be represented by one del­
egate: 

Waipahu -Hawaii 
Cross Roads - Montana 

Virgin Islands 
West Madison -Wisconsin 

4. We recommend that the delegates from the state associations, district 
associations and local churches listed above be seated for this session, along 
with all their other delegates which are properly registered. 

5. We recommend that all lay delegates entitled to represent by virtue of 
their positions on a standing board be seated if properly registered. 

6. We recommend that the delegates from Mexico be seated if their fees 
are accounted for and letter received. 

Signed, Committee 
Millard Sasser 
Mark A. Thomas 
Doice McAlister 
Thurmon Murphy 
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. ting Committee Report Nomma 

raining Depamnent 
School and Church 1i Will Harmon, AR 

~!cing Will Harmon Brion Hampton, TN 
replacing Edwin Hayes Michael Waddell, Fl 
repladng Lorry Oyatt t 

Ken Dodson, MO Home Missions o.epartmen 
replacing Don Guthne t 

David Shores, ll foreign Mlss~ons Departmen 
replacing Dovtd Shor~s Doug littte, AR 
replacing James .Forhnes Terry Eagleton, TN 
replacing Joe Gnnle Sherwood lee, SC 

1 ·ng Dean Dobbs 
re~ Baptist Bible College 

Richard Bowers, Al ~eplocing Richard Bowers larry Powell, GA 
replodng larry P~well Steve Ashby, OH 
replacing Doug little 

Eamie Taylor, ll Master's Men Department 
replacing Dwight F~etdler 

Steve Faison, GA Media Commis5!00 

replacing Steve Folson • sion 
Matt Pinson, GA Theological Integrity Comm•s 

replodng Fred Ho~l 
Danny Boer, NC Music Commisston 

replacing Bill Gardner 

Cart Cheshier, OK General Officers . 
Moderator, replacing Carl ~hesh~er Tim York, KY Assistant Moderator, replaong Tim York Waldo Young, OK 
Clerk, replacing Waldo Youn~ d Keith Burden, OK Assistant Oerk, replacing Keith Bur en 

Delmar Sparks, OH Executive Committee 
replacing Glen Johnson Jack Richey, OK 
replacing Jack Riche~ Jim Marcum, NC 
replacing Chartes Thigpen 

Rick Cash General Board 11 
Alaboma, replacing Richard Co!de William Smith Georgia, replacing Herbert WOld Verge! Maness 
New Jersey len Blanchard 
New Mexico Jim Marcum 
North Carolina Jim Nason 
Northeast Association Brent Nix 
Northwest Association Delmar Sparks 
Ohio Jack Richey 
Oklahoma Joe Cagle 
South Carolina Charles Thigpen 

Thurmon Murphy Tennessee 
Glen Johnson Texas 

Virginia Carl Vallance 
West Virginia 
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Terms 
2004 
2004 
2004 

1999 

2004 
2000 
2004 
2004 

2004 
2004 
2004 

1999 

2003 

2003 

2003 

1 year 
1 year 
1 year 
1 year 

2 years 
2 years 
2 years 

1 year 
1 year 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 
2 years 



Resolutions 
I. Whereas, Free Will Baptists believe 

Whes that homosexuality is a sin an~d have affirmed that the Bible tP~ 
ereas, Senate Majority L d ' --... ... 

belief, and ea er Trent Lott has recently publicJy stat 
Wher~as, the media ridicuJed and . ed tNs 
We cl:.: ~at a majority of people ha~~:1e~mg· s position, questioning '* 

, . e ore, resolve that the N . . s, 
~rec! our clerk and encour. e ~tional Association of Free wm Ba . 
~~ him for his stand. We re~r::: g~rople .t? write Senator Lott = 
~m, yet we must seek to reach th h POSition that homosexucility . • 
Jt of Jove. e omosexuaJ with the gospel . IS a 

m a spir. 

2. Whereas, the Oklahoma State As . . 
work~d . hard to host this 62nd socJation of Free WiJI Baptists ha 

Wh Association of Free Will Baptists ana:JnuaJ convention of the Natio~ 
ereas, the people of OkJah ' 

vention, then oma have welcomed us to TuJsa for the con-
We, therefore, resolve that we iv . . 

Will Baptists of Oklahoma fo~ the ? nsmkg vote of appreciation to the Free 
eJr wor and hospitality. 

Respectfully Submitted 
' 

Res.olutions Committee 
Ernie Lewis, IL 
Tom Ballard OK 
William Smilh, GA 
Don Walker, MO 
Robert Prichard, OH 

1998 Registration Report 
The 1998 TuJsa c . 

onvention registered the following: 

National Convention 

Orda!~~d .M;~ist~~ · .· .' . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . .4, 1 08 
C?rdamed Deacons · · · · · · · · 785 
L1censed Ministers · · · · · · · · · · · 166 
Local Church Delega.t · · · · · · · · · · 14 
State Delegates . . . ~ · · · · · · · · 68 
Home Missionaries . . . . . . . . . 82 
Foreign Missionaries. . . . . . . . . . . 79 
National Board Memb · · · · · · · · · 46 
National Officers ers · · · · · · 19 

N . Non-Delegates · · · · · · · · · · · · 14 
aflonaf Youth Conference · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 2,835 

~;:;::~"r~:lio~~~~~ ~~iv~ ~~r.·~~risi · : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :2,gg; 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 106 . . . . , 
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1998 National Youth Conference Report 

1be 1998 National Youth Conference met for its 31st annual conference in 

11.~. ... oklahoma, July 12-15. The theme of Faith Works was emphasized in many 
.;;. A total of 2,035 participants were registered. 

A total of 558 competitive entries were conducted during the four day con­
terence, with a total of 1 ,344 young people participating in the competitive activ­
ItieS. A complete list of NYC winners will be sent to each state office, but a spe­
cial recognition of Mr. Marlin Saint, whose Red Bay, Alabama Bible Bowl team 
experienced its seventh consecutive win! 

\\brship services were conducted for Preschool (ages 3-5), with an average 
of75 attending, Children (lst-3rd grade) and Tweeners (4th-6th grade) with an 
average of 375 attending, and Youth (7th-12th grade) with an average of I ,400 
attending Sunday Morning and Sunday through Tuesday nights. Over 300 deci­
sions were made. 

Over 350 students participated in Touching Tulsa with Love, our area service 
projects. The five service project opportunities were a daytime shelter for the 
homeless, the Tulsa Food Bank, Goodwill Industries, a women's and children's 
shelter, and an outreach program for underprivileged children. lndivid••als and 
entire youth groups joined the projects. 

A total of 33 Faith Builder Seminars were presented during the conference 
for children, youth, and youth workers. 

Over I ,200 Love Boxes, containing school supplies and personal hygiene items 
were donated by youth and adults from across the country. These were presented 
to Larry Jones of Feed the Children during our Monday evening worship service, 
who in tum donated them to a Tulsa area street children's outreach program 

The 32nd annual National Youth Conference is scheduled for Atlanta, 
Georgia, in July 1999 where our theme will be No Wall Too High, II Samuel 22:30, 
which says with my God I can scale a wall! 
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Obituary Committee Report 
We, the Obituary Committee, want to recognize the following as faitJlftda.. 

lowers of the Lord Jesus Christ and commend them as servants of our Free WI 
Baptists churches and denomination. They have gone to be with the Lord,_. 
we would like for everyone to honor them, while standing, with a momerw fl 
silent prayer, fol1owed by an audible prayer of thanksgiving for them. 

Len Blanchard, Chairman 
Henry Vcm Kluyve 
J. L. Gore 
Lester Horton 
Herbert Waid 

Alabama 
Clyde M. Blanchard 
James Beasley, Deacon 
Arnold Harper, Deacon 
Johnnie Daugherty 
Ruth Walton 
Palmer Winsett 
Trellis Mayhall, Minister 
Houston Ham 

Arkansas 
Don Guthrie, Minister 
Charles Davis, Minister 
Norman Melton 
Bea Hooper 
Sheila Johnson 
Randy King 
J. C. Elsberry, Deacon 

Florida 
Bill George, Minister 
Willie "Ted" Davis, Deacon 

Georgia 
Robbie Griffin, Deacon 
John Henry Ivy, Deacon 
Tom Carlton, Deacon 
Jimmy Rockmore, Deacon 
Richard Roberts, Deacon 
Hazel Cartey 
Fletcher Moss 
Odell Colvin 
Pauline Mallard 
Paul Murphy 
Nora Weeks 

Fannie Mizzell 
Duncan Coursey 
leroy lowe, Deacon 
Florine Nobles 
Berta Duncan 
lucille Douglas 
Oscar Dykes 
Cleo Morris 
Genie Morris 
Inez Barthelemy 
Ronnie Barthelemy 
Adam Powell 
Jeffie Arnold 
Abbie Calhoun, Deacon 
Horace Lovering, Deacon 
Junior Williams 
Calista Cofty 

Maryland 
Riley Hensley, Minister 
Winford Brown 

Michigan 
Bess lusk 

Mississippi 
Millie Wright 
Edna lindsey 
Hubert lester 
Mel Horne, Jr., Deacon 

New Mexico 
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Mary Fields 
Clifford Grogan 

.,.,,.Jersey r 
c;eorge Messe 
yranford Brown 

lh carolina 
uNarr~;.a m nklin Ray Thomas . . 

Fro rl W Brown Mamster Cha es · ' 
Sadie Flanagan . . 
Clyde Nations, Mamster 

Ohi~obert Ashby, Minister 

Oklahoma .. t 
Robert Mantooth, Mams er 
Jennifer Field 

South Carolina . . 
Jason Bennie Turner, Mamster 
Euzeal S. Jordan 

Tennessee .. 
Steve Hasty, Mmaster 
Guy Foster 
John Robert ''Bob'' Salyer, Deacon 

Texas S 
Lee Roy Anderson, r. 

• • Virgmaa 
George Mende 

• 
Foreign Missionaraes 

Mabel Willey, TX . 
Marie Hanna, lndaa 
Archie Mayhew, CA 
Don Sexton, TN 
Daniel Cronk, TN 
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The National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has approved in this eonw... tion the following budgets for 1999: 

Executive OHice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . · . . . $ 604,358.1 S 

Budget Committee Report 

Free Will Baptist Bible College . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,137,724.00 
(Includes $1 ,200,000.00 in unrestricted gifts) 

Foreign Missions . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,565,821.10 
(Does not include $77 6,350.00 Vision Projects) 

Home Missions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,500,000.00 
Master's Men . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150, 150.00 
Retirement and Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 361 ,0 14.00 
Free Will Baptist Foundation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 119,325.00 
Sunday School and Church Training . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,263,383.15 
Commission for Theological Integrity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,800.00 
Historical Commission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,3 7 5.00 
Music Commission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,100.00 
Media Commission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,675.00 

Total .... . ............ . ................... . $ 1 7,734,725.40 
All these ministries receive funds through the Together Way Plan except for 1he 

Sunday School and Church Training Department which is self-sustaining. 
The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through the Together Way 

Pion be allocated to the national ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive OHice Administration Budget above designated gifts, not to exceed 45% of cooperative gifts. 

2. Disburne the balance of cooperative gifts to the following national ministries according to these percentages: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College ............... ... ........... . F . M· . s 
orergn 1ssron . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Home Missions . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Retirement and Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Master's Men . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Free Will Bapfist Foundation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Commission for Theological integrity ...... . .............. . ... . 
Historical Commission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Music Commission . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . 
Media Commission . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants, 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 

Tom Malone, President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
R. Eugene Waddell, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
T rymon Messer, General Director of Home Missions Department 

23.0% 
23.0% 
18.0% 
14.0% 
14.0% 
6.0% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 

100.0% 

Bill Evans, General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
Tom Dooley, General Director of Master's Men Department 

Alton loveless, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training Department 
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Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 1997-1998 

~~~14~14~1~70+~1~~~~R=~~1i~~~6t2~2t4~3~8~~~~~~ F" 1 1 9 9 a 1 ~ 9: a:; 19.::: 1,375 593 782 W,669 19.701 7,9~::; 
15 15 216 203 91 125 94 397 243 154 3,105 3,209 2.600 

168 64 104 80 
87 489 
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128 262 247 ~ 
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15
5 68 87 t~Z .~ 

I 1o.t."" 3 3 24 24 0 8 16 13 9 145 0 

2 2 8 8 8 2 4 21 164 
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II. ,J. ...1 3 3 25 24 12 13 16 8 313 -~ 

6 6 46 43 27 6 19 11 119 3,192 
4 4 52 45 12 40 27 16 168 3,317 

17 17 183 172 85 98 70 102 575 _1!_340 
1 1 1 1 2 10 

14 20 (6) 158 135 1!.?Jl6 

889 658 231 _l6..ill. ~ ~ 
16 16 65 106 59 

239 79 160 J~ _1M ~ 
0 

252 96 156 
228 104 124 
855 450 405 

0 0 

0 ~ 3,348 3,544 
3,441 3,934 1,410,540 

14,745 14,813 6,080,015 
10 10 

New~ 1 1 4 3 3 1 4 8 8 0 0 110 
New Mellico 1 1 4 4 3 1 1 2 9 70 23 4 19 89 84 /JI.650 
Nof1h Co10lino 8 8 188 17 1~ 18,425 1,826 913 913 ~ 13,1·4! 1H3k024 149 60 47 91 
ll..&. ~ 1 1 5 5 7 8 3 5 238 5 1 4 
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19 19 149 146 66 83 43 99 902 10,420 912 454 458 ~ 10,194 4.565,529 

South Gnolino 

Tennessee 

·~ 

Wisconsin 
Totols 

22 22 244 236 152 90 141 90 844 21,973 1,641 549 ~ 13.065 ~ 9,971,282 
0 0 

7 7 118 114 53 65 102 16 528 0 78 

78 480 692 ~ Ji461 4,191,721 8 7 175 90 119 130 69 470 18,316 1,172 
94 

.11! ~ 
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J2Q. t6n3P.O 
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24 63 11i 5}79 679 !1m !1m 1,559,217 20 20 181 181 30 ' 51 88 93 564 10,844 

679 
0 56 25 1:t2~ 

1 1 1 
1 6 56 9 .345 744 206,397 .. 10,461 75,322,059 213 ~10 1,242 2,297 ~.042 ,302 ,231 11,018 10,169 198,653 114,08 r·- , 
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J. 
t ~~ 

i1 ~ 
,Aiobomo 23 38 
Arizona 4 3 
Arkansas 50 67 
California 26 23 
Conodo 2 3 
Colorodo 
Aorido 26 38 
Georgia 50 55 
Hawaii 1 1 
Idaho 3 3 
Illinois 21 15 
lndiooo 10 
lowo 
Konsos 2 1 
Kentu<Xy 14 6 
l.ouisiano 1 
Maryland 16 7 
Mexico 
Michigan 9 10 
Mississippi 9 25 
Missouri 36 44 
Montona 
New JeMf 1 1 
New Mexico 1 2 
North Carolina 82 45 
Northeast~ 1 
Northwesl Awx. 2 
Ohio 29 26 
Oklo homo 47 67 
Puerto Rico 
South (orofino 45 35 
South Ookoto 
Tennessee 
Tmm 13 11 
Vi111in l~onds 1 1 
ViiJiinio 13 5 
West Virginia 11 14 
WISCOOSin 1 
Totals 539 >57 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 1997-1998 

il I E I - I i 
ji - ~~ ~ 'c5& ] ~ , ] 1 J ]I ~- .5 v i~ -a-e i CJ 

tS d ~l! l.s • .5 

15,828,220 8,687 1,592 685 147 253 42 431 
2,749,000 379 101 43 19 9 5 

140,436,340 12,565 2,580 1,169 167 335 58 532 
21,417,959 4,101 266 290 45 95 31 97 

1,232,967 328 30 89 4 3 12 
550,000 59 5 2 

13,972,300 3,240 586 528 220 116 18 139 
26,581,658 5,298 1,032 692 117 152 21 408 
3,500,000 42 33 1 1 1 

650,000 304 12 7 10 3 6 
11,611,000 2,582 444 329 100 68 11 107 
5,000,000 855 95 168 93 42 4 58 

2,025,990 191 33 11 6 4 
13,637,000 8,306 1,044 600 27 398 27 374 

500,000 60 3 4 
9,008,696 1,555 44 174 222 38 7 37 

6,477,584 1,904 63 243 51 75 5 59 
6,607,400 2,398 743 259 85 58 14 118 

30,726,297 8,978 1,040 808 196 281 33 363 
150,000 25 1 

5 1 1 
450,000 61 14 5 6 4 

36,704,000 13,448 1,404 1,171 239 247 58 468 
250 28 17 10 5 8 

2,500,000 277 18 5 3 
30,049,561 9,197 459 742 75 324 23 267 
57,891,908 17,678 3,406 1,182 226 396 39 520 

7,581,320 6,532 1,114 767 448 175 9 154 

34,829,450 11,709 1,286 839 147 380 84 522 
6,370,105 1,382 161 251 37 59 14 76 
2,350,000 180 16 8 2 2 

16,325,416 3,551 495 494 77 190 7 262 
15,921,100 9,722 678 887 59 421 25 360 

23 1 1 
523,635,271 135,867 18,736 12,515 2,834 4,167 539 5,400 
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I I g 
j j 
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~ iJ -
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8 7 5 1 

2 4 3 882,308 
5 5 1 1,172,679 

5 2 2 
2 2 2 

3,500,000 

1 2 855,000 
1 2 2 

1 1 
1 

1 
1 2 2 1 
5 6 6 4 450,000 
1 

12 14 14 1 

1 1 
1 1 1 311,018 

5 4 2 1 3,200,000 

4 5 5 150,000 

5 1 2 1 1 

1 1 1 
1 2 2 
1 1 1 

53 59 58 15 4 10,521,005 
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